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PART |

ITEM 1. Business.
Corporate Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’a financial holding company incorporated in 19@der the laws of the State of Nevada
and founded in 1989. The Company serves as thénigotdmpany for First Community Bank (the “Bank”hiwh is a Virginia-chartered
banking institution founded in 1874. The Comparspalwns Greenpoint Insurance Group, Inc. (“Greentfjpia full-service insurance
agency. The Bank is the parent of First Communigelth Management, a registered investment advigonythat offers wealth management
and investment advice. The Company is the Commock8blder of FCBI Capital Trust, which was create@®ctober 2003 to issue trust
preferred securities to raise capital for the Camypa

The Companys banking operations are expected to remain timeipal business and major source of revenue fo€Ctirapany. The Compat
also considers and evaluates options for growtheapdnsion of the existing subsidiary banking opiena. Although the Company is a
corporate entity, legally separate and distinanfiits affiliates, bank holding companies, suchhes@ompany, are required to act as a source
of financial strength for their subsidiary bank&eTprincipal source of the Company’s income isdivids from the Bank. Dividend payments
by the Bank are determined in relation to earniagset growth, and capital position and are subgectrtain restrictions by regulatory
agencies as described more fully under “Regulaimh Supervision — The Bank” of this item.

The Company'’s principal executive offices are ledaat One Community Place, Bluefield, Virginia 28&hd its telephone number is
(276) 326-9000.

Business Overview

Through its subsidiaries, the Company offers consiaband consumer banking services and productseisas wealth management and
insurance services. Those products and serviceglmthe following:

» demand deposit accounts, savings and money marketiats, certificates of deposit, and individudireenent arrangement
» commercial, consumer, real estate mortgage loaklirzes of credit

» various debit card and automated teller machiné sarvices

e corporate and personal trust servic

* investment management services,

» life, health, and property and casualty insurarrcelpcts.

The Company provides financial services and corsdb@hking operations within the states of Virginégst Virginia, North Carolina, and
Tennessee. The Company serves a diverse custosectbiasisting of individual consumers and a wid#etaof industries, including, amol
others, manufacturing, mining, services, constangtretail, healthcare, military and transportatibhe Company is not dependent upon any
single industry or customer. The Company had miakolidated assets of $2.16 billion at DecembefB811, and conducts its banking
operations through 55 locations.

Operating Segments

The Company'’s operations are managed along twatadge business segments consisting of communitkibhg and insurance services. See
“Note 19 — Segment Information” in the Notes to €olidated Financial Statements in Item 8 herein.

Competition

There is significant competition among banks in@uapany’s market areas. The Company also compétie®ther providers of financial
services, such as thrifts, savings and loan agsmtsa credit unions, consumer finance companiesyrities firms, insurance companies,
insurance agencies, commercial finance and leasimgpanies, full service brokerage firms, and dist@mokerage firms. The Company fa
substantial competition for deposits and loansughout its market areas. The primary factors inpeting for deposits are interest rates,
personalized services, the quality and range ainiimal services, convenience of office locationgpmated services and office hours.
Competition for deposits comes primarily from oteemmercial banks, savings institutions, credibasj mutual funds and other investment
alternatives. The primary factors in competingdommercial and business loans are interest ra@s,drigination fees, the quality and range
of lending services and personalized service. Caoitiggefor origination of mortgage loans comes paiity from savings institutions,
mortgage banking firms, mortgage brokers, otherroensial banks and insurance companies. Factorshdffect competition include the
general and local economic conditions, currentr@serate levels and volatility in the
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mortgage markets. Some of the Company’s competiiave greater resources and, as such, may haver iégiding limits and may offer
other services that are not provided by the Comp@oynpetition could intensify in the future as aule of industry consolidation, the
increasing availability of products and servicesrfrnon-banks, greater technological developmentsarindustry, and banking regulatory
reform. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysismancial Condition and Results of Operationsxedtitive Overview — Competition”
in Iltem 7 herein.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed 633tifuk- equivalent employees at December 31, 2011 alglament considers employee
relations to be excellent.

Regulation and Supervision
General

The supervision and regulation of the Company &dubsidiaries by applicable federal and staté&ibhgragencies is intended primarily for
the protection of depositors, the Deposit Insuradfumed (“DIF”) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Gogiion (“FDIC”), and the banking
system as a whole, and not for the protectionadldtolders or creditors. The banking agencies bavad enforcement power over bank
holding companies and banks, including the powémpmse substantial fines and other penaltiesifidlations of laws and regulations.

The following description summarizes some of thvesléo which the Company and the Bank are subjeferi@nces in the following
description to applicable statutes and regulataasrief summaries of these statutes and regofgtao not purport to be complete, and are
qualified in their entirety by reference to suchtstes and regulations. A change in statutes, atignk or regulatory policies applicable to the
Company and its subsidiaries could have a mateffi@tt on the business of the Company.

The Dodd-Frank Act

On July 21, 2010, sweeping financial regulatoryref legislation entitled the “Dodd-Frank Wall Str&eform and Consumer Protection
Act” (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) was signed into law. &Dodd-Frank Act implements far-reaching changessacthe financial regulatory
landscape, including provisions that, among othigs:

» Centralizes responsibility for consumer financiadtpction by creating a new agency, the Consummrteial Protection Bureau,
responsible for implementing, examining and enfagatompliance with federal consumer financial |§“ CFPE").

* Requires financial holding companies, such as trmgany, to be well capitalized and well managedfakily 21, 2011. Bank holding
companies and banks must also be both well capgthiind well managed in order to engage in interfi@nk acquisition:

» Imposes comprehensive regulation of the over-theyar derivatives market, which would include certarovisions that would
effectively prohibit insured depository institut®from conducting certain derivatives businessekdrinstitutions themselve

» Implements corporate governance revisions, incyehith regard to executive compensation and praogss by shareholde

» Made permanent the $250,000 limit for federal dépnsurance and increased the cash limit of S&earinvestor Protection
Corporation protection from $100,000 to $250,008 provides unlimited federal deposit insuranceluanuary 1, 2013 for noninterest
bearing demand transaction accounts at all insgegdsitory institutions

* Repealed the federal prohibitions on the paymeiritefest on demand deposits, thereby permittinmpsiéory institutions to pay intere
on business transaction and other accol

* Amended the Electronic Fund Transfer Act to, amotingr things, give the Board of Governors of thddfal Reserve System (“Federal
Reserve Board”) the authority to establish rulegrding interchange fees charged for electronidt detmsactions by payment card
issuers having assets over $10 billion and enfara@sw statutory requirement that such fees benadde and proportional to the act
cost of a transaction to the isstL

* Increased the authority of the Federal Reservedmaexamine bank holding companies, such as timep@oy, and their non-bank
subsidiaries

Many aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act are subjectiennaking and will take effect over several yearaking it difficult to anticipate the
overall financial impact on the Company, its custosnor the financial industry generally. Provisiomshe legislation that affect deposit
insurance assessments, payment of interest on detlegosits and interchange fees could increaseosts associated with deposits as we
place limitations on certain revenues those deposily generate.
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The Company

The Company is a financial holding company purstatihe Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (“GLB Act”) and amiaholding company registered
under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as atedr(“BHCA”). Accordingly, the Company is subjeotgupervision, regulation and
examination by the Federal Reserve Board. The BHEBAGLB Act, and other federal laws subject firahand bank holding companies to
particular restrictions on the types of activitiesvhich they may engage and to a range of supaywigquirements and activities, including
regulatory enforcement actions for violations afidaand regulations. The BHCA generally provides‘tonbrella” regulation of financial
holding companies, such as the Company, by thergeReserve Board, and for functional regulatiotafking activities by bank regulators,
securities activities by securities regulators, Bstirance activities by insurance regulators.

Regulatory Restrictions on Dividends; Source oéi&jth. It is the policy of the Federal Reserve Board b@nk holding companies should
pay cash dividends on common stock only from incenaglable over the past year and only if prospeatiarnings retention is consistent
with the organization’s expected future needs @mahtial condition. The policy provides that bardtding companies should not maintain a
level of cash dividends that undermines the bandihg company’s ability to serve as a source adrggth to its banking subsidiaries.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holdomgpany is expected to act as a source of finastriahgth to each of its banking
subsidiaries and commit resources to their supfoet. Dodd-Frank Act codified this policy as a staty requirement. Under this
requirement, the Company is expected to commituress to support the Bank, including at times winenCompany may not be in a
financial position to provide such resources. Ascdssed below, a bank holding company in certatugistances could be required to
guarantee the capital plan of an undercapitalizatking subsidiary.

Scope of Permissible Activitiet)nder the BHCA, bank holding companies genenaly not acquire a direct or indirect interest ircontrol

of more than 5% of the voting shares of any compghayis not a bank or bank holding company or gada activities other than those of
banking, managing or controlling banks or furnighgervices to or performing services for its sulasids, except that it may engage in,
directly or indirectly, certain activities that tRederal Reserve Board determined to be closedyerto banking or managing and controlling
banks as to be a proper incident thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the GLB Act elimiadtthe barriers to affiliations among banks, sé¢iesrfirms, insurance companies ¢
other financial service providers and permits blaokling companies to become financial holding conigmand thereby affiliate with
securities firms and insurance companies and enigagier activities that are financial in natufe GLB Act defines “financial in nature”
to include securities underwriting, dealing and keémaking; sponsoring mutual funds and investraentpanies; insurance underwriting -
agency; merchant banking activities and activitied the Federal Reserve Board has determined ¢tobely related to banking. No
regulatory approval is generally required for afinial holding company to acquire a company, dtien a bank or savings association,
engaged in activities that are financial in natrréncidental to activities that are financial iatare, as determined by the Federal Reserve
Board.

Under the GLB Act, a bank holding company may beeanfinancial holding company by filing a declapativith the Federal Reserve Board
if each of its subsidiary banks is well capitalizedier the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatiggréarrement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”)
prompt corrective action provisions, is well mardgad has at least a satisfactory rating unde€Ctdramunity Reinvestment Act of 1977
(“CRA"). The Company elected financial holding coamy status in December 2006. Beginning in July 2€14 Company financial holdint
company status also depends upon it maintainirggatsis as “well capitalized” and “well manageddanapplicable Federal Reserve Board
regulations. If a financial holding company ceaseseet these requirements, the Federal Reservel Btay impose corrective capital and/or
managerial requirements on the financial holdingugany and place limitations on its ability to contthe broader financial activities
permissible for financial holding companies. In itidd, the Federal Reserve Board may require ditwgstof the holding company’s
depository institutions if the deficiencies persist

Anti-Tying RestrictionsBank holding companies and their affiliates arehgibed from tying the provision of certain seng¢such as
extensions of credit, to other services offereadlhlding company or its affiliates.

Stock RepurchaseA.bank holding company is required to give the FablReserve Board prior notice of any redemptiorepurchase of its
own equity securities, if the consideration to belptogether with the consideration paid for aggurchases or redemptions in the preceding
yeatr, is equal to 10% or more of the comf’s consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve Boay oppose the transaction if it believes
that the transaction would constitute an unsafengound practice or would violate any law or retjoia

Capital Adequacy Requirementshe Federal Reserve Board has promulgated capitajuacy guidelines for use in its examination and
supervision of bank holding companies. If a bankling company’s capital falls below minimum requirevels, then the bank holding
company must implement a plan to increase its abgitd its ability to pay dividends, or making aisitions of new banks or engaging in
certain other activities may be restricted or pbdkd.
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The Federal Reserve Board currently uses two tgpeapital adequacy guidelines for holding compangetwo-tiered risk-based capital
guideline and a leverage capital ratio guidelinge Two-tiered risk-based capital guideline assiigisweightings to all assets and certain off-
balance sheet items of the holding company’s ojpergtand then establishes a minimum ratio of tldihg company’s Tier 1 capital to the
aggregate dollar amount of risk-weighted assetscfwamount is usually less than the aggregate atteount of such assets without risk
weighting) and a minimum ratio of the holding comya total capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 ctgbj as adjusted) to the aggregate dollar
amount of such risk-weighted assets. The leverai® guideline establishes a minimum ratio of tb&ding company’s Tier 1 capital to its
total tangible assets (total assets less goodmdlicertain identifiable intangibles), without rigkeighting. As discussed below, the Bank is
subject to similar capital requirements.

Under both guidelines, Tier 1 capital is definedntdude: common shareholders’ equity (includintairged earnings), qualifying
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and relatedlus, qualifying cumulative perpetual preferséack and related surplus, minority
interests in the equity accounts of consolidatdibsliaries (limited to a maximum of 25% of Tierdpdal), and certain trust preferred
securities. The Dodd-Frank Act excludes trust pretesecurities issued after May 19, 2010, fronm@pémcluded in Tier 1 capital, unless the
issuing company is a bank holding company with thas $500 million in total assets. Trust prefersedurities issued prior to that date will
continue to count as Tier 1 capital for bank hajdimmpanies with less than $15 billion in totaleasssuch as the Company. Goodwill and
most intangible assets are deducted from Tier ftadapor purposes of the total risk-based capmjtatlelines, Tier 2 capital (sometimes
referred to as “supplementary capital”) is defib@ihclude, subject to limitations: perpetual pregd stock not included in Tier 1 capital,
intermediate-term preferred stock and any relateglss, certain hybrid capital instruments, perpetlebt and mandatory convertible debt
securities, allowances for loan and lease lossekirdermediate-term subordinated debt instrumditte.maximum amount of qualifying

Tier 2 capital is 100% of qualifying Tier 1 capit&lor purposes of the total capital guideline, ltotgital equals Tier 1 capital, plus qualifying
Tier 2 capital, minus investments in unconsolidatelsidiaries, reciprocal holdings of bank holdiognpany capital securities, and deferred
tax assets and other deductions. The Federal ReBeard’s current capital adequacy guidelines regiat a bank holding company
maintain a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of aiske4.00% and a total risk-based capital ratiat édast 8.00%. At December 31, 2011, the
Company’s ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-whted assets was 16.89% and its ratio of totatalapi risk-weighted assets was 18.15%.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelinbg, Federal Reserve Board uses a leverage rativ additional tool to evaluate the capital
adequacy of bank holding companies. The leveraimisaa company’s Tier 1 capital divided by itsaage total consolidated assets. Certain
highly rated bank holding companies may maintaimimimum leverage ratio of 3.00%, but other bankdiv@j companies are required to
maintain a leverage ratio of 4.00% or more, depgmndi their overall condition. At December 31, 20the Company'’s leverage ratio was
11.50%.

The federal banking agencies’ ribksed and leverage ratios are minimum supervistigsrgenerally applicable to banking organizatitbrad
meet certain specified criteria, assuming that theeye the highest regulatory rating. Banking orgatidns not meeting these criteria are
expected to operate with capital positions welhabthe minimum ratios. The federal bank regulatigncies may set capital requirements
for a particular banking organization that are igtihan the minimum ratios when circumstances wéarfeederal Reserve Board guidelines
also provide that banking organizations experiemaiternal growth or making acquisitions will bepexted to maintain strong capital
positions substantially above the minimum superyisevels, without significant reliance on intanigilassets.

The current risk-based capital guidelines thatyappthe Company and the Bank are based on the d&88@&l accord of the International
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, a commitfementral banks and bank supervisors, as implésddy the Federal Reserve Board.
In 2004, the Basel Committee published a new clapiteord, which is referred to as “Basel I1,” tplace Basel I. Basel Il provides two
approaches for setting capital standards for cregdit an internal ratings-based approach tailaceiddividual institutions’ circumstances and
a standardized approach that bases risk weightingxternal credit assessments to a much greattedkan permitted in existing risk-based
capital guidelines, which became effective in 26@8arge international banks (total assets of $2#libn or more or consolidated foreign
exposure of $10 billion or more). Other U.S. bagkimganizations can elect to adopt the requiremaritsis rule (if they meet applicable
qualification requirements), but they are not reggito apply them. Basel Il emphasizes internassgaent of credit, market and operational
risk, as well as supervisory assessment and maidepline in determining minimum capital requirems

In December 2010 and January 2011, the Basel Cdaepublished the final texts of reforms on captad liquidity, which is referred to as
“Basel Ill.” Although Basel Ill is intended to bemplemented by participating countries for largégiinationally active banks, its provisions
are likely to be considered by United States bamkagulators in developing new regulations applieab other banks in the United States.
Basel Il will require bank holding companies ahdit bank subsidiaries to maintain substantiallyeraapital, with a greater emphasis on
common equity. The implementation of the Basefitial framework will commence January 1, 2013. Gattdate, banking institutions will
be required to meet the following minimum capitias: (i) 3.5% Common Equity Tier 1 (generally smting of common shares and
retained earnings) to risk-weighted assets; (By#Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets; andl §ii0% Total capital to risk-weighted assets.
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When fully phased-in on January 1, 2019, and iflemgnted by the U.S. banking agencies, Basel llireguire banks to maintain:

u

e aminimum ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 to r-weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plus a Z“capital conservation buff¢’
e aminimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to ri-weighted assets of at least 6.0%, plus the cambtaervation buffe
e aminimum ratio of Total capital to ri-weighted assets of at least 8.0%, plus the cagotaervation buffer, ar

 aminimum leverage ratio of 3%, calculated as #t® of Tier 1 capital to balance sheet exposuhes gertain off-balance sheet
exposures

Basel Il also includes the following significamopisions:

* An additional countercyclical capital buffer to in@posed by applicable national banking regulat@rsaalically at their discretion, with
advance notice

» Restrictions on capital distributions and discregicy bonuses applicable when capital ratios fatiwithe buffer zone
» Deduction from common equity of deferred tax astesdepend on future profitability to be realiz

» For capital instruments issued on or after Jan@8ry2013 (other than common equity), a loss-absapeequirement that the
instrument must be written off or converted to coonnequity if a triggering event occurs, either puarst to applicable law or at the
direction of the banking regulator. A triggeringeev is an event that would cause the banking ozg#inh to become nonviable without
the write off or conversion, or without an injectiof capital from the public sectc

Since the Basel Il framework is not self-execultitige rules and standards promulgated under Bsebuire that the U.S. federal banking
regulators adopt them prior to becoming effectivéhie U.S. Although U.S. federal banking regulatease expressed support for Basel I,
the timing and scope of its implementation, as w&slany potential modifications or adjustments thay result during the implementation
process, are not yet known.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires or permits the fedbealking agencies to adopt regulations affectinimgninstitutions’ capital requirements
in a number of respects, including potentially mstrengent capital requirements for systemicallpdartant financial institutions. The Dodd-
Frank Act requires the Federal Reserve Board, ffieedof the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OQOGind the FDIC to adopt regulations
imposing a continuing “floor” of the Basel I-baseahital requirements in cases where the Badahs$ked capital requirements and any cha
in capital regulations resulting from Basel Il ettvise would permit lower requirements. In Decen@t0, the Federal Reserve Board, the
OCC and the FDIC issued a joint notice of propaséeimaking that would implement this requirementjch the agencies implemented as
proposed, effective July 28, 2011. This final rapplies to large international banks (total asse$250 billion or more or consolidated
foreign exposure of $10 billion or more) and, ttiere, will not have any immediate impact on the @amy or the Bank.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Compan. The BHCA requires every bank holding companylitain the prior approval of the Federal
Reserve Board before it may acquire all or subistiynall of the assets of any bank, or ownershigantrol of any voting shares of any bank,
if after such acquisition it would own or contrdlrectly or indirectly, more than 5% of the votialgares of such bank. In approving bank
acquisitions by bank holding companies, the FedRealerve Board is required to consider the findmacid managerial resources and future
prospects of the bank holding company and the beolkserned, the convenience and needs of the coitiesuo be served, and various
competitive factors.

Incentive Compensatic. In June 2010, the Federal Reserve Board, the @Ghe FDIC issued their final guidance on incenti
compensation policies intended to ensure thatribenitive compensation policies of banking orgainstdo not undermine the safety and
soundness of such organizations by encouragingssixeerisk taking. The final guidance, which covaltemployees that have the ability to
materially affect the risk profile of an organizatj is based upon the key principles that a banérggnization’s incentive compensation
arrangements should (i) provide incentives thahakloencourage risk taking beyond the organizatiabisty to effectively identify and
manage risks, (ii) be compatible with effectiveeimial controls and risk management, and (iii) jgsuted by strong corporate governance,
including active and effective oversight by theamization’s board of directors. The Federal ResBwa&rd indicated that all banking
organizations are to evaluate their incentive campton arrangements and related risk managenmntpts, and corporate governance
processes and immediately address deficiencidgesetarrangements or processes that are inconsistieisafety and soundness.
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The Federal Reserve Board will review, as parhefregular, risk-focused examination process,nberitive compensation arrangements of
banking organizations, such as the Company, tleatair“large, complex banking organizations.” Thesgews will be tailored to each
organization based on the scope and complexitigg@btganization’s activities and the prevalencmeéntive compensation arrangements.
The findings of the supervisory initiatives will becluded in reports of examination. Deficienciafl tne incorporated into the organization’s
supervisory ratings, which can affect the orgamzes ability to make acquisitions and take othetians. Enforcement actions may be taken
against a banking organization if its incentive pemsation arrangements, or related risk managetoetrol or governance processes, pose a
risk to the organization’s safety and soundnessla@arganization is not taking prompt and effextiweasures to correct the deficiencies.

In February 2011, the Federal Reserve Board, th€é @@l the FDIC approved a joint proposed rulematdngiplement Section 956 of the
Dodd-Frank Act, which prohibits incentive-based pemsation arrangements that encourage inappropisteaking by covered financial
institutions and are deemed to be excessive, bnihy lead to material losses.

The scope and content of the U.S. banking regudapadicies on executive compensation are contigpiindevelop and are likely to continue
evolving in the near future. It cannot be determiagthis time whether compliance with such policiéll adversely affect the Company’s
ability to hire, retain and motivate its key emdes.

The Bank

Effective with the close of business on June 2812the Bank converted its charter from a nati@sabciation to a Virginia state-chartered
banking institution. The Bank will continue opergtiunder the name First Community Bank. The chaxderersion does not affect insurance
coverage of the Bank’s deposits, which are insbgethe FDIC to the maximum amounts permitted by, lamd does not affect the financial
services or products provided by the Bank. As giviia state-chartered bank, the Bank is supenaseiregulated by the Virginia Bureau of
Financial Institutions (the “Virginia Bureau”) armé a member of the Federal Reserve, the Bank’sapyifederal regulator is the Federal
Reserve Bank of Richmond (“FRB"), both of which &ased in the Company’s home state of Virginia. fdgulations of these agencies
govern most aspects of the Bank’s business, inofudiquired reserves against deposits, loans, timegds, mergers and acquisitions,
borrowing, dividends and location and number ohbheoffices.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates anditters. Transactions between the Bank and its non-bardaigidiaries and/or affiliates,
including the Company, are subject to Section 28the Federal Reserve Act. In general, Section 2B8pgoses limits on the amount of such
transactions, and also requires certain leveloldteral for loans to affiliated parties. It alsmits the amount of advances to third parties
which are collateralized by the securities or ddiigns of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Sec8B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally ireguthat certain transactions between the
Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantidily $ame, or at least as favorable to the Bankas® tprevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with or involving other non-affiliatpdrsons. The Federal Reserve Board has issuedai#egyV which codifies prior
regulations under Sections 23A and 23B of the Fdd®eserve Act and interpretive guidance with resfeaffiliate transactions.

The DoddFrank Act generally enhances the restrictions andactions with affiliates under Sections 23A aBB 2f the Federal Reserve A
including an expansion of the definition of “covereansactions” and an increase in the amountd for which collateral requirements
regarding covered credit transactions must befigatidnsider transaction limitations are expanttedugh the strengthening of loan
restrictions to insiders and the expansion of yipes of transactions subject to the various linmtsluding derivatives transactions, repurck
agreements, reverse repurchase agreements aniised¢emding or borrowing transactions. Restrigi@re also placed on certain asset sales
to and from an insider to an institution, includirgjuirements that such sales be on market terthsranertain circumstances, approved by
the institution’s board of directors.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executiffieers, principal shareholders and their relat@ériests contained in the Federal Reserve Act
and Regulation O apply to all insured institutiamsl their subsidiaries and holding companies. Thesteictions include limits on loans to

one borrower and conditions that must be met befoch a loan can be made. There is also an aggrigéation on all loans to such
persons. These loans cannot exceed the institatiotél unimpaired capital and surplus, and theG~Dlhy determine that a lesser amount is
appropriate.

Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiary Bank idends and Asse. Dividends paid by the Bank have provided the Canyfs operating
funds and for the foreseeable future it is anti@fgahat dividends paid by the Bank to the Compaitlycontinue to be the Company’s
primary source of operating funds.
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Capital adequacy requirements applicable to insdegubsitory institutions serve to limit the amouohtividends that may be paid by the
Bank. Under federal law, the Bank cannot pay adéind if, after paying the dividend, it will be ciified as “undercapitalized.” Further, prior
approval of the Federal Reserve Board is requfredsh dividends declared in any given year extieedotal of the Bank’s net profits for
such year, plus its retained profits for the préogdwo years. Virginia law also imposes restrin@n the ability of Virginia-chartered banks
to pay dividends if such dividends would impairank’s paid-in capital. The payment of dividendstsy Bank may also be limited by other
factors, such as requirements to maintain capitave regulatory guidelines. The Virginia Bureau #melFederal Reserve Board have the
general authority to limit dividends paid by thenRaf such payments are deemed to constitute aafeir@sd unsound practice.

Because the Company is a legal entity separateliatidct from its subsidiaries, its right to paipiate in the distribution of assets of any
subsidiary upon the subsidiary’s liquidation orrgamization will be subject to the prior claimstbé subsidiary’s creditors. In the event of
liquidation or other resolution of an insured defmy institution, such as the Bank, the claimglepositors and other general or subordinated
creditors are entitled to a priority of payment iotres claims of holders of any obligation of thetitution to its shareholders, including any
depository institution holding company or any shatder or creditor thereof.

Examinations. Under the FDICIA, all insured institutions musidergo regular on-site examination by their apgedprbanking agency and
such agency may assess the institution for itsaafstonducting the examination. As a state-chadigFederal Reserve member bank, the
Bank is subject to examination by the Virginia Baweand FRB. These examinations review areas suchpitsl adequacy, reserves, loan
portfolio quality and management, consumer andratbmpliance issues, investments, information systalisaster recovery, and
contingency planning and management practices.

Capital Adequacy Requirementshe various federal bank regulatory agenciesudtieg the Federal Reserve Board, have adopteebaskd
capital requirements for assessing the capitalsgof banks and bank holding companies. The &dapital standards define capital and
establish minimum capital requirements in relatmassets and off-balance sheet exposure, as edljiostcredit risk. The risk-based capital
standards currently in effect are designed to nnegelatory capital requirements more sensitiveifferences in risk profile among bank
holding companies and banks, to account for offihed sheet exposure and to minimize disincentwelsdlding liquid assets. Assets and off-
balance sheet items are assigned to broad risgarégs, each with appropriate risk weights. Theltegy capital ratios represent capital as a
percentage of total risk-weighted assets and dérz® sheet items.

Pursuant to the Federal Reserve Board’s risk-beagital requirements, state member banks are egtjtormeet a minimum ratio of Tier 1
capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4.00% amdtio of total capital to total risk-weighted essof 8.00%. The capital categories have the
same definitions for the Bank as for the Compame ‘Regulation and Supervision — The Company —t@bfadequacy Requirements” for
additional information on the capital requiremesgpplicable to the Bank.

In addition to the risk-based capital requiremettits,Federal Reserve Board has adopted reguldtiahsupplement the risk-based guidelines
to include a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 capib quarterly average assets (“leverage ratib3.00%. The Federal Reserve Board has
emphasized that the foregoing standards are sgpeyuninimums and that a banking organization beéllpermitted to maintain such
minimum levels of capital only if it receives thighest rating under the regulatory rating systechthie banking organization is not
experiencing or anticipating significant growth! Ather banking organizations are required to nzéin& leverage ratio of at least 4.00% to
5.00% of Tier 1 capital. These rules further previdat banking organizations experiencing integnaivth or making acquisitions will be
expected to maintain capital positions substagtetlove the minimum supervisory levels and comgartabpeer group averages, without
significant reliance on intangible assets.

Corrective Measures for Capital DeficiencieShe federal banking regulators are requiredke tarompt corrective action” with respect to
capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulatiatefine, for each capital category, the levels attvinstitutions are “well capitalized,”
“adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “sificantly undercapitalized” and “critically undengialized.” A “well capitalized” institution
has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% ghhr; a Tier 1 riskbased capital ratio of 6.0% or higher; a leveragi® of 5.0% or higher; ar
is not subject to any written agreement, orderi@uctive requiring it to maintain a specific capievel for any capital measure. An
“adequately capitalized” institution has a totakrbased capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; a Tieisk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a
leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0% or highdgh# bank was rated a composite 1 in its most teea@amination report and is not
experiencing significant growth); and does not ntketcriteria for a well capitalized bank. An “umdapitalized” institution has a total risk-
based capital ratio that is less than 8.0%; a Tiesk-based capital ratio of less than 4.0% availage ratio of less than 4.0%. A
“significantly undercapitalized” institution hagatal risk-based capital ratio of less than 6.0%ijex 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than
3.0% or a leverage ratio of less than 3.0%. A ity undercapitalized” institution’s tangible atyuis equal to or less than 2.0% of average
quarterly tangible assets. An institution may bedgraded to, or deemed to be in, a capital catethatyis lower than indicated by its capital
ratios if it is determined to be in an unsafe osaumd condition or if it receives an unsatisfactexgmination rating with respect to certain
matters. A bank’s capital
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category is determined solely for the purpose phapg prompt corrective action regulations, ane dapital category may not constitute an
accurate representation of the bank’s overall firercondition or prospects for other purposes. Bhek was classified as “well capitalized”
for purposes of the FDIC’s prompt corrective actiegulation as of December 31, 2011.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized instituts to submit a capital restoration plan, agengylegions contain broad restrictions on
certain activities of undercapitalized institutidnsluding asset growth, acquisitions, branch dstaiment and expansion into new lines of
business. With certain exceptions, an insured diggsnstitution is prohibited from making capitdistributions, including dividends, and is
prohibited from paying management fees to conteospns if the institution would be undercapitalizdigr any such distribution or payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the fedeglilators’ enforcement powers become more sepesgnificantly undercapitalized
institution is subject to mandated capital raisiegjvities, restrictions on interest rates paid t&tadsactions with affiliates, removal of
management and other restrictions. The FDIC hagdihtdiscretion in dealing with a critically undapitalized institution and is generally
required to appoint a receiver or conservator. Bamikh risk-based capital and leverage ratios batmwequired minimums may also be
subject to certain administrative actions, inclggdihe termination of deposit insurance upon naité hearing, or a temporary suspension of
insurance without a hearing in the event the ustin has no tangible capital.

Deposit Insurance AssessmeiThe Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicabiédiby the DIF of the FDIC and are subject to dsfpo
insurance assessments to maintain the DIF. Cuyrdm@lFDIC utilizes a risk-based assessment sy&i@waluate the risk of each financial
institution based on three primary sources of imf@ion: (1) its supervisory rating, (2) its finaalcfatios, and (3) its long-term debt issuer
rating, if the institution has one. The FDIC’s iaitbhase assessment schedule can be adjusteddopor and premiums in effect from
January 1, 2010, through March 31, 2011, ranged ft@ basis points in the lowest risk category td4Sis points for banks in the highest
risk category. Effective April 1, 2011, the FDICQ gdtial base assessment rates from 5 basis pivirtkee lowest risk category to 35 basis
points for banks in the higher risk category.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FDIC to increageF’s reserves against future losses, which méattessitate increased deposit insurance
premiums that are to be borne primarily by insiiius with assets of greater than $10 billion. Iridber 2010, the FDIC addressed plans to
bolster the DIF by increasing the required reseatie for the industry to 1.35 percent (ratio ofeeves to insured deposits) by September 30,
2020, as required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The FOED aroposed to raise its industry target ratioeserves to insured deposits to 2 percent,
65 basis points above the statutory minimum.

In February 2011, the FDIC adopted new rules thagral its current deposit insurance assessmengtemd. The new rules implement a
provision in the Dodd-Frank Act that changed theeasment base for deposit insurance premiums frenibased on domestic deposits to one
based on average consolidated total assets mimuage/tangible equity. The rules also changedsbesament rate schedules for insured
depository institutions so that approximately taems amount of revenue would be collected undend¢ineassessment base as would be
collected under the current rate schedule anddhedsiles previously proposed by the FDIC in Oct@fdi0. In addition, the new rules

revised the rislbbased assessment system for large insured degasistitutions (generally, institutions with at &a10 billion in total asset
and “highly complex” institutions by requiring thite FDIC use a scorecard method to calculate sreses rates for all such institutions. The
Bank will not be deemed a “highly complex” institut for these purposes.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as ame(idedFDIA”), the FDIC may terminate deposit inaace upon a finding that the
institution has engaged in unsafe and unsoundipeacts in an unsafe or unsound condition to cmgioperations, or has violated any
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or conditimposed by the FDIC.

Safety and Soundness Standar@ike FDIA requires the federal bank regulatoryramigs to prescribe standards, by regulations atajinies,
relating to internal controls, information systeamsl internal audit systems, loan documentatioitumderwriting, interest rate risk
exposure, asset growth, asset quality, earningsk staluation and compensation, fees and benafits such other operational and managerial
standards as the agencies deem appropriate. Guideldopted by the federal bank regulatory ageestablish general standards relating to
internal controls and information systems, inteanadit systems, loan documentation, credit undéingiiinterest rate exposure, asset growth
and compensation, fees and benefits. In genermbukdelines require, among other things, appropegstems and practices to identify and
manage the risk and exposures specified in theeingb. The guidelines prohibit excessive compémsas an unsafe and unsound practice
and describe compensation as excessive when thendsngaid are unreasonable or disproportionateagséervices performed by an executive
officer, employee, director or principal stockhalde addition, the agencies adopted regulatioas althorize, but do not require, an agency
to order an institution that has been given ndligc@n agency that it is not satisfying any of ssafety and soundness standards to submit a
compliance plan. If, after being so notified, astitution fails to submit an acceptable compliaptzn or fails in any material respect to
implement an acceptable compliance plan, the agensg issue an order directing action to correetdéficiency and may issue an order
directing other actions of the types to which ademapitalized institution is subject under theofppt corrective action” provisions of the
FDIA.
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See “Regulation and Supervision — The Bank — Caued/leasures for Capital Deficiencies” for additid information. If an institution fails
to comply with such an order, the agency may seahforce such order in judicial proceedings anidnfmose civil money penalties.

Enforcement Powel. The FDIC and the other federal banking agence broad enforcement powers, including the powégriminate
deposit insurance, impose substantial fines aner @iilwil and criminal penalties and appoint a cona®r or receiver. Failure to comply with
applicable laws, regulations and supervisory agesgsncould subject the Company or the Bank, asagdtifficers, directors and other
institution-affiliated parties of these organizations, to adstrative sanctions and potentially substantiall choney penalties. The appropri
federal banking agency may appoint the FDIC asamasor or receiver for a banking institution (bet=DIC may appoint itself, under
certain circumstances) if any one or more of a nemalb circumstances exist, including, without liatibn, the fact that the banking institution
is undercapitalized and has no reasonable prospbetcoming adequately capitalized; fails to becamequately capitalized when require:
do so; fails to submit a timely and acceptabletehpéstoration plan; or materially fails to implent an accepted capital restoration plan.

Consumer Laws and Regulations addition to the laws and regulations discudsmein, the Bank is also subject to certain corsuaws

and regulations that are designed to protect coaesuin transactions with banks. While the listfeeth herein is not exhaustive, these laws
and regulations include the Truth in Lending Abg Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Tfanéct, the Expedited Funds

Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Acind the Fair Housing Act, and various state copatés. These laws and regulations
mandate certain disclosure requirements and regtiiatmanner in which financial institutions musabwith customers when taking deposits
or making loans to such customers. The Bank muspbowith the applicable provisions of these consuprotection laws and regulations
part of their ongoing customer relations.

In addition, federal law currently contains exte@estustomer privacy protection provisions. Undesthprovisions, a financial institution
must provide to its customers, at the inceptiothefcustomer relationship and annually thereatfer jnstitution’s policies and procedures
regarding the handling of customers’ nonpublic pees financial information. These provisions alsoyide that, except for certain limited
exceptions, a financial institution may not provaleh personal information to unaffiliated thirdtms unless the institution discloses to the
customer that such information may be so providatithe customer is given the opportunity to optafiguch disclosure.

The Dodd-Frank Act provided for the creation of €i€PB as an independent entity within the FedeesielR/e Board. The CFPB has broad
rulemaking, supervisory and enforcement authongraonsumer financial products and services, diol deposit products, residential
mortgages, home-equity loans and credit cards CHeB’s functions include investigating consumer ptaimts, rulemaking, supervising and
examining banks’ consumer transactions, and emfgnailes related to consumer financial productsserdices. Banks with less than $10
billion in assets, such as the Bank, will continuide examined for compliance with federal consufimancial laws by their primary federal
banking agency.

USA PATRIOT Act of 200The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providikapropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruc
Terrorism Act of 2001 (“Patriot Act”) was enacted@ctober 2001. The Patriot Act has broadenediagisinti-money laundering legislation
while imposing new compliance and due diligencegatiions on banks and other financial institutiongh a particular focus on detecting :
reporting money laundering transactions involvilogneéstic or international customers. The U.S. TrgaBepartment has issued and will
continue to issue regulations clarifying the Pat#ot's requirements. The Patriot Act requires‘Bflancial institutions,” as defined, to
establish certain anti-money laundering complizamoé due diligence programs. Recently, the regulatgencies have intensified their
examination procedures in light of the Patriot Aahti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act requimts. The Company believes that its
controls and procedures were in compliance withPthiot Act as of December 31, 2011.

Interstate Banking and BranchinThe federal banking agencies are authorized tooappnterstate bank merger transactions withoudnag
to whether the transaction is prohibited by the ¢dwny state, unless the home state of one dbdin&s has opted out of the interstate bank
merger provisions of the Riegle-Neal Interstate Kagn and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the “Ble-Neal Act”) or by adopting a law
after the date of enactment of the Riegle-Nealakat prior to June 1, 1997, that applies equaliiitout-of-state banks and expressly
prohibits merger transactions involving out-of-sthanks. Interstate acquisitions of branches araified only if the law of the state in which
the branch is located permits such acquisitionsh$uterstate bank mergers and branch acquisitionslso subject to the nationwide and
statewide insured deposit concentration limitatidescribed in the Riegle-Neal Act.

Prior to the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, nal@and state-chartered banks were generally pedrtid branch across state lines by
merging with banks in other states if allowed bg #pplicable statetaws. However, interstate branching is now permifte all national an
state-chartered banks as a result of the Dodd-Fanhlprovided that a state bank chartered by thte $n which the branch is to be located
would also be permitted to establish a branch, #figstively giving out of state banks parity withstate banks with respect to de novo
branching.
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Repurchase of Securities Issued in the Troubled AssRelief Program Capital Purchase Program

On November 21, 2008, the Company issued and sdltetU.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasufy”31,500 shares of the Company’s
Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StockeS@é (the “Preferred Shares”) and (ii) a Warréhe “Warrant”) to purchase 176,546
shares of the Company’s Common Stock, par valug0®ier share (the “Common Stock”), for an aggrepatehase price of $41.50 million
in cash. On June 5, 2009, the Company completedbkcpffering of its Common Stock that resultedtie reduction of the shares of
Common Stock underlying the Warrant from 176,54&ref to 88,273 shares. On July 8, 2009, the Compgmuychased from the Treasury
all of the Preferred Shares that it had issueti¢dTreasury in November 2008. On November 23, 20E1Company repurchased the War
from the Treasury for $30,600. The purchase pepeasents the amount that the Company bid in agabttion for the Warrant that took
place on November 17, 2011. The Warrant had a 40tgem and was immediately exercisable upon $isance, with an initial per share
exercise price of $35.26.

Series A Noncumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

On May 20, 2011, the Company completed a privaegrhent of 18,921 shares of its 6.00% Series A Muontative Convertible Preferred
Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”). The shamsy a 6.00% dividend rate and are noncumulaBaeh share is convertible into 69 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock at any time and manitiaconverts after five years. The Company maegaem the shares at face value
after the third anniversary.

Available Information

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aeek(ithe “Exchange Act”), the Company is requirefilmannual, quarterly and current
reports, proxy statements and other informatiof it Securities and Exchange Commission (the “$E&81y document the Company files
with the SEC may be read and copied at the SE(#icPReference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., WashmdD.C. 20549. Please call the SEC
at (800) SEM330 for further information about the public r&flece room. The SEC maintains a website at www.eedltat contains repori
proxy and information statements, and other infdromaregarding issuers that file electronicallytwihe SEC.

The Company makes available, free of charge, ameétssite at www.fchinc.com its Annual Report oniadr0-K, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amends thereto, as soon as reasonably practicabletia Company files such reports
with, or furnishes them to, the SEC. Investorseareouraged to access these reports and the ofbemation about the Company’s business
on its website. Information found on the Companyébsite is not part of this Annual Report on FoiorkL The Company will also provide
copies of its Annual Report on Form 10-K, free baige, upon written request of the Investor RetatiDepartment at the Company’s main
address, P.O. Box 989, Bluefield, VA 24605.

Also posted on the Company’s website, and availiabpgint upon written request of any shareholdethe Company’s Investor Relations
Department, are the charters of the standing com@esitof its Board of Directors, the Standards aidlit governing the Company’s
directors, officers, and employees, and the Comigdngider Trading & Disclosure Policy.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may include “foré@dooking statements,” which are made in good faiththe Company pursuant to the
“safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securititigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-loogistatements include, among others,
statements with respect to the Company’s belidés\gy objectives, goals, guidelines, expectatiansgipations, estimates and intentions that
are subject to significant risks and uncertairngied are subject to change based on various faatarsy of which are beyond the Company’s
control. The words “may,” “could,” “should,” “woult“believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”itend,” “plan” and similar expressions
are intended to identify forward-looking statemefitse following factors, among others, could catirgeCompany’s financial performance to
differ materially from that expressed in such fordvéooking statements:

» the strength of the United States economy in géa@iithe strength of the local economies in whithCompany conducts operatio
» the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetanyfiagal policies and laws, including interest ratdicies of the Federal Reserve Boz

« inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fliations; the timely development of competitive nmeducts and services of the
Company and the acceptance of these products arideseby new and existing custome

» the willingness of customers to substitute compeditproducts and services for the Company’s prtsdand services and vice versa; the
impact of changes in financial services laws amgilaions (including laws concerning taxes, banksegurities and insuranct
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» technological change

» the effect of acquisitions, including, without lit@iion, the failure to achieve the expected revegroeth and/or expense savings from
such acquisitions

» the growth and profitability of the Compée’s noninterest or fee income being less than exgg
e unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedin

» changes in consumer spending and saving habits

» the success of the Company at managing the riskévied in the foregoinc

The Company cautions that the foregoing list ofam@nt factors is not all-inclusive. If one or marfethe factors affecting these forward-
looking statements proves incorrect, then the Cawyigaactual results, performance, or achievememiddcdiffer materially from those
expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking stagents contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-Kerefore, the Company cautions you
not to place undue reliance on these forward-lapkiatements.

The Company does not intend to update these forlealdng statements, whether written or oral, theat change. All forward-looking
statements attributable to the Company are exprgssllified by these cautionary statements.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.

An investment in the Company’s Common Stock is ectijo risks inherent to the Company’s business. mMhterial risks and uncertainties
that management believes affect the Company aided below. Before making an investment decisyom, should carefully consider the
risks and uncertainties described below togeth#r all of the other information included or incorpted by reference in this report. The risks
and uncertainties described below are not the ongs facing the Company. Additional risks and utadeties that management is not aware
of or focused on or that management currently déemsaterial may also impair the Company’s busirgssrations. This report is qualified

in its entirety by these risk factors.

If any of the following risks actually occur, the@pany’s financial condition and results of openasi could be materially and adversely
affected. If this were to happen, the market potthe Companys Common Stock could decline significantly, and gould lose all or part «
your investment

Risks Related to the Company’s Business

The current economic environment poses significaniallenges for the Company and could adversely effies financial condition and
results of operations.

The U.S. economy was in recession from December g@ugh June 2009. Business activity across & wadge of industries and regions in
the U. S. was greatly reduced. Although economitimns have improved, certain sectors, such @setate and manufacturing, remain
weak and unemployment remains high. Continued eglin real estate values, home sales volumedjranttial stress on borrowers as a
result of the uncertain economic environment ctilde an adverse effect on the Company’s borrowrts oustomers, which could
adversely affect the Company’s financial conditéom results of operations. In addition, local goveents and many businesses are still
experiencing difficulty due to lower consumer sgagdand decreased liquidity in the credit markBisterioration in local economic
conditions, particularly within the Company’s geapginic regions and markets, could drive losses kekttuat which is provided for in its
allowance for loan losses. The Company may alse tiae following risks in connection with these egen

» Economic conditions that negatively affect houginiges and the job market have resulted, and maijrage to result, in deterioration
credit quality of the Company'’s loan portfoliosdasuch deterioration in credit quality has had, emald continue to have, a negative
impact on the Compa’s business

» Market developments may affect consumer confidéewels and may cause adverse changes in payméetrisatcausing increases in
delinquencies and default rates on loans and ctle€lit facilities.

* The processes the Company uses to estimate allewwantman losses and reserves may no longer lablelbecause they rely on
complex judgments that may no longer be capabseodrate estimatiol

» The Company’s ability to assess the creditworttiradts customers may be impaired if the modetsapproaches it uses to select,
manage, and underwrite its customers become lesiictive of future charcoffs.

» The Company expects to face increased regulati@s ofdustry, and compliance with such regulatiagy increase its costs, limit its
ability to pursue business opportunities, and iaseecompliance challenge

As the above conditions or similar ones continuexist or worsen, the Company could experienceiroinig or increased adverse effects on
its financial condition and results of operations.
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The Company and its subsidiary business are subjedhterest rate risk and variations in interesates may negatively affect its financial
performance.

The Company'’s earnings and cash flows are larggheddent upon its net interest income. Net inténesime is the difference between
interest income earned on interest-earning assth, as loans and securities, and interest expaid®n interest-bearing liabilities, such as
deposits and borrowed funds. Interest rates at@yhggnsitive to many factors that are beyond tbem@any’s control, including general
economic conditions and policies of various govegntal and regulatory agencies and, in particuter Rederal Reserve Board. Changes in
monetary policy, including changes in interestsatmuld influence not only the interest the Conypaateives on loans and securities and the
amount of interest it pays on deposits and borrgsjibut such changes could also affect (i) the Gayjs ability to originate loans and

obtain deposits, and (ii) the fair value of the @amy’s financial assets and liabilities. If thecirgst rates paid on deposits and other
borrowings increase at a faster rate than thedsteates received on loans and other investmiiigt€Company’s net interest income, and
therefore earnings, could be adversely affectethiBgs could also be adversely affected if therggerates received on loans and other
investments fall more quickly than the interesésgbaid on deposits and other borrowings.

The Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not be qdate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintaias allowance for loan losses to provide for prdbddsses. The Bank’s allowance for loan
losses may not be adequate to cover actual loaedand future provisions for loan losses coulcerraly and adversely affect the Bank’s
operating results. The determination of the appab@ievel of the allowance for loan losses inh#yanvolves a high degree of subjectivity
and requires the Bank to make significant estimatesirrent credit risks and future trends, allidfich may undergo material changes. The
Bank’s allowance for loan losses is determinedrmiyzing historical loan losses, current trenddetinquencies and charge-offs, plans for
problem loan resolution, changes in the size amdposition of the loan portfolio, and industry infeation. Also included in management’s
estimates for loan losses are considerations wghect to the impact of economic events, the outaoimvhich are uncertain. The amount of
future losses is susceptible to changes in econaparating and other conditions, including charigésterest rates, which may be beyond
the Banks control, and these losses may exceed currentass. Federal regulatory agencies, as an intpgrabf their examination proce:
review the Bank’s loans and allowance for loandgs@\lthough the Company believes that the Baaowance for loan losses is adequa
provide for probable losses, there are no assusdheg future increases in the allowance for lamsés will not be needed or that regulators
will not require the Bank to increase its allowan€gher of these occurrences could materially amekersely affect the Company’s earnings
and profitability.

The Company has experienced increases in the lef/alsn-performing assets in recent periods. Then@amy'’s total non-performing assets
totaled $31.00 million at December 31, 2011, $2%fifon at December 31, 2010, and $23.50 millio®acember 31, 2009. The Company
had $9.32 million of net loan charge-offs for theayended December 31, 2011, compared to $12.56mdahd $9.31 million in net loan
charge-offs for the years ended December 31, 26d®809, respectively. The Company’s provisionléan losses was $9.05 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011, $14.76 million ferymar ended December 31, 2010, and $15.80 mftiothne year ended December
2009. At December 31, 2011, the ratios of the Camijsaallowance for loan losses to non-performingne and to total loans outstanding
were 104.5% and 1.88%, respectively. Additionatéases in the Company’s non-performing assetsaor dbharge-offs may require an
increase to the allowance for loan losses, whichlvbave an adverse effect upon the Company’sdutesults of operations.

The declining real estate market could impact ther@pany’s business.

The Company’s business activities are conductddrginia, West Virginia, North Carolina, Tennesseel the surrounding regions. Over the
past several years, the real estate market in teggens experienced declines with falling homegsiand increased foreclosures. As a result
of the Company’s elevated net charge-offs duriig pleriod and in recognition of the continued detation in the real estate market and the
potential for further increases in non-performisgets, the Company increased its provision for losses over historical levels during 2009,
2010, and 2011. A continued downturn in this reglaeal estate market could hurt the Company’srass because its operations are
concentrated within this geographic area and tisé majority of the Company’s loans are securedeay estate. If there is a further decline in
real estate values, the collateral for the Compatoans will provide less security. As a resule @ompany'’s ability to recover on defaulted
loans by selling the underlying real estate willdiminished, and it will be more likely to sufferdses on defaulted loans.

Additionally, recent weakness in the secondary migide residential lending could have a materialeade impact on the Company’s
profitability. Significant ongoing disruptions ihe& secondary market for residential mortgage Ibane limited the market for and liquidity
most mortgage loans other than conforming Fannie & Freddie Mac loans. The effects of ongoinggage market challenges, combil
with the ongoing correction in residential realbéstmarket prices and reduced levels of home sadet] adversely affect the value of
collateral securing mortgage loans, mortgage logginations and gains on sale of mortgage loansti@oed declines in real estate values
home sales volumes, and
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financial stress on borrowers as a result of jaisés or other factors, could have further advdfeete on borrowers that result in higher
delinquencies and greater charge-offs in futur@per which could materially and adversely affést Company.

The Company'’s level of credit risk may increase dodts focus on commercial lending and the conceaiton on small businesses and
middle market customers with significant vulneralhyl to economic conditions.

Commercial business and commercial real estateslganerally are considered riskier than single lfaresidential loans because they have
larger balances to a single borrower or group lated borrowers. Commercial business and commeaeagdlestate loans involve risks bece

the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans typicallgpends primarily on the successful operatiomeftiusinesses or the properties securing the
loans. Most of the Company’s commercial busineaadcare made to small business or middle mark#&tmigss who may have a significant
vulnerability to economic conditions. Moreover,@fmon of these loans have been made or acquirgdebompany in recent years and the
borrowers may not have experienced a complete éssior economic cycle. At December 31, 2011, thagamy’s largest outstanding
commercial business loan and largest outstandingrarcial real estate loan amounted to $6.18 milliod $7.30 million, respectively. At
such date, the Company’s commercial business laemsinted to $93.31 million, or 6.68% of the Compsamgtal loan portfolio, and the
Company’s commercial real estate loans amount&8%6.96 million, or 39.90% of the Company'’s totan portfolio.

In addition to commercial real estate and commehbtiainess loans, the Company holds a portfolicosfimercial construction loans.
Construction loans generally have a higher riskos$ primarily due to the critical nature of théial estimates of a property’s value upon
completion of construction compared with the estedacosts, including interest, of construction &l as other assumptions. If the estimates
upon which construction loans are made prove tm&ecurate, the Company may be confronted withgatejthat, upon completion, have
values which are below the loan amounts. WhileGbmpany is not aware of any specific, material idipents impacting any of its
builder/developer borrowers at this time, thereticores to be nationwide reports of significant peots which have adversely affected many
property developers and builders as well as thiitutisns that have provided those loans. If sigaifit numbers of the builder/developers to
which the Company has extended construction logpergénce the type of difficulties that are beiegarted, it could have adverse
consequences upon future results of operationBe&ember 31, 2011, the Company’s largest outstgrmbmmercial construction loan
amounted to $5.74 million. At such date, the Comyfmoommercial construction loans amounted to $6hafllion, or 4.42% of the
Company’s total loan portfolio.

The Bank may suffer losses in its loan portfoliogfgte its underwriting practices.

The Bank seeks to mitigate the risks inherent&Bhnk’s loan portfolio by adhering to specific endriting practices. These practices
include analysis of a borrower’s prior credit higtdinancial statements, tax returns and cash floeyections, valuation of collateral based on
reports of independent appraisers and verificatidiquid assets. Although the Bank believes thatinderwriting criteria are appropriate for
the various kinds of loans it makes, the Bank nmayii losses on loans that meet its underwritingiga, and these losses may exceed the
amounts set aside as reserves in the Bank’s alloaviam loan losses.

Changes in the fair value of the Company’s secwggimay reduce its stockholders’ equity and net imen

At December 31, 2011, $482.43 million of the Compsusecurities were classified as available-foesalt such date, the aggregate
unrealized losses on the Company’s available-fler-securities totaled $21.74 million. The Compamyréases or decreases stockholders’
equity by the amount of the change in the unredlgan or loss (the difference between the estichftie value and the amortized cost) of the
Company’s available-for-sale securities portfoliet of the related tax effect, under the categbacoumulated other comprehensive loss.
Therefore, a decline in the estimated fair valuthf portfolio will result in a decline in repodetockholders’ equity, as well as book value
per common share and tangible book value per conghare. This decrease will occur even though tbergees are not sold. In the case of
debt securities, if these securities are never aottthere are no credit impairments, the decrewilsbe recovered at the maturity of the
securities. In the case of equity securities wiiatie no stated maturity, the declines in fair vathay or may not be recovered over time.

The Company conducts periodic reviews and evalnatid its entire securities portfolio to determihtihe decline in the fair value of any
security below its cost basis is other-than-temporfgactors which the Company considered in itdyasigmof debt securities include, but are
not limited to, intent to sell the security, evideravailable to determine if it is more likely thamt that the Company will have to sell the
securities before recovery of the amortized cosd, @obable credit losses. Probable credit losse=saluated based upon, but are not limited
to: the present value of future cash flows, theesgvand duration of the decline in fair valuetiog security below its amortized cost, the
financial condition and near-term prospects ofitiseer, whether the decline appears to be relate$ter conditions or general market or
industry conditions, the payment structure of theusity, failure of the security to make schedutgdrest or principal payments, and changes
to the
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rating of the security by rating agencies. The Canypgenerally views changes in fair value for dedwturities caused by changes in interest
rates as temporary, which is consistent with thm@any’s experience. If the Company deems suchrdetdi be other-than-temporary, the
security is written down to a new cost basis amdrésulting loss is charged to earnings as a coengaf noninterest income. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized-titan-temporary impairment (“OTTI") charges of 32 million on its debt securities
portfolio.

Factors that the Company considers in its anabfségjuity securities include, but are not limitedihtent to sell the security before recovery
of the cost, the severity and duration of the aecin fair value of the security below its cosg fimancial condition and ne#@rm prospects
the issuer, and whether the decline appears telated to issuer conditions or general market dustry conditions. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recognized no Oidiges on its equity securities portfolio.

The Company continues to monitor the fair valuéoéntire securities portfolio as part of its omgpOTTI evaluation process. No assurance
can be given that the Company will not need togace OTTI charges related to securities in tharfut

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act of 2010 may have a miateeffect on the Company’s
operations.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into feasDiodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Btiote Act of 2010, or the Dodd-
Frank Act, which imposes significant regulatory aodnpliance changes. The key provisions of the Dledahk Act that are anticipated to
affect the Company’s operations include:

» changes to regulatory capital requireme

» creation of new government regulatory agenciesuitiag the Consumer Financial Protection Bure
» limitation on federal preemptiol

» changes in insured depository institution regufegiand assessments; ¢

* mortgage loan origination and risk retenti

Many of the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act Wil implemented over time and most will be subje¢he rulemaking process at various
regulatory agencies. Given the uncertainty assediaith the manner in which the provisions of thedB-Frank Act will be implemented by
the various regulatory agencies and through reiguistthe full extent of the impact such requiretaemill have on the Company’s operations
is unclear. The changes resulting from the DoddHErect may impact the profitability of our businesdivities, require changes to certain of
our business practices, impose upon more strirgapital, liquidity and leverage requirements oreottise adversely affect our business.
These changes may also require the Company totisiggsficant management attention and resourcesatuate and make any changes
necessary to comply with new statutory and regyatequirements. Failure to comply with the newuiegments or with any future changes
in laws or regulations may negatively impact owutes of operations and financial condition.

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject toegsive regulation which could adversely affect them

The Company and its subsidiaries’ operations dp@stito extensive regulation and supervision liefal and state governmental authorities
and are subject to various laws and judicial amdiaitrative decisions imposing requirements arstrietions on part or all of the Company’
operations. Banking regulations governing the Camysaoperations are primarily intended to protegpakitors’ funds, federal deposit
insurance funds and the banking system as a wholestockholders. Congress and federal regulatpeneies continually review banking
laws, regulations and policies for possible chan@ésnges to statutes, regulations or regulatoligips, including changes in interpretation
or implementation of statutes, regulations or peticcould affect the Company in substantial angredictable ways. Such changes could
subject the Company to additional costs, limittypees of financial services and products the Compaay offer and/or increase the ability of
non-banks to offer competing financial services pratlucts, among other things. Failure to complh\waws, regulations or policies could
result in sanctions by regulatory agencies, civahey penalties and/or reputation damage, whichdchave a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and rexfligperations. While the Company has policies piodtedures designed to prevent any
such violations, there can be no assurance that\satations will not occur. These laws, rules aadulations, or any other laws, rules or
regulations that may be adopted in the future,ccouhke compliance more difficult or expensive,niesthe Company’s ability to originate,
broker or sell loans, further limit or restrict tamount of commissions, interest or other chargeseal on loans originated or sold by the B
and otherwise adversely affect the Company’s bgsirfiimancial condition or prospects.

The financial services industry is likely to facerieased regulation and supervision as a resthieafecent financial crisis. Such additional
regulation and supervision may increase the Comipagts and limit its ability to pursue busineppartunities. The affects of such recently
enacted, and proposed, legislation and regulatagrams on the Company cannot reliably be detemnat¢his time.
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The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is subject tegulatory limitations which, to the extent the Comapy requires such dividends in the
future, may affect the Compar's ability to pay its obligations and pay dividends

The Company is a separate legal entity from thekBend its subsidiaries and does not have signifioparations of its own. The Company
currently depends on the Bank’s cash and liquigétyvell as dividends from the Bank to pay the Camgjsoperating expenses and divide
to its stockholders. No assurance can be madéntiiae future the Bank will have the capacity ty plze necessary dividends and that the
Company will not require dividends from the Bankstiisfy the Compang’obligations. The availability of dividends frohetBank is limitec
by various statutes and regulations. It is possitd@ending upon the financial condition of the Band other factors, that the Federal
Reserve Board or the Virginia Bureau, the Bankimpry regulators, could assert that payment ofddimds or other payments by the Bank
are an unsafe or unsound practice. In the ever@dné is unable to pay dividends sufficient to fgtthe Company’s obligations or is
otherwise unable to pay dividends to the CompdreyGompany may not be able to service its obligatas they become due, including
payments required to be made to the FCBI CapitasfT a business trust subsidiary of the Compangagrdividends on the Company’s
Common Stock or Series A Preferred Stock. Consetydine inability to receive dividends from theldacould adversely affect the
Company’s financial condition, results of operasipcash flows and prospects.

The Company faces strong competition from otherdircial institutions, financial service companies drother organizations offering
services similar to those offered by the Companyl @s subsidiaries, which could hurt the Compé’s business.

The Company’s business operations are centere@plynn Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolinana Tennessee. Increased competition
within these regions may result in reduced loagipnations and deposits. Ultimately, the Company matybe able to compete successfully
against current and future competitors. Many coitgrstoffer the types of loans and banking servibes the Bank offers. These competitors
include other savings associations, national banegonal banks and other community banks. The Gompjalso faces competition from ot
types of financial institutions, including financempanies, brokerage firms, insurance companiedijtarnions, mortgage banks and other
financial intermediaries. In particular, the Banktampetitors include other state and national bamkksmajor financial companies whose
greater resources may afford them a marketplacerdgige by enabling them to maintain numerous bankitations and mount extensive
promotional and advertising campaigns.

Additionally, banks and other financial institutwith larger capitalization and financial interrigtes not subject to bank regulatory
restrictions have larger lending limits and ara¢hg able to serve the credit needs of larger i€Fhese institutions, particularly to the ex
they are more diversified than the Company, magtde to offer the same loan products and servitsthe Company offers at more
competitive rates and prices. If the Company isim#o attract and retain banking clients, the Canypmay be unable to continue the Bank’s
loan and deposit growth and the Company’s busiriss)cial condition and prospects may be negatiaéfected.

Potential acquisitions may disrupt the Compé’s business and dilute stockholder value.

The Company may seek merger or acquisition parthetsare culturally similar and have experiencethagement and possess either
significant market presence or have potentialfgorioved profitability through financial managemestpnomies of scale or expanded
services. Acquiring other banks, businesses, ordes involves various risks commonly associated agquisitions, including, among other
things:

* Potential exposure to unknown or contingent litieti of the target compan

» Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofdhget company

» Difficulty, expense, and delays of integrating tieerations and personnel of the target comp

» Potential disruption to the Comp¢'s business

» Potential diversion of the Compé's manageme’s time and attentior

» The possible loss of key employees and customettsedhrget compan'

« Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrapany.

» Potential changes in banking or tax laws or regadatthat may affect the target compa

» Unexpected costs and dela

» Risks that the acquired target company does nédnmerconsistent with the Compé’s growth and profitability expectatior
» Risks associated with entering new markets or prodreas where the Company has limited experie

» Risks that growth will strain the Company’s infrasture, staff, internal controls and managemehtclwmay require additional
personnel, time and expenditur

» Potential sho-term decreases in profitabilit
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The Company regularly evaluates merger and acguisipportunities and conducts due diligence aigizirelated to possible transactions
with other financial institutions and financial gees companies. As a result, merger or acquisdisoussions and, in some cases,
negotiations may take place and future mergergsquisitions involving the payment of cash or treuence of debt or equity securities may
occur at any time. Acquisitions typically involMeetpayment of a premium over book and market valres, therefore, some initial dilution
of the Company’s tangible book value and net incperecommon share may occur in connection withfatyre transaction. Furthermore,
failure to realize the expected revenue increases,savings, increases in geographic or prodestgoice, and/or other projected benefits |
an acquisition could have a material adverse effedhe Company’s financial condition and resuftsperations.

The Company may engage in FDIC-assisted transacsiowhich could present additional risks to its boess.

The Company may have opportunities to acquire $iseta and liabilities of failed banks in FDIC-assistransactions, which present the risks
of acquisitions discussed above, as well as soske specific to these transactions. Because FD$3tad acquisitions provide for limited
diligence and negotiation of terms, these transastmay require additional resources and timeudioh servicing acquired problem loans
and costs related to integration of personnel gedtaiing systems, and the establishment of prosgéssrvice acquired assets. Such
transactions may also require the Company to eaisi@ional capital, which may be dilutive to exigtistockholders. If the Company is ung

to manage these risks, FDIC-assisted acquisitionkldave a material adverse effect on its busjrigemcial condition and results of
operations.

Attractive acquisition opportunities may not be akable in the future.

The Company expects that other banking and finanompanies, many of which have significantly geeaesources, will compete with it to
acquire financial services businesses. This comimetould increase prices for potential acquisisithat the Company believes are attractive.
Also, acquisitions are subject to various regulagprovals. If the Company fails to receive thprapriate regulatory approvals, it will not

be able to consummate an acquisition that it betigs in its best interests. Among other things,Glompany’s regulators consider the
Company’s capital, liquidity, profitability, regutary compliance and levels of goodwill and intalgfwhen considering acquisition and
expansion proposals. Any acquisition could be tituto the Company’s earnings and stockholdersitgguer share of the Company’s
Common Stock and Series A Preferred Stock.

The Company’s goodwill may be determined to be iimgé

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying amount ofGbhenpanys goodwill was $83.06 million. The Company testedwill for impairment ol
an annual basis, or more frequently if necessanpt€ market prices in active markets are the dngdence of fair value and are to be use
the basis for measuring impairment, when availabteer acceptable valuation methods include presgoe measurements based on
multiples of earnings or revenues, or similar perfance measures. If the Company determines thattinging amount of its goodwill
exceeds its implied fair value, the Company wowdddquired to write-down the value of the goodwillits balance sheet. This, in turn,
would result in a charge against earnings and, thusduction in the Company’s stockholders’ eqaitd certain related capital measures.
During 2011, the Company recognized a charge @&4illion to write-down the value of goodwill dsiinsurance agency subsidiary.

The Company may lose members of its management taathhave difficulty attracting skilled personnel.

The Companys success depends, in large part, on its abiligtttact and retain key people. Competition forlibst people can be intense
the Company may not be able to hire such people @tain them. The unexpected loss of servicdepfpersonnel of the Company could
have a material adverse impact on its businesaibeaaf their skills, knowledge of the Company’s kedyyears of industry experience and
the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replament personnel. In addition, recent regulatorypsals and guidance relating to
compensation may negatively impact the Companyilghato retain and attract skilled personnel.

An increase in FDIC deposit insurance premiums cduhdversely affect the Compa’s earnings.

Market developments have significantly depletedDite of the FDIC and reduced the ratio of reseeeissured deposits. As a result of
recent economic conditions and the enactment obtiad Frank Act, the FDIC revised its assessment rateshawhised deposit premiums -
certain insured depository institutions. If theseréases are insufficient for the DIF to meetutsding requirements, further special
assessments or increases in deposit insuranceymmsmaay be required. The Company is generally en@btontrol the amount of premiums
that it is required to pay for FDIC insurance Héte are additional bank or financial instituti@ildres, the FDIC may increase the deposit
insurance assessment rates. Any future assessiimenégses or required prepayments in FDIC ins@wamnemiums may materially adversely
affect the Company’s earnings and could have anmhtaverse effect on the value of its Common stoc
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The Company may seek to raise additional capitatlie future, and such capital may not be availalde acceptable terms or at all.

The Company may seek to raise additional capittiérfuture to provide it with sufficient capit&sources and liquidity to meet its
commitments, business needs, and growth objecipaetcularly if its asset quality or earnings weseleteriorate significantly. The
Company’s ability to raise additional capital wdpend on, among other things, conditions in tipalamarkets at that time, which are
outside of its control, and its financial perforrmanEconomic conditions and the loss of confidéndaancial institutions may increase the
Company’s cost of funding and limit access to dertaistomary sources of capital, including interdblorrowings, repurchase agreements
and borrowings from the discount window of the FRRBy occurrence that may limit the Company’s actegte capital markets may
adversely affect the Company’s capital costs amdbility to raise capital and, in turn, its ligiyd Accordingly, the Company cannot provide
any assurance that additional capital will be ad#@ on acceptable terms or at all. An inabilitydise additional capital on acceptable terms
could have a materially adverse effect on the Camygebusinesses, financial condition and resultspsrations.

Liquidity risk could impair the Companr’s ability to fund operations and jeopardize itsfincial condition.

Liquidity is essential to the Company’s business.idability to raise funds through deposits, borireyg, equity and debt offerings and other
sources could have a substantial negative effeth@Company’s liquidity. The Company’s accessutading sources in amounts adequate to
finance its activities, or on terms attractivelie Company, could be impaired by factors that atfee Company specifically or the financial
services industry in general. Factors that coutdrdentally impact the Company’s access to liqyidiburces include a reduction in its credit
ratings, if any, an increase in costs of capitdlnancial capital markets, a decrease in the le¥/ék business activity due to a market
downturn or adverse regulatory action against the@any, or a decrease in depositor or investoridenée. The Company’s access to
liquidity sources could also be impaired by factibigt are not specific to it, such as a severaipgigin of the financial markets or negative
views and expectations about the prospects fofitaacial services industry as a whole.

The Company’s controls and procedures may fail @ @ircumvented.

Management regularly reviews and updates the Coyparternal controls over financial reporting, dissure controls and procedures, and
corporate governance policies and procedures. gsiem of controls, however well designed and opelras based in part on certain
assumptions and can provide only reasonable, rsoflale, assurances that the objectives of thersyate met. Any failure or circumvention
of the Company’s controls and procedures or faitareomply with regulations related to controls gmdcedures could have a material
adverse effect on the Company'’s business, resdiparations and financial condition.

The failure of other financial institutions could dversely affect the Company.

The Company'’s ability to engage in routine fundiransactions could be adversely affected by fufaiteres of financial institutions and the
actions and commercial soundness of other finamtstitutions. Financial institutions are intertteld as a result of trading, clearing,
counterparty and other relationships. The Compasyaxposure to different industries and counteégsaand routinely executes transactions
with counterparties in the financial services indysncluding brokers and dealers, commercial Isaitkvestment banks, investment
companies and other institutional clients. In dartd these transactions, the Company is requivgubst collateral to secure the obligations to
the counterparties. In the event of a bankruptapswlvency proceeding involving one of such coypaeties, the Company may experience
delays in recovering the assets posted as collateraay incur a loss to the extent that the couypatey was holding collateral in excess of the
obligation to such counterparty.

In addition, many of these transactions exposeéCthapany to credit risk in the event of a defaultliy Company’s counterparty or client. In
addition, the credit risk may be exacerbated whercbllateral held by the Company cannot be rediids liquidated at prices not sufficient
to recover the full amount of the loan or derivatexposure due to the Company. Any losses resutimg the Company’s routine funding
transactions may materially and adversely affacfiitancial condition and results of operations.

The Company is subject to environmental liabilitisk associated with lending activities.

A significant portion of the Company’s loan portéols secured by real property. During the ordinemyrse of business, the Company may
foreclose on and take title to properties secucegain loans. In doing so, there is a risk thaiaihdous or toxic substances could be found on
these properties. If hazardous or toxic substaase$ound, the Company may be liable for remediatiosts, as well as for personal injury
and property damage. Environmental laws may regh@eCompany to incur substantial expenses andmaagrially reduce the affected
property’s value or limit the Company’s ability tiee or sell the affected property. Although the @any has policies and procedures to
perform an environmental review before initiatintydoreclosure action on real property, these resigay not be sufficient to detect all
potential environmental hazards. The remediati@iscand any other financial liabilities associatétth an environmental hazard could hav
material adverse effect on the Company’s finamialdition and results of operations.
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Risks Associated with the Company’s Common Stock
The Company’s Common Stock price can be volatile.
Stock price volatility may make it more difficulbf holders of the Company’s Common Stock to regk#n desired. The Company’s
Common Stock price can fluctuate significantly @#sponse to a variety of factors including, amorgeothings:
» Actual or anticipated variations in quarterly reésuf operations
» Recommendations by securities analy
» Operating and stock price performance of other coigs that investors deem comparable to the Com
* News reports relating to trends, concerns and dslsees in the financial services indus
e Perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Cosnpad/or its competitor:
* New technology used, or services offered, by coitgrst

» Significant acquisitions or business combinati@istegic partnerships, joint ventures or capibahmitments by or involving the
Company or its competitor

» Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize apatéd benefits from acquisitior
» Changes in government regulatio
e Geopolitical conditions such as acts or threatebrism or military conflicts

General market fluctuations, industry factors aadegal economic and political conditions and eviesush as economic slowdowns or
recessions, interest rate changes or credit leasi$r could also cause the Company’s Common Staak o decrease regardless of operating
results.

The trading volume in the Company’s Common Stockedss than that of other larger financial servicesmpanies.

Although the Company’s Common Stock is listed fading on the NASDAQ, the trading volume in its Goon Stock is less than that of
other, larger financial services companies. A putsthding market having the desired characteristicgepth, liquidity and orderliness depe

on the presence in the marketplace of willing bayerd sellers of the Company’s Common Stock agarsn time. This presence depends on
the individual decisions of investors and genecah®mic and market conditions over which the Comggdaas no control. Given the lower
trading volume of the Company’s Common Stock, digaint sales of the Company’s Common Stock, oretigectation of these sales, could
cause the Company'’s stock price to fall.

The Company may not continue to pay dividends an@mmon Stock in the future.

The Company’s Common Stockholders are only entitbegceive such dividends the Company’s boardrettbrs declares out of funds
legally available for such payments. Although trerpany has historically declared cash dividendéso@ommon Stock, it is not required to
do so and may reduce or eliminate its Common Stibdhend in the future. This could adversely affdet market price of the Company’s
Common Stock. Also, the Company is a financial hmgjdcompany and its ability to declare and paydbwids is dependent on certain federal
regulatory considerations, including the guidelinéthe Federal Reserve Board regarding capitajaaley and dividends.

An investment in the Compars Common Stock is not an insured deposit.

The Company’s Common Stock is not a bank deposit tuerefore, is not insured against loss by th&CF-Bny other deposit insurance fund
or by any other public or private entity. Investrngnthe Company’s Common Stock is inherently riséythe reasons described in this “Risk
Factors”section and elsewhere in this report and is sulbjeitte same market forces that affect the pricaimon stock in any company.

a result, holders of the Company’s Common Stocldctmse some or all of their investment.

Certain banking laws may have an anti-takeover effe

Provisions of federal banking laws, including redaty approval requirements, could make it moréatilt for a third party to acquire the
Company, even if doing so would be perceived tbédxgeficial to the Company’s shareholders. Theseigioms effectively inhibit a non-
negotiated merger or other business combinatioighyim turn, could adversely affect the marketerof the Company’s Common Stock.
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The Company issued Series A Preferred Stock, whiehks senior to its Common Stock

The Company issued 18,921 shares of Series A Redf&tock in May 2011. The Series A Preferred Staoks senior to shares of the
Company’'s Common Stock. As a result, the Companstmake dividend payments on its Series A Prefegtedk before any dividends can
be paid on the Company’s Common Stock and, in ¥leateof its bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidatighe holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock must be satisfied before any distributionslma made on the Company’s Common Stock. If the gaomy does not remain current in the
payment of dividends on the Series A PreferrediStoc dividends may be paid on its Common Stocladdition, the dividends declared on
the Series A Preferred Stock will reduce any netiine available to holders of Common Stock and egenper common share.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
The Company has no unresolved staff comments @ediiing date of this 2011 Annual Report on FatfK.

ITEM 2.  Properties.

The Company’s corporate headquarters are locat@d@iCommunity Place in Bluefield, Virginia, whehe Company owns and occupies
approximately 36,000 square feet of office spaceaddition to its corporate headquarters, the Calyijpacommunity banking segment
operated 55 banking centers, loan production, aidirative, or other financial services offices ad@mber 31, 2011, of which 45 were ow
and 11 were leased or located on leased land. didriy centers were located throughout Virginia,s¥\Wérginia, North Carolina, and
Tennessee. The Company'’s insurance services sedpauquarters are located at 711 Gallimore DaitgdRo High Point, North Carolina.
Including its headquarters, the Company’s insuraeggnent operated seven insurance offices at Dere3db 2011, of which one was
owned, four were leased, and two were located witie Company’s banking centers. The insurancecygeffices were located throughout
North Carolina, West Virginia, and Virginia. Therere no mortgages or liens against any propertgefCompany. A complete list of
branch and ATM locations can be found on the Comisamebsite at www.fcbhinc.com. Information contadnen such website is not part of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. See “Note 6 — Rsemand Equipmentif the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementtem 8 hereir

ITEM 3.  Legal Proceedings

The Company is currently a defendant in variousllegtions and asserted claims in the normal cafrbesiness. Although the Company
and legal counsel are unable to assess the ultméteme of each of these matters with certaitigy are of the belief that the resolution of
these actions should not have a material advefset @i the financial position, results of opermasipor cash flows of the Company.

ITEM 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5.  Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities.
Common Stock Market Prices and Dividends

The number of Common Stockholders of record on dsalyr27, 2012, was 2,757 and outstanding sharaketb17,849,376. The number of
Common Stockholders is measured by the numbercofdeholders. The Company’s Common Stock tradeh®NASDAQ Global Select
market under the symbol “FCBC”.

The Company'’s ability to pay dividends on its Conm&iock is principally dependent on the Bank’sigbtb pay dividends to the Company,
which is subject to various regulatory restrictiamsl limitations. For information on the regulatoegtrictions and limitations on the ability
the Company to pay dividends to its stockholdes@mthe Bank to pay dividends to the Company,'Besiness — Regulation and
Supervision — The Company — Regulatory Restrictmm®ividends; Source of Strength.” and “Busine$®egulation and Supervision — The
Bank — Restrictions on Distribution of Subsidiarsirik Dividends and Assets” in Item 1 herein. Casiddinds on Common Stock totaled
$0.40 per share for 2011 and $0.40 per share i.Z04tal dividends paid on Common Stock for thergemded December 31, 2011, and
December 31, 2010, totaled $7.16 million and $milion, respectively. Total cash dividends paidtha Company’s Series A Preferred
Stock for the year ended December 31, 2011, to&#&8 thousand.

The following table sets forth the high and lowcétprices and dividends paid per share on the Cagip&ommon Stock during the periods
indicated:

2011 2010
High Low High Low
Sales Price Per Shar
First quartel $15.4: $12.2¢ $13.3¢ $10.9¢
Second quarte 15.21 12.9¢ 17.3i 12.5¢
Third quartel 14.6( 9.4( 16.0¢ 12.0Z
Fourth quarte 13.02 9.4¢ 15.8¢ 12.5¢
2011 2010

Cash Dividends Per Share

First quartel $ 0.1C $ 0.1C

Second quarte 0.1C 0.1C

Third quartel 0.1C 0.1C

Fourth quarte 0.1C 0.1C

Total $ 0.4C $ 0.4C

Stock Repurchase Plan

The following table provides information with regspéo purchases made by or on behalf of the Compamayy “affiliated purchaser” (as
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchangg étthe Company’s Common Stock during the fourtlanter of 2011

Total Total Number of Maximum Number of
Number of Average Shares Purchased ¢
Price Paid Shares That May
Shares Part of a Publicly Yet be Purchased
Purchasec per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan (1)
October -31, 2011 — $ — — 886,69:
November -30, 2011 33,20( 11.7(C 33,20( 853,49
December -31, 2011 — — — 866,55¢
Total 33,20( $ 11.7C 33,20(

(1) The Company’s stock repurchase plan, as ameradéubrized the purchase and retention of upi0Q000 shares. The plan has no
expiration date and currently is in effect. No det@ation has been made to terminate the plan cease making purchases. The
Company held 233,446 shares in treasury at Decefihet011
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Total Return Analysis

The following chart was compiled by SNL Financi& Land compares cumulative total shareholder reifithe Company’s Common Stock
for the five-year period ended December 31, 201th the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Indne NASDAQ Composite Index, and
the Asset Size & Regional Peer Group. The Assat &iRegional Peer Group consists of 48 bank holdimgpanies that are traded on the
NASDAQ, OTC Bulletin Board, and pink sheets wittelaassets between $1 billion and $5 billion arellacated in the Southeast Regior
the United States. The cumulative returns includevestment of dividends by the Company.

Total Return Performance
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12731/0B 1213007 12731408 12/31/03 23110 1231
Period Ending
Index 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/0¢ 12/31/0¢ 12/31/1C 12/31/11
First Community Bancshares, Inc. 100.0¢ 83.3C 94.3¢ 33.4( 42.6z 36.7¢
S&P 500 100.0C 105.4¢ 66.4€ 84.0t8 96.71 98.7¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0C 110.6¢ 66.4z 96.5/ 114.0¢ 113.1¢
Asset & Regional Peer Gro® 100.0¢ 75.3¢ 70.71 52.1¢ 56.7¢ 50.41

(1) The Asset Size & Regional Peer Group consistBeofollowing institutions: 1st United Bancormcl, American National Bankshares,
Inc., Ameris Bancorp, BancTrust Financial Group, JiBank of the Ozarks, Inc., BNC Bancorp, Burkél&rbert Bank & Trust
Company, Capital City Bank Group, Inc., Cardinaildticial Corporation, Carter Bank & Trust, CentetStanks, Inc., City Holding
Company, Colony Bankcorp, Inc., Eastern VirginimBshares, Inc., Fidelity Southern Corporation, tfBancorp, First Citizens
Bancshares, Ins., First M&F Corporation, First S#gGroup, Inc., First Southern Bancorp, Inc., FNBited Corp., Great Florida
Bank, Hamilton State Bancshares, Inc., Hampton R&=hkshares, Inc., Home BancShares, Inc., Midd¢eBinancial Corporation,
National Bankshares, Inc., NewBridge Bancorp, P#iigancshares, Inc., Peoples Bancorp of North I@&rdnc., Pinnacle Financi
Partners, Inc., Premier Financial Bancorp, Incndant Corporation, SCBT Financial Corporation c8ast Banking Corporation of
Florida, Simmons First National Corporation, Soasstern Bank Financial Corporation, Southern Baneh@.C.), Inc., Southern
Community Financial Corporation, State Bank Finah€orporation, StellarOne Corporation, Summit Rizial Group, Inc., Tennessee
Commerce Bancorp, Inc., TowneBank, Union First Maankshares Corporation, Virginia Commerce Bamclmc., Wilson Bank
Holding Company, and Yadkin Valley Financial Corgiion. The returns of each of the foregoing infitius have been weighted
according to their respective stock market capigion at the beginning of each period for whidletarn is indicatec
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following consolidated selected financial datderived from the Company’s audited financiatestgents as of and for the five years
ended December 31, 2011. The consolidated finadatal should be read in conjunction with Managefaddiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations dredG@onsolidated Financial Statements and relategbiacluded in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. All of the Company’s acquisitions durithge five years ended December 31, 2011, were ateddior using the purchase method.
Accordingly, the operating results of the acquicethpanies are included with the Company’s resiiltperations since their respective dates
of acquisition.

At or for the year ended December 31,
Five-Year Selected Financial Data 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Amounts in thousands, except per share d
Balance Sheet Summary (at end of period)

Securities $ 48592( $ 484,70. $ 493,51 $ 529,39 $ 676,19
Loans held for sal 5,82( 4,69/ 11,57¢ 1,024 811
Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc 1,396,06 1,386,201 1,393,93. 1,298,15! 1,225,50:
Allowance for loan losse 26,20¢ 26,48: 24,27, 17,78: 12,83:
Total asset 2,164,78 2,244,23! 2,273,28. 2,132,18 2,149,83!
Deposits 1,543,46 1,620,95! 1,645,96! 1,503,75! 1,393,44.
Borrowings 295,14: 332,08 352,55¢ 381,79: 517,84
Total liabilities 1,859,06! 1,974,36! 2,021,011 1,912,97. 1,932,741
Preferred stoc 18,92: — — 41,50( —
Total stockholder equity 305,72¢ 269,87¢ 252,26' 219,21! 217,09¢
Summary of Earnings

Interest incomt $ 94,17¢ $ 10358: $ 107,93: $ 110,76 $ 127,59:
Interest expens 22,147 29,72¢ 38,68 44,93( 59,27¢
Net interest incom 72,02¢ 73,85) 69,25: 65,83 68,31t
Provision for loan losse 9,047 14,757 15,80: 9,22¢ 717
Net interest income after provision for loan los 62,98: 59,10( 53,45 56,60 67,59¢
Noninterest incom 35,53¢ 40,50¢ (53,677 2,37¢ 24,83
Noninterest expens 68,91¢ 69,94 66,62¢ 60,51¢ 50,46:
Income (loss) before income tax 29,60! 29,66¢ (66,85() (1,539 41,96¢
Income tax expense (benel 9,57: 7,81¢ (28,159 (3,487%) 12,33¢
Net income (loss 20,02¢ 21,847 (38,69¢) 1,95¢ 29,63:
Dividends on preferred stox 703 — 2,16( 25E —
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol 19,32t 21,847 (40,85¢) 1,69¢ 29,63:

Per Share Data

Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 1.0¢ $ 12:  $ (279 % 0.1t  $ 2.64
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 1.07 $ 12:  $ (279 % 0.1t  $ 2.62
Cash dividends per common sh $ 04C % 04C % 03C $ 1.1z $ 1.0¢
Book value per common share at \-end $ 159 $ 1511 $ 14.X $ 15.3¢ $ 19.6]
Selected Ratios

Return on average ass 0.8&8% 0.97% -1.82% 0.0&% 1.3%%
Return on average common eqt 6.81% 8.11% -16.7% 0.86% 13.5%%
Average equity to average ass 13.4%% 11.91% 10.95% 9.86% 10.3(%
Dividend payou 37.0% 32.5% N/M@®) N/M @ 40.91%
Risk based capital to risk adjusted as 18.15% 15.32% 13.81% 12.9/% 12.3%%
Leverage ratic 11.5% 9.44% 8.51% 9.7(% 8.09%

(1) N/M - Not meaningfu
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ITEM 7.  Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
Executive Overview

First Community Bancshares, Inc. is a financiadimaj company that, through its bank subsidiaryyjgi®s commercial banking services and
has positioned itself as a regional community bemd a financial services alternative to larger Isamkich often provide less emphasis on
personal relationships, and smaller community bavikish lack the capital and resources to efficiestirve customer needs. The Company
has focused its growth efforts on building finahgartnerships and more enduring and completeioakstiips with businesses and individuals
through a very personal and local approach to lmgn&nd financial services. The Company and itsatfmers are guided by a strategic plan
which includes growth through acquisitions and tigto office expansion in market areas including Wiy West Virginia, North Carolina,
South Carolina, and Tennessee. While the Compamnigsion remains that of a community bank, managéineieves that entry into new
markets will accelerate the Company’s growth ratelibersifying the demographics of its customerebasd customer prospects and by
generally increasing its sales and service network.

Economy

The local economies in which the Company operatesli@erse and span a four-state region. The ec@sonfi West Virginia and Southwest
Virginia have significant exposure to extractivdustries, such as coal, timber and natural gaslodat economies in the central portion of
North Carolina have suffered in recent years duergign competition in both furniture and textiles well as consolidation in the financ
services industry. Despite these detractions, tba@mies in this region continue to benefit frontioreal companies operating in the Triad
Central Piedmont area of North Carolina. The Eastérginia local economies have, in recent yeaesdfited from key corporate and
government activities. The economy in Eastern Tes@e continues to benefit from the stability ohligeducation, healthcare services and
tourism.

Despite the stable and positive aspects of th@nagjeconomies in which the Company primarily opesathe Company’s markets have
experienced significant declines in residentialalepment and construction, not inconsistent wittiomal trends. These declines have led to
contraction in residential land development andstroiction, which has historically been importaninpmnents of the Company’s lending
activities. The economies of the Company’s Southwaginia and West Virginia markets have remaistable compared with the national
economy and unemployment levels were generally idlaan the national average at December 31, 2011.

Competition

As the Company competes for increased market simatgrowth in both loans and deposits, it continaesncounter strong competition from
many sources. Many of the markets targeted by tiragany are also being entered by other banks iropead distant markets. The
expansion of banks, credit unions, and other depesitory financial companies over recent yeassimansified competitive pressures on t
deposit generation and retention. Competitive foingact the Company through pressure on inteiektsy product fees, and loan structure
and terms; however, the Company has countered fhiessures with its relationship style of bankicgnpetitive pricing, cost efficiencies,
and a disciplined approach to loan underwriting.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementpegpared in accordance with U.S. generally acdegteounting principles (“GAAP")
and conform to general practices within the bankirdystry. The Company’s financial position andufessof operations are affected by
managemens application of accounting policies, including guadents made to arrive at the carrying value oftassad liabilities and amour
reported for revenues, expenses and related diselsDifferent assumptions in the applicationhefse policies could result in material
changes in the Company’s consolidated financiaitiposand consolidated results of operations.

Estimates, assumptions, and judgments are necqwsacipally when assets and liabilities are regdito be recorded at estimated fair value,
when a decline in the value of an asset carrietherfinancial statements at fair value warrantg@wairment write-down or valuation reserve
to be established, or when an asset or liabiligdsgo be recorded based upon the probability @iroence of a future event. Carrying assets
and liabilities at fair value inherently resultsnitore financial statement volatility. The fair vatuand the information used to record valuation
adjustments for certain assets and liabilitiesbased either on quoted market prices or are prdvigethird party sources, when available.
When third party information is not available, vatiion adjustments are estimated by management pigrttarough the use of financial
modeling techniques and appraisal estimates.

The Company’s accounting policies are fundamentahiderstanding Management’s Discussion and Arabfskinancial Condition and
Results of Operation. The following is a summaryh&f Company’s more subjective and complex “critica
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accounting policies.” In addition, the disclosupessented in the Notes to Consolidated FinancatkStents and in Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations provide information on how significassets and liabilities are valued in the
financial statements and how those values arerdated. Based on the valuation techniques usedrendensitivity of financial statement
amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimatkslying those amounts, management has identifiestment valuation, determinati

of the allowance for loan losses, accounting faguégitions and intangible assets, and accountingnfome taxes as the accounting areas that
require the most subjective or complex judgments.

Investment Securitie

Management performs an extensive review of thesitment securities portfolio quarterly to determiine cause of declines in the fair valu
each security within each segment of the portfdllee Company uses inputs provided by an indepentedtparty to determine the fair
values of its investment securities portfolio. Itgpprovided by the third party are reviewed andalmorated by management. Evaluations of
the causes of the unrealized losses are performmaetérmine whether the impairment is temporargtber-than-temporary in nature.
Considerations such as the Company’s intent adityatioi hold the securities, recoverability of timwested amounts over the Company’s
intended holding period, severity in pricing deelicredit rating, and receipt of amounts contrdlytutuie, among other factors, are applied in
determining whether a security is other-than-teraplyrimpaired. If a decline in value is determirtecbe other-than-temporary, the value of
the security is reduced and a corresponding chargarnings is recognized.

Allowance for Loan Loss¢

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probdabses inherent in the loan portfolio,
is based on management’s evaluation of the riskisaroan portfolio and changes in the nature aidmie of loan activity. The Company
consistently applies a review process to periotji@ialuate loans for changes in credit risk. Triscess serves as the primary means by
which the Company evaluates the adequacy of tbevatice for loan losses.

The Company determines the allowance for loan fobganaking specific allocations to impaired loémat exhibit inherent weaknesses and
various credit risk and by general allocationsdmmercial, residential real estate, and consunarddy giving weight to risk ratings,
historical loss trends and management’s judgmemt@ming those trends, and other relevant facldrese factors may include, but are not
limited to, actual versus estimated losses, re¢ji@nd national economic conditions, business segjareh portfolio concentrations, industry
competition and consolidation, and the impact ofggopment regulations. The foregoing analysis i$quered by management to evaluate the
portfolio and calculate an estimated valuationvadioce through a quantitative and qualitative ansitygt applies risk factors to those
identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at Blm¢hportfolio level and the individual loan level fcommercial loans and credit
relationships while the level of consumer and resigl mortgage loan allowance is determined prilman a total portfolio level based on a
review of historical loss percentages and othelitgtige factors including concentrations, indusspecific factors and economic conditions.
The commercial portfolio requires more specificlgsia of individually significant loans and the bawer’'s underlying cash flow, business
conditions, capacity for debt repayment and theatadn of secondary sources of payment, such #stexl. This analysis may result in
specifically identified weaknesses and correspapdpecific impairment allowances. While allocati@me made to specific loans and
classifications within the various categories @fris, the allowance for loan losses is availabl@lidoan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmep@ny’s ongoing evaluation of the required levfa@ltmwance can significantly impact
the Company’s results of operations and finan@aldition and may result in either greater provisiagainst earnings to increase the
allowance or reduced provisions based upon managé&neeirrent view of the portfolio and economic ddions and the application of
revised estimates and assumptions. Differencesdashactual loan loss experience and estimategfeeted through adjustments that are
made by increasing or decreasing the loan lossgioovbased upon current measurement criteria.

Acquisitions and Intangible Asst

The Company may, from time to time, engage in lssrcombinations with other companies. Purchasmiatiog requires the recording of
underlying assets and liabilities of the entity @oed at their fair market value. Any excess of pechase price of the business over the net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. In ingmmhere the price of the acquired business ighessthe net assets acquired, a gain on
purchase is recorded. Fair values are assigned loasguoted prices for similar assets, if readilgiible, or appraisal by qualified
independent parties for relevant asset and lighilitegories. Financial assets and liabilitiestygpecally valued using discount models which
apply current discount rates to streams of cash. fidl of these valuation methods require the usassumptions which can result in alternate
valuations and varying levels of goodwill and amtsusf bargain purchase gain and, in some casestiaatmn expense or accretion income.
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Management must also make estimates of usefularoggic lives of certain acquired assets and ligdsli These lives are used in establisl
amortization and accretion of some intangible asaetl liabilities, such as the intangible assodiatith core deposits acquired in the
acquisition of a commercial bank.

Goodwill is recorded as the excess of the purchése, if any, over the fair value of the acquirext assets. Goodwill is tested annually in the
fourth quarter for possible impairment by compatting fair value of each reporting unit to its ba@ue, including goodwill (step 1). If the
fair value of the reporting unit is greater thalkibok value, no goodwill impairment exists. Howewethe book value of the reporting unit is
greater than its determined fair value, goodwilpaitment may exist and further testing is requteedetermine the amount, if any, of the
actual impairment loss (step 2). The step 1 télstes a combination of two methods to determirefdir value of the reporting units. For b
reporting units, a discounted cash flow model &ated projecting cash flows from operations oflthginess reporting unit, the results of
which are weighted 70%. For the banking reportinig a market multiple model utilizes price to netome and price to tangible book value
inputs for closed transactions and for certain camigized institutions and the results are weigB@&¥. For the insurance reporting unit the
market multiple model primarily utilizes price talss for closed transactions and certain simildnstry public companies and the results are
weighted 30%. The end results for both reportingsuare then compared to the respective book vatuesnsider if impairment is evident.
determine the overall reasonableness of the reputiit computations, the combined computed fdinesés then compared to the overall
market capitalization of the consolidated Compangi@étermine the level of implied control premium.

The discounted cash flow analysis uses estimatémiform of growth and attrition rates, anticightates of return, and discount rates. These
estimates have a direct bearing on the resultsediitipairment testing and serve as the basis foagement’s conclusions as to potential
impairment.

The results of the step 1 analysis performed dufiegourth quarter of 2011 determined that no immpant was evident for the banking
reporting unit. For the insurance reporting unit sitep 1 analysis indicated impairment. A stepdyais was performed for the insurance
reporting unit resulting in impairment to goodvafl $1.24 million. An adjustment to the weightingtbé results, a decline in the market
multiples used, further decline in the banking egtdil insurance industry valuations, or furtheclde in our Common Stock price could
result in future potential impairment.

Income Taxe

The establishment of provisions for federal antestecome taxes is a complex area of accountinglwaiso involves the use of judgments
and estimates in applying relevant tax statutes. Gbmpany operates in multiple state tax jurisdictiand this requires the appropriate
allocation of income and expense to each statedb@sa variety of apportionment or allocation ba3ége Company is also subject to audi
federal and state tax authorities. Results of theskts may produce indicated liabilities whichfeliffrom Company estimates and provisions.
The Company continually evaluates its exposuressible tax assessments arising from audits amidgdts estimate of possible exposure
based on current facts and circumstances.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfaethe tax effects of differing carrying valuesasfsets and liabilities for tax and financial
statement purposes that will reverse in futurequksi Deferred tax assets and liabilities are riftbat currently enacted income tax rates
applicable to the period in which the deferreddagets or liabilities are expected to be realizezktiled. As changes in tax laws or rates are
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities gresedi through the provision for income taxes. Whecoertainty exists concerning the
recoverability of a deferred tax asset, the cagyialue of the asset may be reduced by a valuatiowance. The amount of any valuation
allowance established is based upon an estimdte afeferred tax asset that is more likely thantodie recovered. Increases or decreases in
the valuation allowance result in increases oreks®s to the provision for income taxes.

Recent Acquisitions and Divestitures

In July 2009, the Company acquired TriStone ComtguBank (“TriStone”), based in Winston-Salem, No@hrolina. TriStone had two full
service locations in Winston-Salem, North Caroliacquisition, TriStone had total assets of $&86nillion, total loans of $132.23 million
and total deposits of $142.27 million. Each outdiag common share of TriStone was exchanged f@2 Shares of the CompasyCommor
Stock and the overall acquisition cost was $10.1Bom. The acquisition of TriStone significantlyugmented the Compars/market present
and human resources in the Winston-Salem, NortbliDarmarket.

Greenpoint Insurance Group (“Greenpoint”), a whallyned subsidiary of the Company, has acquired sigemance agencies and sold tf
since its acquisition by the Company in Septem@72In 2011, Greenpoint recorded a net gain oftfi6dsand on the sale of two insurance
agencies and has the potential to recognize atiautli $650 thousand over time as
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earn-out payments are received. In connection thitke sales, the Company eliminated $1.30 milliogoodwill and $379 thousand of other
intangibles to the Company’s balance sheet in 2012010, Greenpoint acquired one insurance agandyissued cash consideration of $190
thousand.

Results of Operations
2011 Compared To 2010

Net income available to common shareholders fol204s $19.33 million, a decrease of $2.52 millimnf $21.85 million in 2010. Basic a
diluted earnings per common share for 2011 weregsdnd $1.07, respectively, as compared to basidéuted earnings per common share
of $1.23 in 2010. The Company’s return on average was 0.88% in 2011 compared to 0.97% in ZR&frn on average common equity
was 6.81% in 2011 compared to 8.11% in 2010.

Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earnings ismetest income, the difference between incomearming assets and the cost of funds
supporting those assets. Significant categoriesmofing assets are loans and securities while deosl borrowings represent the major
portion of interest-bearing liabilities. Net inteténcome was $72.03 million for 2011, as compaoe$i73.86 million for 2010, a decrease of
$1.83 million, or 2.48%. Tax equivalent net intéiesome totaled $74.99 million for 2011, a deceeag$2.23 million, or 2.89%, from
$77.22 million reported for 2010. The decreasaindquivalent net interest income was primarily ttudecreases in the balances of loan:
securities coupled with lower rates of intereshedron those assets.

For purposes of the following discussion, comparigbnet interest income is performed on a taxajant basis, which provides a common
basis for comparing yields on earning assets exémpt federal income taxes to those assets whietildlly taxable (see the table titled
Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Incomeyaisal

Average earning assets decreased $44.31 milliolealkerage interest-bearing liabilities decrease@2$80 million during 2011, as compared
to the prior year. The yield on average earningtasgecreased 39 basis points to 5.01% for 201 5d0% for 2010. Short-term market
interest rates continued to remain low through@it1? as the Federal Reserve Board held the “raoigeéro to 25 basis points as its targe!
federal funds. The prevailing low interest rateiesrwment was the largest driver in the overall dase in the Company'’s yield on average
earning assets.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabilitiesreased 35 basis points to 1.32% during 2011 Cbmepany’s time deposit portfolio
experienced downward repricing during 2011, as nadrige higher-rate certificates were redeemeceoewed at lower rates. The net result
was a decrease of 4 basis points in the net intextesspread, or the difference between intenestme on earning assets and expense on
interest-bearing liabilities, for 2011 compare®@1.0. The net interest rate spread for 2011 weB¥8 Gmpared to 3.73% for 2010. The
Company’s net interest margin, or net interestiinedo average earning assets, of 3.87% for 20T&gepts a decrease of 3 basis points from
3.90% in 2010.

Loan interest income decreased $4.16 million dugi@gyl, as compared to 2010 as the average voluchtharyield on loans decreased.
During 2011, the yield on loans decreased 22 lpasigs to 5.84% while the average balance decrebkse®6 million, as compared to 2010.
During 2011, the yield on available-for-sale setiesidecreased 70 basis points to 3.63% whilevbeage balance decreased $58.12 million,
as compared to 2010.

Average interest-bearing balances that the Compamigtained with third party banks increased $34ilBon during 2011 to $116.06
million, while the yield increased 1 basis poin0t@5% during the same period. Interkestring balances with third party banks are cored
largely of excess liquidity bearing overnight mdrtates.

The average balance of interest-bearing depositedsed $63.44 million, or 4.42%, and the averaggepaid on those deposits decreased 46
basis points to 0.93% during 2011 compared to tloe pear. The average rate paid on interest-bgatémand deposits decreased 23 basis
points, while the average rate paid on savings slegavhich include money market and savings adspuiecreased 43 basis points in 2011
compared to 2010. In 2011, average time depositedsed $77.29 million, or 10.17%, and the averatgepaid on those deposits decreased
44 basis points to 1.68%, as compared to 2010d€heease can be attributed to rate sensitive cessonot renewing investments at lower
interest rates. The level of average nonintereatibhg demand deposits increased $16.84 millior2238%23 million in 2011 compared to the
prior year.

The average balance of retail repurchase agreememtsh consists of collateralized retail depoaitsl commercial treasury accounts,
decreased $13.97 million in 2011 and the averagepad on those funds decreased 37 basis poift§586 during the same period. The
average balance of federal funds purchased to#alédhousand in 2011. The average balance of wdlelespurchase agreements remained
unchanged at $50.00 million between 2011 and 2@hde the rate increased 3 basis points due tetire within those borrowings. The
average balance of Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB")
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advances and other borrowings decreased $25.48mitlr 13.10%, and the rate paid on those borrgsvincreased 51 basis points in 2011
compared to 2010. Other borrowings include the Camyis trust preferred issuance of $15.46 milliohjaok is indexed to 3-month LIBOR.
The Company prepaid $25.00 million of a $75.00iomllFHLB convertible advance that carried a 4.00%rest rate during the first quarter
of 2011. The advance was a structured borrowingevtie interest rate floated withn3enth LIBOR, but changed to a 4.00% fixed coshie
first quarter of 2011.

Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Income Aryais

2011 2010 2009
Interest Average Interest Average Interest Average
Average Income/  Yield/Rate Average Income/  Yield/Rate Average Income/  Yield/Rate
Balance  Expense 1) @ Balance _ Expense 1) @ Balance  Expense 1) @
(Amounts in thousand
Earning assel
Loans held for investmer® $1,382,09° $ 80,74 5.84% $1,400,06. $ 84,90¢ 6.06% $1,333,11: $ 82,78¢ 6.21%
Available-for-sale securitie 434,58,  15,77¢ 3.6%% 492,70 21,31 4.3%  537,27¢ 27,63¢ 5.14%
Held-to-maturity securitie: 3,99¢ 33: 8.32% 6,29¢ 53: 8.4t% 7,82¢ 643 8.21%
Interest-bearing deposits with
banks 116,06: 28E 0.25% 81,98’ 194 0.2%% 62,24 16E 0.27%
Total earning asse 1,936,74. 97,13t 5.01% 1,981,051 106,94¢ 54(% 1,940,461 111,23: 5.7%%
Other asset 258,89 282,00! 288,45(
Total $2,195,63! $2,263,05! $2,228,911
Interes-bearing liabilities
Demand deposil $ 277,260 $ 431 0.1€% $ 252,47 $ 98C 0.3% $ 205,99° $  44c 0.22%
Savings deposil 410,24( 88¢€ 0.22% 421,18« 2,751 0.65%  334,21° 2,58¢ 0.77%
Time deposit: 682,997 11,47 1.68% 760,28t  16,15¢ 2.12%  863,35° 24,76¢ 2.87%
Total interest-bearing
deposits 1,370,501  12,78¢ 0.9%% 1,433,94. 19,88 1.3% 1,403,57. 27,79¢ 1.98%
Federal funds purchas 77 — 0.0(% — — — — — —
Retail repurchase agreeme 83,56+ 544 0.65% 97,53: 992 1.02% 101,77 1,37t 1.3¢%
Wholesale repurchase agreeme 50,00( 1,887 3.71% 50,00( 1,872 3.7% 50,00( 1,92z 3.84%
FHLB borrowings and other long
term debr 168,98¢ 6,92¢ 41(%  194,46: 6,974 3.5%%  204,67¢ 7,58¢ 3.71%
Total borrowings 302,62¢ 9,35¢ 3.0%  341,99. 9,83¢ 2.88% 356,450 10,88¢ 3.05%
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 1,673,12! 22,147 1.32% 1,775,93. 29,72t 1.67% 1,760,02. 38,68: 2.2(%
Noninteres-bearing demand
deposits 223,23 206,39t 199,91°
Other liabilities 4,127 11,28( 24,83:
Stockholder equity 295,15( 269,44¢ 244,13
Total $2,195,63! $2,263,05! $2,228,91!
Net interest income, t-equivalent $ 74,98¢ $ 77,22: $ 72,54¢
Net interest rate sprei® 3.6% 3.7% 3.5%
Net interest margi® 3.87% 3.9(% 3.74%

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 35“FTE").
Non-accrual loans are included in average balancesamdlisig but with no related interest income dutimg period of no-accrual.
Represents the difference between the tax equivgileld on earning assets and cost of fui
Represents t-equivalent net interest income divided by averagerést earning asse
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Rate and Volume Analysis of Interest

The following table summarizes the changes in guialent interest earned and paid detailing thewarts attributable to (i) changes in
volume (change in the average volume times the gdar’s average rate), (ii) changes in rate (ckarng the average rate times the prior
yeal's average volume), and (iii) changes in rate/vaujchange in the average volume column times thagdin average rate):

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31, 2011 Compared to 2010 December 31, 2010 Compared to 2009
Dollar Increase/(Decrease) due to Dollar Increase/(Decrease) due to
Rate/ Rate/

(Amounts in thousand Volume Rate Volume Total Volume Rate Volume Total
Interest Earned Ol

Loans (FTE $(1,089) $(3,080) $ 5 $(4,169 $4,15¢ $(2,000 $ (37) $ 2,121

Securities availab-for-sale (FTE (2,517 (3,449 42& (5,53f) (2,29])) (4,357 31&¢ (6,329

Securities hel-to-maturity (FTE) (195) (8) 3 (200 (12€) 20 (4) (110

Interes-bearing deposits with other bar 82 8 1 91 53 (19) (5) 29
Total interes-earning asset (3,719 (6,529 437 (9,81) 1,79¢ (6,351 27Z (4,285
Interest Paid Or

Demand deposil 97 (587) (65) (549 10z 35C 85 537

Savings deposil (71) (1,81) 17 (1,865 67C (401) (106 162

Time deposit: (1,639 (3,345 29¢ (4,68%) (2,95¢) (6,47%) 824 (8,609

Federal funds purchas — — — — — — — —

Retail repurchase agreeme (142) (361) 55 (44¥) (57 (336 10 (383)

Wholesale repurchase agreeme — 15 0 15 — (50 0) (50

FHLB borrowings and other lo-term deb: (914) 99z (1249 (46) (379 (246) 10 (615)
Total interes-bearing liabilities (2,669 (5,09) 182 (7,57¢) (2,627 (7,158 82F (8,95))
Change in net interest income, -equivalent $(1,050 $(1,43f) $ 255 $(2,23%) $4,41€¢ $ 807 $(551) $4,67-

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is determined by rgan#ent as the amount to be added to the allowamdean losses after net charge-offs
have been deducted to bring the allowance to d Vevieh, in management’s best estimate, is necgdeaabsorb probable losses within the
existing loan portfolio. The provision for loan &&s for 2011 was $9.05 million, a decrease of $illion compared to 2010. The decrease
in the loan loss provision is primarily attributexdecreasing net charge-offs during 2011; howeyealitative risk factors for the loan
portfolio remained high, reflective of the elevatesk of inherent loan losses due to continued higbmployment, recessionary pressures
devaluations of various categories of collaterat dharge-offs for 2011 and 2010 were $9.32 milaod $12.55 million, respectively. Net
charge-offs, as a percentage of average loansakmt to 0.67% for 2011 from 0.90% for 2010. Seesdliteial Position -Allowance for Loal
Losses” for additional information.

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues thanat included in interest and fee income relavegktrning assets. Noninterest income
2011, exclusive of the impact of OTTI charges aaihg on the sale of securities, was $32.56 miliompared to $32.42 million in 2010, an
increase of $135 thousand, or 0.42%. See “FinaRdsition — Available-for-Sale Securities” for infieation relating to the Company’s
securities.

Wealth management income, which includes feesriist services and commission and fee income gestefat investment advisory servic
decreased $318 thousand in 2011 to $3.51 millionpaoed to 2010, as a result of a decrease in aghdgsovice revenue. Service charges on
deposit accounts increased $110 thousand in 20813@4 million compared to 2010, as a result ofharease in non-sufficient funds fee
income. Other service charges, commissions and&flested an increase of $648 thousand in 2011peoed to 2010, primarily due to a
continued increase in debit card interchange incasthe Company’s customers increasingly choselmamsdd payment delivery systems.
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Insurance commissions earned in 2011 were $6.amdompared to $6.73 million in 2010, a decreafs$530 thousand, as a result of the
sale of two agency offices and continued soft cms impacting policy and premium levels. Revefareghe insurance subsidiary is derived
primarily from commissions earned on the sale opprty and casualty policies.

Other operating income for 2011 was $3.89 millian,ncrease of $225 thousand from 2010. The lagggaponents of the increase in other
operating income for 2011 were increased reverara fecondary market mortgage operations of $132tmal, increased bank-owned life
insurance income of $102 thousand, increased remt@aine of $92 thousand, and net gains recognirdti®sale of insurance agency offices
and accounts of $67 thousand.

During 2011, the Company recognized net securifiss of $5.26 million, a decrease of $3.01 millicm net securities gains of $8.27
million recognized in 2010.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $68.92 million fat2@& decrease of $1.03 million from 2010. Saleaias benefits decreased $402 thousand
in 2011 compared to 2010. At December 31, 2011Cimpany had total full-time equivalent employeE638 compared to 683 at
December 31, 2010. Full-time equivalent employeescalculated using the number of hours workede@peint accounted for 48 full-time
equivalent employees at year-end 2011 comparefl &i $ear-end 2010. Total full-time equivalent eoyeles at the Bank and its investment
advisory firm totaled 585 at December 31, 201leeehse of 39 full-time equivalent employees sibeeember 31, 2010. Health insurance
costs increased $517 thousand, or 17.38%, and ¥éd(kloyer matching costs increased $217 thougarth.34%. The Company also
deferred $269 thousand less in direct loan origgnatosts than in 2010 primarily due to lower an@fion volumes.

Occupancy, furniture, and equipment expenses deetle$381 thousand in 2011 to $9.77 million, as @meghto $10.15 million in 2010, due
to branch closings and insurance agency sales.

FDIC premiums and assessments totaled $1.98 miti@®11, a decrease of $872 thousand compare@l®. Zhe decrease is attributed to
modifications in the FDIG assessment methodology in April 2011 that chatiyedssessment base for deposit insurance prerfiom®ne
based on domestic deposits to one based on avewagelidated total assets minus average tangiligyeq

Other operating expenses decreased $32 thous@0d Into $20.31 million, as compared to 2010. Cbatmg to the reduction in other
operating expenses were decreases in professicr@l@ting fees, service fees, and regulatory assgds of $553 thousand, $373 thousand,
and $211 thousand, respectively. These decreagesasially offset by increases in interchangeesges, consulting fees, communications
expenses, and legal fees of $267 thousand, $18&dhd, $148 thousand, and $107 thousand, resggciso included in other operating
expenses was a $362 thousand increase in lossedhandexpenses related to foreclosed propertieishwvas $3.44 million in 2011
compared to $3.08 million in 2010. As of Decembgr&011, the Company recognized a goodwill impantad $1.24 million in the
insurance reporting unit. Despite strong operatiedormance and positive market experience in s#ldse Company’s non-core agencies,
market multiples and other valuation indicators aendepressed resulting in a lower valuation ofitiseirance segment.

The Company uses an efficiency ratio that is a @&#P financial measure of operating expense corinal efficiency of operations.
Management believes this ratio better focuses tatenn the core operating performance of the Campmever time than does a GAAP-based
ratio, and is highly useful in comparing periodperiod operating performance of the Company’s boigness operations. It is used by
management as part of its assessment of its peafarenin managing noninterest expenses. Howevsrptbasure is supplemental and is not a
substitute for an analysis of performance base@AAP measures. The efficiency ratio used by the gamy may not be comparable to
efficiency ratios reported by other financial itigtions.

In general, the efficiency ratio used by the Conypamoninterest expenses as a percentage oftee¢shincome plus noninterest income.
Noninterest expenses used in the calculation erahathrecurring expenses. Income for the ratiodeeimsed for the favorable effect of -
exempt income (see Average Balance Sheets andhi¢ees$t Income Analysis), and excludes securitidissgand losses, which vary widely
from period to period without appreciably affectiogerating expenses, nonrecurring gains and loaedsDTTI charges. The measure is
different from the GAAP-based efficiency ratio, whialso is presented in this report, which is daked using noninterest expense and
income amounts as shown on the face of the CometidStatements of Income. Both types of efficiemtip calculations are set forth and
are reconciled in the table below.
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The (non-GAAP) efficiency ratios for continuing epgons for 2011, 2010, and 2009 were 59.23%, 688,08d 60.09%, respectively. The
following table details the components used indhaleulation of the efficiency ratios:

2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousand
GAAP-based efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens $ 68,91! $ 69,94: $ 66,62
Net interest income plus noninterest incc $107,56: $114,36! $ 15,57¢
GAAP-based efficiency rati 64.071% 61.16% 427.7¢%
Non-GAAP efficiency ratio
Noninterest expens— GAAP-basec $ 68,91¢ $ 69,94! $ 66,62«
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Foreclosed property exper (3,447 (3,079 (763
Prepayment penalties on FHLB advan 471) — (88)
Merger related expens — — (1,726
FDIC special assessmel — — (98¢)
Goodwill impairment (1,239 (1,039 —
Other nol-core, norrecurring expense iten (77) (4) (225)
Adjusted no-interest expense $ 63,68 $ 65,82: $ 62,83
Net interest income plus noninterest inc— GAAP-basec $107,56: $114,36! $ 15,57¢
Plus no-GAAP adjustment
Tax equivalency adjustme 2,95¢ 3,36¢ 3,297
Less no-GAAP adjustments
Net (gains) losses on sale of securi (5,269 (8,277) 11,67:
Net impairment losses recognized in earni 2,28t 18t 78,86
Net gains on acquisitior — — (4,497
Other noi-core, norrecurring income item (18) — (340
Adjusted net interest income plus noninterest
income $107,52! $109,64: $104,57!
Non-GAAP efficiency ratic 59.23% 60.02% 60.09%

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal and starent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxreggof the Company. Income taxes as a
percentage of pre-tax income may vary significafrtiyn statutory rates due to items of income arukase which are excluded, by law, from
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaremonly referred to as permanent differences.fbst significant permanent differences
for the Company include income on municipal se@siwhich are exempt from federal income tax, tedasidend payments which are
deductible by the Company, and the increases ioabbk surrender values of life insurance policies.

Consolidated income taxes for 2011 were $9.57 aniliompared to income taxes of $7.82 million in@®or the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, the effective tax expense rates 3282% and 26.35%, respectively. The increaskdreffective rate can be attributed to a
reduction in the impact of both tax exempt incomd state income taxes combined with a reducti@0itD income tax expense necessary to
reconcile the Company’s reported tax expense Withactual expense as presented in the Company3staf0@eturn filed with the Internal
Revenue Service and state taxation authorities.

2010 Compared To 2009

Net income available to common shareholders fo0204s $21.85 million, an increase of $62.70 millimm a net loss available to comm
shareholders of $40.86 million in 2009. Basic aitdteld earnings per common share for 2010 were3tdoMpared to basic and diluted los
per common share of $2.75 in 2009. The 2009 netttosommon shareholders was impacted by pre-tpainment charges and losses on the
sale of securities amounting to $90.54 million. Ta@mpany’s return on average assets was 0.97%lid @mpared to a negative 1.83% in
2009. Return on equity was 8.11% in 2010 comparedrtegative 16.73% in 2009.
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Net Interest Income

The primary source of the Company’s earnings igmetest income, the difference between incomearning assets and the cost of funds
supporting those assets. Significant categoriempoifing assets are loans and securities while deosl borrowings represent the major
portion of interest-bearing liabilities. Net inteténcome was $73.86 million for 2010 compared6.35 million for 2009, an increase of
$4.61 million, or 6.65%. Tax equivalent net interiesome totaled $77.22 million for 2010, an ingeaf $4.67 million, or 6.44%, from
$72.55 million reported for 2009. The increaseaix ¢quivalent net interest income was primarily thudecreases in time deposits and
borrowing costs as a result of repricing opporiesithroughout a sustained low rate environment.

For purposes of the following discussion, comparigbnet interest income is performed on a taxajant basis, which provides a common
basis for comparing yields on earning assets exémpt federal income taxes to those assets whietiidlly taxable (see the table titled
Average Balance Sheets and Net Interest Incomey8isal

Average earning assets increased $40.59 milliofevevierage interedtearing liabilities increased $15.91 million duri2@10, as compared
the prior year. The changes include the full yegract of the July 2009 TriStone acquisition. Theld/ion average earning assets decreas
basis points to 5.40% for 2010 from 5.73% for 20B8ort-term market interest rates remained lowughout 2010, as the Federal Reserve
Board held the “range” of zero to 25 basis poististarget for federal funds. The prevailing limterest rate environment was the largest
driver in the overall decrease in the Company’tdydm average earning assets.

Total cost of average interest-bearing liabilitiesreased 53 basis points to 1.67% during 2010CBmepany’s time deposit portfolio
experienced downward repricing during 2010, as nudrilie higher-rate certificates were renewed @&tlorates, or not renewed. The net
result was an increase of 20 basis points in théterest rate spread, or the difference betwatarest income on earning assets and expenst
on interest-bearing liabilities, for 2010 compate®009. The net interest rate spread for 20103¥&3% compared to 3.53% for 2009. The
Company’s net interest margin, or net interestinedo average earning assets, of 3.90% for 20I@septs an increase of 16 basis points
from 3.74% in 2009.

Loan interest income increased $2.12 million du@26d0, as compared to 2009 as average volume setewhile the yield on loans
decreased 15 basis points during the same perizihd2010, the yield on available-for-sale sedesiiecreased 81 basis points to 4.33%
while the average balance decreased $44.58 milimepmpared to 2009.

Average interest-bearing balances that the Compeaigtains with third party banks increased $19.15an during 2010 to $81.99 million,
while the yield decreased 3 basis points to 0.24%nd the same period. Interest-bearing balanc#sthird party banks are comprised
largely of excess liquidity bearing overnight mdrkaes.

The average balances of interest-bearing depositsased $30.37 million, or 2.16%, while the avenage paid during 2010 decreased 59
basis points when compared to the prior year. Teeage rate paid on interest-bearing demand degasiteased 17 basis points, while the
average rate paid on savings, which includes mamaket and savings accounts, decreased 12 basis poR2010 compared to 2009. In
2010, average time deposits decreased $103.06millhile the average rate paid decreased 75 basitsfo 2.12%, as compared to 2009.
The decrease can be attributed to customers mawinmgre liquid investment accounts and the nonwahef certificates at lower interest
rates. The level of average noninterest-bearingatheindeposits increased $6.48 million to $206.40oniin 2010 compared to the prior year.

The average balance of retail repurchase agreenvamitsh consist of collateralized retail depositsl@zommercial treasury accounts,
decreased $4.24 million in 2010 and the averagepaid on those funds decreased 36 basis poitt®286 during the same period. There
were no federal funds purchased on average dufii§.Z'he average balance of wholesale repurchaseragnts remained unchanged at
$50.00 million between 2010 and 2009, while the decreased 10 basis points due to structure witibse borrowings. The average balance
of Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") advances anceotiorrowings decreased $10.22 million, or 4.99%]erthe rate paid on those
borrowings decreased 12 basis points in 2010 coedtar2009. Other borrowings include the Compatryst preferred issuance of $15.46
million, which is indexed to 3-month LIBOR.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses for 2010 was $14.16an, a decrease of $1.04 million compared to 20Dhe elevated loan loss provision is
primarily attributable to high loss factors as deairge-offs increased during 2010. Qualitative féktors remained high, reflective of the
higher risk of inherent loan losses due to risingmployment, recessionary pressures, and devatsatfovarious categories of collateral. Net
charge-offs for 2010 and 2009 were $12.55 milliod &9.31 million, respectively. Net chargffs, as a percentage of average loans, incr

to 0.90% for 2010 from 0.70% in 2009. See “Finahesition — Allowance for Loan Losses” for addita information.
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Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consists of all revenues thanat included in interest and fee income relategbirning assets. Noninterest income
2010, exclusive of the impact of OTTI charges, gain the sale of securities, and acquisition gawas, $32.42 million compared to $32.37
million in 2009. See “Financial Position — Availakior-Sale Securities” for information relatingttte Company’s securities.

Wealth management income, which includes feesfist services and commission and fee income gestebst advisory services, decreased
$319 thousand in 2010 to $3.83 million comparedd09, a result of a decrease in trust service g®rService charges on deposit accounts
decreased $764 thousand in 2010 to $13.13 milllonpared to 2009, as a result of lower overall coresuspending leading to lower levels
certain activity charges. Other service chargesymoissions and fees reflected an increase of $34g#nd in 2010 compared to 2009, ma
due to increased debit card interchange incomiyea€ompany’s customers increasingly chose cardebpayment delivery systems.

Insurance commissions earned in 2010 were $6.4®mdompared to $6.99 million in 2009. Income fioe insurance subsidiary is derived
primarily from commissions earned on the sale dicjes.

Other operating income for 2010 was $3.66 millian,increase of $1.04 million from 2009. The largeshponents of the increase in other
operating income for 2010 were increased reverara fecondary market mortgage operations of $797stma, a litigation settlement of
$162 thousand, and a gain on the sale of realkest&t146 thousand.

During 2010, the Company recognized net securiféss of $8.27 million, an increase of $19.95 roillirom losses recognized in 2009. In
December 2009, net security losses of $11.67 millicluded four pooled trust preferred securitiglsl ®y the Company that resulted in a |
of $14.82 million.

Noninterest Expense

Total noninterest expense was $69.94 million fak@@n increase of $3.32 million over 2009. Sataaied benefits increased $3.14 million in
2010 compared to 2009. At December 31, 2010, tregany had total full-time equivalent employees &8 8ompared to 646 at

December 31, 2009. Full-time equivalent employeescalculated using the number of hours workede@peint accounted for 59 full-time
equivalent employees at year-end 2010 compared & $ear-end 2009. Total full-time equivalent eoyeles at the Bank and its investment
advisory firm totaled 624 at December 31, 2011linarease of 37 full-time equivalent employees sideeember 31, 2009. Health insurance
costs increased $1.39 million, or 87.70%, and 40&kployer matching costs decreased $250 thousari®.24%. The Company also
deferred $296 thousand less in direct loan origgnatosts than in 2009 primarily due to lower angfion volumes.

Occupancy expenses increased $549 thousand int@&Bd44 million, compared to 2009, due to the yalhr effect of the acquisition of
TriStone and bank building repairs.

FDIC premiums and assessments totaled $2.86 miialecrease of $1.41 million from 2009. Includethie 2009 amount is a special
assessment levied on all banks that approximat8é stbusand for the Company.

Other operating expenses increased $1.84 milli@dk0 to $20.34 million, as compared to 2009. Tiwmary cause for the increase in other
operating expenses was a $2.32 million increasesses on the sale of foreclosed properties, wier1 $3.08 million in 2010 compared to
$763 thousand in 2009. Also contributing to thengf&in other operating expenses were increasegab, ltravel, and interchange expense
$270 thousand, $190 thousand, and $272 thousapkatvely, offset by decreases in consulting t#e&l .69 million. As of December 31,
2010, the Company recognized a goodwill impairn@#$i1.04 million in the insurance reporting unit.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense is comprised of federal and statrent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxreggof the Company. Income taxes as a
percentage of pre-tax income may vary significafrtyn statutory rates due to items of income amukese which are excluded, by law, from
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaremonly referred to as permanent differences.fbst significant permanent differences
for the Company include income on municipal se@sitvhich are exempt from federal income tax, tedasidend payments which are
deductible by the Company, and the increases ioakk surrender values of life insurance policies.

Consolidated income taxes for 2010 were $7.82 oniliompared to an income tax benefit of $28.15ionilin 2009. For the year ended 2010,
the effective tax expense rate was 26.35%. Thetafeetax rate for 2009 was not meaningful duentpre-tax loss.
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Financial Position
Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-for-sale securities were $482.43 millmnDecember 31, 2011, compared to $480.06 milliddexember 31, 2010, an increase of
$2.37 million. The market value of securities aahlé-for-sale as a percentage of amortized cos9®4d8% and 96.40% at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. At December 31, 201l average life and duration of the portfolio wér@5 years and 6.02, respectively.
Average life and duration at December 31, 2010¢ev6eB2 years and 5.77, respectively.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitggs reviewed quarterly for possible OTTI. This eviincludes an analysis of the facts and
circumstances of each individual investment sucthasength of time the fair value has been belost,diming and amount of contractual
cash flows, the expectation for that security’f@enance, the creditworthiness of the issuer aeddbmpany’s intent to hold the security to
recovery or maturity. If a decline in value is deteed to be other-than-temporary, the value ofséurity is reduced and a corresponding
charge to earnings is recognized. In the instafie@edebt security which is determined to be otlanttemporarily impaired, the Company
determines the amount of the impairment due toiteed the amount due to other factors. The amotimpairment related to credit is
recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Incanagethe remainder of the impairment is recognimeather comprehensive income.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 20a@ompany recognized credit-related OTTI changesrnings of $2.29 million and
$134 thousand, respectively, related to benefintakest debt securities. These charges were defata non-Agency Alt-A residential
mortgage-backed security in 2011 and two poolest preferred security holdings in 2010. The Compaapgnized no impairment charges
on equity securities during 2011. The Company razagl impairment charges of $51 thousand on ceeitity holdings during 2010. At
December 31, 2011, the Company’s investment ineiisgue trust preferred securities is compriseidw#stments in 5 of the nation’s 25
largest bank holding companies.

The following table details amortized cost and faitue of available-for-sale securities at Decen@ier2011, 2010, and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amounts in thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ — $ — $10000 $ 9,83 $ 2542: $ 25,27¢
States and political subdivisio 131,49t 137,81! 178,14¢ 176,13t 133,18' 135,60:
Trust preferred securitie
Single issue¢ 55,64¢ 40,24« 55,59« 41,24 55,62« 41,11(
Pooled — — 23 264 1,64¢ 1,64¢
Total trust preferred securiti 55,64¢ 40,24+ 55,61% 41,50¢ 57,27 42,75¢
Corporate FDIC insured securiti 13,68¢ 13,71¢ 25,28: 25,66( — —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 274,38: 280,10: 209,28: 215,010 260,22( 264,21t
Non-Agency prime residenti — — — — 5,74: 5,17(
Non-Agency Ali-A residential 15,98( 10,03( 19,18 11,27 20,96¢ 11,30!
Total mortgag-backed securitie 290,36: 290,13 228,46. 226,29( 286,93 280,68
Equity securitie: 41¢ 521 49t 63€ 1,715 1,73
Total $491,61! $482,43( $498,00! $480,06: $504,52¢ $486,05

Held-to-Maturity Securities

Investment securities classified as held-to-matuit comprised primarily of high grade municipahts. The portfolio totaled $3.49 million
at December 31, 2011, compared to $4.64 milliobetember 31, 2010. This decrease is reflectiveonficuing maturities and calls within
the portfolio. The market value of held-to-matuiiityestment securities was 101.20% and 101.44%aok alue at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
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The following table details amortized cost and faitue of held-to-maturity securities at Decembkr2)11, 2010, and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
(Amounts in thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 349C $353: $ 4637 $4,70¢ $ 7,45/ $7,57¢
Total $ 349C $353: $ 4,637 $4,70¢ $ 7,45¢ $7,57¢

Loans Held for Sale

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company rep@Ge&R2 million and $4.69 million, respectively,lofins held for sale, which represent
mortgage loans sold to investors on a best effmsis. Accordingly, the Company does not retainiriterest rate risk involved in the
commitment. The gross notional amount of outstapdmmitments to originate mortgage loans for qusts at December 31, 2011, was
$9.15 million on 53 loans. The Company sells thesetgages on a best effort basis and generateateogst income through origination fe
servicing release premiums, and yield spread gains.

Loans Held for Investment

Total loans held for investment increased $9.8@ionilto $1.40 billion at December 31, 2011. Therage loan to deposit ratio increased to
86.72% at 2011 compared to 85.35% at 2010. Avdaages held for investment for 2011 of $1.38 billidecreased $17.96 million when
compared to average loans held for investment@a02f $1.40 billion.

The held for investment loan portfolio continuedtowell diversified among loan types and indusggments. The following table presents
the various loan categories and changes in conipo$dr the five years ended December 31, 2011

(Amounts in thousand 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 3548: $ 4269: $ 47,46¢ $ 58,26¢ $ 72,80¢
Land developmer 2,902 16,65( 22,83: 20,67: 30,01
Other land loan 23,38¢ 24,46¢ 32,56¢ 28,59( 27,497
Commercial and industri; 91,93¢ 94,12: 95,11¢ 83,63: 93,85(
Multi -family residentia 77,05( 67,82¢ 65,60: 46,75¢ 37,69
Single family no-owner occupiel 106,74: 104,96( 109,53: 85,24 91,68¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 336,00! 351,90 343,97" 315,54 313,84!
Agricultural 1,37¢ 1,34z 1,251 1,40z 2,41(C
Farmland 37,16! 36,95¢ 41,03¢ 45,337 34,57¢
Total commercial loan 712,04( 740,91¢ 759,37 685,44 704,37t
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 111,38 111,62( 111,59 90,55¢ 67,62¢
Single family owner occupie 473,06 44419° 436,23t 426,77 339,03:
Owner occupied constructic 19,571 18,34¢ 22,02¢ 23,08t 32,99
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 604,03: 574,16¢ 569,86. 540,41- 439,65
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 67,12¢ 63,47°¢ 60,09( 66,25¢ 75,45’
Other 12,86 7,64¢ 4,601 6,04¢ 6,027
Total consumer and other loa 79,99¢ 71,12: 64,69 72,30« 81,47¢
Total loans held for investme 1,396,06 1,386,20! 1,393,93. 1,298,15! 1,225,50!
Less unearned incon — — — 1 3
1,396,06 1,386,20! 1,393,93. 1,298,15! 1,225,50;
Less allowance for loan loss 26,20¢ 26,48: 24,27 17,78: 12,83:
Net loans held for investme $1,369,86; $1,359,72. $1,369,65. $1,280,37¢ $1,212,66!

The Company maintained no foreign loans in thegolsrpresented. The Company’s loans are made plynvathe four-state region in which
it operates. The Company had no concentrationsasfd to one borrower representing 10% or more tstaoding loans at December 31,
2011. The Company had 11.98% of outstanding loansentrated to lessors of residential buildings @ndllings for the year ended
December 31, 2011.
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At December 31, 2011, commercial loans comprise@®4 of the total loan portfolio. Commercial loanslude loans to small to mid-size
industrial, commercial, and service companiesiti@tde, but are not limited to, mining related qmanies, natural gas producers, automobile
dealers, and retail and wholesale merchants. Coniahegal estate projects represent a variety ctiose of the commercial real estate market,
including single family and apartment lessors, caruial real estate lessors, residential land d@esi and hotel/motel operators.
Underwriting standards require that comprehensveews and independent evaluations be performedetits exceeding predefined size
limits on commercial loans. Updates to these l@aews are done periodically or on an annual bdejieending on the size of the loan
relationship.

At December 31, 2011, consumer oriented real ektates comprised 43.27% of the total loan portidResidential real estate loans include
loans to individuals within the Company’s markettfarint for the acquisition or construction of owrecupied homes, as well as, home
equity loans and lines of credit. Underwriting stards require that borrowers meet certain cratipme and collateral underwriting stand.
at origination.

The following table details the maturities and rsea@sitivity of the Company’s loan portfolio at @ecber 31, 2011:

Remaining Maturities

Over One
One Year to Over Five
(Amounts in thousand and Less Five Years Years Total
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 7,35¢ $ 23,35¢ $ 4,76¢ $ 35,48:
Land developmer 1,05¢ 1,84 — 2,902
Other land loan 14,61« 8,63¢ 134 23,38¢
Commercial and industri 15,12¢ 63,56+ 13,25( 91,93¢
Multi -family residentia 16,797 50,18¢ 10,06t 77,05(
Single family no-owner occupiel 13,45: 76,89( 16,401 106,74
Non-farm, nor-residential 63,18’ 233,02¢ 39,78¢ 336,00
Agricultural 41C 964 — 1,374
Farmland 11,22¢ 16,76: 9,17: 37,16
Total commercial loan 143,22- 475,24( 93,57¢ 712,04(
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 7,84¢ 28,52: 75,02 111,38
Single family owner occupie 13,24: 56,44 403,38 473,06
Owner occupied constructic 7,641 5,45¢ 6,472 19,571
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 28,73¢ 90,42: 484,87t¢ 604,03:
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 19,99( 44,20¢ 2,93( 67,12¢
Other 12,77: 94 — 12,86
Total consumer and other loa 32,76 44,30: 2,93( 79,99¢
Total loans $204,72: $609,96¢ $581,38: $1,396,06
Rate Sensitivity
Predetermined rat $108,83( $433,86¢ $245,74! $ 788,44
Floating or adjustable ra 95,89 176,09! 335,63° 607,62:

$204,72: $609,96: $581,38: $1,396,06

The balance of construction loans with maturitieewer five years includes construction to permarhesns which have not converted to
principal and interest payments.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is increased by @sag earnings in the form of provisions and redegeof prior loan charge-offs and
decreased by loan charge-offs. The provision isuwtaled to bring the allowance to a level whictgaading to a systematic process of
measurement, reflects the amount management essinsateeded to absorb probable losses withindftéopo. Additional information
regarding the determination of the allowance fanltosses can be found in “Note 1 — Summary ofifiégmt Accounting Policies” of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Bamerein.
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The Company’s allowance for loan losses was $2@iflion at December 31, 2011, compared to $26.48aniat December 31, 2010, a
decrease of $277 thousand. The decrease in tiveaalb® for loan losses was influenced by net chaffyaetivity during the year, which
totaled $9.32 million as of December 31, 2011,ammared to $12.55 million as of December 31, 2010.

The Company determines the allowance for loan fobgenaking specific allocations to impaired lo#res exhibit inherent weaknesses and
various credit risk and general allocations to caruial loans, consumer residential real estate candumer loans by giving weight to risk
ratings, historical loss trends and managementigment concerning those trends, and other reldaatdrs. The general allocations are
determined through a methodology that utilizesléngfive year average loss history that is adpdstor current qualitative or environmental
factors that management deems likely to cause atthcredit losses as of the evaluation date ferdifom the historical loss experience.
Management considers the allowance adequate basadta analysis of the portfolio as of DecemberZI11; however, no assurance can be
made that additions to the allowance for loan lesgd not be required in future periods.
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The following table details charge-offs and recte®by loan type for the five years ended Decer3te£011:

(Amounts in thousand
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of petr
Acquisition balance
Charge-offs:
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industri;
Multi -family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total charg-offs
Recoveries
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industri
Multi -family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiel
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Consumer and othu
Consumer loan
Other
Total recoverie!

Net charg-offs
Provision charged to operatio

Allowance for loan losses at end of per

Ratio of net charc-offs to average loans outstand
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loanstanding
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$26,48.  $24,270  $17,78:  $12,83:  $14,54¢
— — — 1,16¢
574 1,34z 172 60E 75
724 73€ 92t 1,43( —
61( 632 44z 44 —
417 2,90 3,26: 93¢ 741
2,551 697 — 51 53
1,81 1,66¢ 55( 32C 80
1,07+ 1,66¢ 1,07¢ 558 08¢
— 6 7 60 —
21¢ — 50 — 97
691 1,08¢ 39E 332 11€
1,61¢ 1,59 1,34¢ 972 76€
19t 4 101 12€ —
44¢ 514 1,04: 952 842
53( 75€ 98¢ 984 541
11,46( 13,60: 10,35t 7,371 4,29t
73 17 21 5 3
507 9 — — —
237 11 — — —
271 83 45¢ 572 442
68 12 — — 9
121 39 48 8 21
14¢ 144 10€ 762 23€
1 32 4 1 —
— 31 — — 31
15E 12 1 — 40
63 52 62 112 50€
34 6 2 — —
13¢ 162 34€ 242 35€
31¢ 43¢ — 22( 21€
2,13¢€ 1,05( 1,04¢ 1,92t 1,86z
9,32 12,55 9,30¢ 5,44¢ 2,43
9,047 14,75, 15,80 9,22¢ 717
$26,208  $26,48.  $24,27.  $17,78.  $12,83:
0.67% 0.9(% 0.7(% 0.45% 0.1%
1.86% 1.91% 1.72% 1.37% 1.05%
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The following tables detail the allocation of tHE@&ance for loan losses and the percent of loareach category to total loans for the five
years ended December 31, 2011. During 2011, thep@oysegmented the single family residential [dasscinto owner occupied and I-
owner occupied loan classes. During 2008, the Campwreased the number of individual loan categpanalyzed in the allowance for loan
loss calculation which resulted in a differencéhia loan segmentation for 2007.

2011 2010 2009 2008
Amount @ Percent® Amount @) Percent 2 Amount @) Percent @ Amount @ Percent @
(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 86t 3% $ 1,47: 3% $ 1,191 3% $ 867 5%
Land developmer 481 0% 1,772 1% 2,17¢ 2% 1,29¢ 2%
Other land loan 54¢ 2% 747 2% 64¢€ 2% 71 2%
Commercial and industri; 3,71¢ 7% 4,511 7% 5,09¢ 7% 2,51¢ 6%
Multi -family residentia 1,88¢ 6% 1,081 5% 44¢ 5% 117 4%
Single family non-owner
occupiec 2,96( 8% 3,21¢ 8% 2,26° 8% 1,95¢ 6%
Non-farm, nor-residential 6,93: 24% 2,84¢ 25% 3,931 25% 3,15¢ 24%
Agricultural 19 0% 19 0% 42 0% 31 0%
Farmland 342 3% 70 3% 75 3% 49 4%
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 1,36 8% 2,13¢ 8% 1,19¢ 8% 74¢ 7%
Single family owner occupie 6,13¢ 34% 6,657 32% 4,69( 31% 4,06( 33%
Owner occupied constructic 212 1% 19z 1% 18€ 2% 431 2%
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 742 5% 1,76¢ 5% 1,99( 4% 2,02¢ 5%
Other — 1% — 1% — 0% — 0%
Unallocatec — — 34¢ 45(
Total $ 26,20¢ 101% $ 26,48: 10(% $24,27: 10(% $17,78:. 10C%
2007
Amount @) Percent ®)
(Amounts in thousand
Commercial, financial and agricultur $ 7,11¢ 39%
Real estat— constructior 40¢ 13%
Real estat— mortgage 3,61z 41%
Installment loans to individua 1,69¢ 7%
Total $ 12,83 100%

(1) Represents the amount of the allowance for loasemallocated per loan cla
(2) Represents the percent of loans in each loan as$al loans
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Risk Elements

Non-performing assets include loans on non-accrutdistéoans contractually past due 90 days or modessll accruing interest, unseasoned
loan restructurings, and other real estate own®REO”). The following table presents the levelsioh-performing assets and additional
detail for non-performing and restructured loanstiie five years ending December 31, 2011:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

(Amounts in thousand
Non-accrual loan: $24,48" $19,41¢ $17,527 $12,76: $2,92:¢
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruiteyest — — — — —
Restructured loar® 60C 5,32¢ 1,39( — —
Total nor-performing loan: 25,08 24,73¢ 18,917 12,76: 2,92
OREO 5,91¢ 4,91( 4,57¢ 1,32¢ 54E
Total nor-performing asset $31,00: $29,64¢ $23,49¢ $14,08¢ $3,46¢
Restructured loans performing in accordance withlifiesl terms @ $ 827 $ 3,911 $ 2,062 $ 11z $ 24t
Total restructured loar® 9,45¢ 12,19: 3,56¢ 32¢ 24&
Gross interest income that would have been recardddr original

terms of no-accrual and restructured log 1,15¢ 1,341 69¢ 45¢ 301
Actual interest income during the period on nonraatand restructured

loans 64C 757 39t 89 17¢
Non-performing loans to total loat 1.8(% 1.7¢% 1.3¢% 0.9¢% 0.24%
Non-performing assets to total loans and OR 2.21% 2.1%% 1.68% 1.0€% 0.28%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing loan: 104.5% 107.(% 128.2% 139.2% 439.(%
Allowance for loan losses to n-performing asset 84.5% 89.2% 103.2% 126.2% 370.(%

(1) Unseasoned restructured loans include loans mddifithin the last six months, excluding those on-accrual status
(2) Performing restructured loans include loans modifiethe last six to twelve months, excluding thosenor-accrual status
(3) Total restrucutred loans include all modified loagmecluding those on n-accrual status

Total non-performing assets totaled $31.00 milkw®ecember 31, 2011, compared to $29.65 millidbestember 31, 2010, an increase of
$1.35 million. Non-performing assets increasedry011 as the broad economy and borrowers comtittusuffer through slow growth
economic conditions. At December 31, 2011, thereewae significant potential problem loans beyorosthaddressed in the preceding table.

Non-accrual loans increased $5.07 million to $24.4Bioniat December 31, 2011, compared to $19.4lionilat December 31, 2010. The
majority of the increase in non-accrual loans camatributed to a $4.32 million increase in thegrfamily owner occupied loan class and a
$3.39 million increase in the non-farm, non-rest@dnoan class. These increases were offset B, B2%million decrease in the multi-family
residential loan class and a $787 thousand dechedse single family non-owner occupied loan claésn-accrual loans at December 31,
2011, were primarily comprised of: 33.71% singlenilyt owner occupied loan class; 32.93% non-farmm-residential loan class; and 17.61%
commercial and industrial loan class. Approxima&2y94 million, or 12.02%, of non-accrual loans barattributed to the TriStone loan
portfolio that was acquired during the third quadg2009. Certain loans included in the non-ackccagegory have been written down to the
estimated realizable value or have been assigremifispreserves within the allowance for loan lasbased upon management’s estimate of
loss upon ultimate resolution.

Loan restructurings at December 31, 2011, tota®dSpmillion, net of $3.27 million on non-accruétsis, and the allowance for loan losses
related to restructured loans totaled $1.14 millMhen restructuring loans for troubled borrow#e, Company generally makes concessions
in interest rates and amortization terms. Aftermsbnths of satisfactory payment performance resirad loans are generally removed from
non-performing loans, but remain identified as imghuntil full payment or other satisfaction oéthbligation. As of December 31, 2011,
there were no outstanding commitments to lend sfdit funds to borrowers under restructured loans.
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Ongoing activity within the classification and agaeies of non-performing loans includes collectionsdelinquencies, foreclosures, loan
restructurings, and movements into or out of the-performing classification as a result of changiegnomic conditions, borrower financial
capacity, and resolution efforts on the part of@wenpany. There were no loans 90 days past dustdinatccruing at December 31, 2011 or
2010. OREO was $5.91 million at December 31, 2@hlincrease of $1.00 million from December 31, 2@l is carried at the lesser of
estimated net realizable value or cost. OREO irsm@drom December 31, 2010, as a result of loaslutien and foreclosure activity. OREO
at December 31, 2011, was primarily comprised 2f3% million in the non-farm, non-residential loaass, $1.50 million in the single family
non-owner occupied loan class, and $1.10 milliothensingle family owner occupied loan class. OR&gted in Winston-Salem and
Mooresville, North Carolina; Richmond, Virginia; & ennessee accounted for 50.48%, 20.27%, and 9128%ectively, of total OREO at
December 31, 2011. The present foreclosure pracdésrth Carolina prohibits more timely resolutiofireal estate secured loans within that
state. At December 31, 2011, OREO consisted ofr6@qrties with an average holding period of 5 menBuring the year ended

December 31, 2011, net losses on the sale of OR&@d $2.38 million.

Total delinquent loans as of December 31, 2011 soved 2.62% of total loans, of which 0.87% were pused of loans 30-89 days
delinquent and 1.75% were comprised of loans inamorual status. Total delinquent loans have irsgeéapproximately $233 thousand, or
0.64%, since December 31, 2010. Non-performingdpaomprised of non-accrual loans and unseasomedéstructurings, measured 1.80%
and 1.78% of total loans as of December 31, 20812810, respectively.

The Company has considered all loans determinbd tmpaired in the evaluation of the adequacy efaltowance for loan losses at
December 31, 2011. The Company'’s provision for llosses and the allowance for loan losses remates@ted during 2011 due to the
weakness in the real estate market and the wealosto conditions experienced during the year. Assalt of the elevated levels of charge-
offs and in light of the broader economy, the Conypdeemed it appropriate to maintain an elevateel lef qualitative factors that adjust
upward the historical loss rates in its allowanalei.

The Company maintains an active and robust prololeit identification system. When a credit is itiéed as exhibiting characteristics of
weakening, the Company will assess the credit demtial impairment. Examples of weakening incldéénquency and deterioration of the
borrower’s capacity to repay as determined by amgioing credit review function. As part of the impaéent review, the Company evaluates
the current collateral value. It is the Company&ndard practice to obtain updated third partyatetial valuations to assist management in
measuring potential impairment of a credit andaimunt of the impairment to be recorded, if any.

Internal collateral valuations are generally parfed within two to four weeks of the original idditi@tion of potential impairment and rece
of the third party valuation. The internal valuatis performed by comparing the original appraisaturrent local real estate market
conditions and experience and considers expecjailétion costs. The result of the internal valirais compared to the outstanding loan
balance, and, if warranted, a specific impairmeserve will be established at the completion ofitibernal evaluation.

A third party evaluation is typically received wiiththirty to forty-five days of the completion dfe internal evaluation. Once received, the
third party evaluation is reviewed for reasonalbdsn®©nce the evaluation is reviewed and accepisehuhts to fair market value are applied
based upon such factors as the bank’s historigpaildation experience of like collateral, and arnneated net realizable value is established.
That estimated net realizable value is then contbaréhe outstanding loan balance to determinatheunt of specific impairment reserve.
The specific impairment reserve, if necessarydjasied to reflect the results of the updated eatadun. A specific impairment reserve is
generally maintained on impaired loans during teeqal while awaiting receipt of the third party &ation, as well as on impaired loans that
continue to make some form of payment where ligiotiais not imminent. Impaired loans not meeting #iorementioned criteria and that do
not have a specific impairment reserve typicallyehbeen previously written down through a partierge off to their net realizable value.

The Company’s Special Assets staff assumes thegearent and monitoring of all loans determined tintgaired. While awaiting the
completion of the third party appraisal, the Compgenerally begins to complete the tasks neceseaygin control of the collateral and
prepare for liquidation, including, but not limitéal engagement of counsel, inspection of collatemradl continued communication with the
borrower, if appropriate. Special Assets staff abgularly reviews the relationship to identify gmytential adverse developments during this
time.

Generally, the only difference between current aiged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, amdddrrying amount of the loan less the
specific reserve is any downward adjustment tafiigraised value that the Company’s Special Assafisdetermines appropriate. These
differences generally consist of costs to sellgraperty, as well as a deflator for the devaluatbproperty when banks are the sellers, and
management deems these fair value adjustments.
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Based on prior experience, the Bank does not giyeeturn loans to performing status after thenlo&ave been partially charged off. Cre
identified as impaired move quickly through theqass towards ultimate resolution of the problenditexcept in cases involving bankrup
and various state judicial processes which mayneixtiee time for ultimate resolution.

Deposits

Total deposits were $1.54 billion at December 3,12 a decrease of $77.49 million from $1.62 hillad December 31, 2010. The decrease
was primarily due runoff in the time portfolio. Naterest-bearing demand deposits increased $35lli@mand interest-bearing demand
deposits increased $12.74 million during 2011. Sgwideposits, which consist of money market acesoand savings accounts, decreased
$31.84 million and time deposits decreased $93.#Hilbmduring 2011.

Average total deposits decreased $46.60 milligilt®9 billion during 2011, as compared to $1.64dnilduring 2010. Average interest-
bearing demand deposits increased $24.79 millisimg2011 to $277.26 million. Average noninterestting demand deposits increased
$16.84 million to $223.23 million while savings asjits decreased $10.94 million to $410.24 millieming 2011. Average time deposits
decreased $77.29 million in 2011. The averagepaitd on interesbearing deposits during 2011 was 0.93%, down 48 lpasnts from 1.399
in 2010. Throughout 2011, the Company decreasdtthigte certificates of deposit in an effort tonage net revenues and net interest
margin.

Borrowings

The Company’s borrowings consist primarily of sétes sold under agreements to repurchase andrelnB borrowings. This category of
liabilities represents wholesale sources of fundingd liquidity for the Company.

Short-term borrowings decreased on average $13il86mfor 2011 compared to the prior year as aitiesf decreasing funding needs and
strong deposit inflows. Average federal funds pass totaled $77 thousand at December 31, 201te Tere no federal funds purchased at
December 31, 2010. Repurchase agreements totak&d21million and $140.89 million at December 3012 and 2010, respectively. Retall
repurchase agreements are sold to customers dg@rative to traditional deposit products and careial treasury accounts. At

December 31, 2011 and 2010, wholesale repurchaseragnts totaled $50.00 million and the weightestaye rate was 3.71%. The
underlying securities included in retail repurchageesements remain under the Company’s controhduhe term of the agreements.

Short-term borrowings include overnight federaldsrand repurchase agreements. Balances and wewglgeabe rates paid on short-term
borrowings used in daily operations are summarazetbllows:

2011 2010 2009

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Amounts in thousand
At year-end $79,20¢ 052% $ 90,89: 0.7% $103,63: 1.22%
Average during the ye: 83,64. 0.6%% 97,53 1.0%  101,77' 1.3%
Maximum montl-end balanc: 96,92 108,64 106,40

At December 31, 2011, FHLB borrowings included $080million in convertible and callable advanceseweighted average interest ratt
all FHLB advances was 4.12% and 2.39% at Decentbe2@®L1 and 2010, respectively. The decrease isadsteucture within those
borrowings. In January 2011, an interest rate sagapement expired that previously hedged $50.00omibf the advances at a fixed rate of
4.34%. At December 31, 2011, the FHLB advancestarities between five and ten years.

Also included in other indebtedness is $15.46 onillof junior subordinated debentures issued byCmpany in October 2003 through FCBI
Capital Trust, an unconsolidated trust subsidiaith an interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus524 The debentures mature in October
2033 and are currently callable at the option ef@mpany.

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased $35.85 million13.28%, from $269.88 million at December 311 @, to $305.73 million at
December 31, 2011. The increase in stockholdergtewas primarily the result of net income of $Z®million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, and the completion of an $1&idlibn capital raise through the private placemeit
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the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock. Other obsungstockholders’ equity included aggregate énitlpayments to common
shareholders of $7.16 million, an increase in aadatad other comprehensive income of $4.86 mildad a decrease in treasury stock of

$1.02 million during the year ended December 31,120

Risk-Based Capital

Risk-based capital guidelines promulgated by statefederal banking agencies weight balance sksetsaand off-balance sheet
commitments based on inherent risks associatedthéthespective asset types. The Company’s anHahk’s capital ratios are presented in
the following table for the dates indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, Ir 18.15% 15.3%

First Community Banl| 16.12% 14.1¢%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, Ir 16.8% 14.01%

First Community Banl| 14.8% 12.92%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage

First Community Bancshares, Ir 11.5(% 9.44%

First Community Banl| 10.08% 8.6€%

See “Note 14 — Regulatory Capital RequirementsRestrictions” in the Notes to Consolidated Finah8iatements in Item 8 herein.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity represents the Company’s ability to resgdo demands for funds and is primarily derivemhfrmaturing investment securities,
overnight investments, periodic repayment of loengipal, and the Company’s ability to generate mwposits. The Company also has the
ability to attract short-term sources of funds dnalwv on credit lines that have been establishéidatcial institutions to meet cash needs.

At December 31, 2011, total liquidity of $468.87lmh was comprised of the following: unencumbecadh on hand and deposits with other
financial institutions of $47.29 million; unpledgasiailable-for-sale securities of $193.63 millibield-to-maturity securities due within one
year of $1.05 million; FHLB credit availability &132.39 million; and federal funds lines availagibf $94.51 million.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-téumction of business management. Excess liquidigeinerally used to pay down
borrowings. On a longer-term basis, the Companytaagis a strategy of investing in securities, magterbacked obligations and loans with
varying maturities. The Company uses these fundseet ongoing commitments, pay maturing certifisatedeposit and savings
withdrawals, fund loan commitments, and maintapogfolio of securities.

The Company also maintains policies and procedegarding liquidity contingency planning. The prdaees call for liquidity monitoring
through trending and ratio analysis, as well asdasting budgeted and stressed scenarios. Thedpresegprovide guidance for potential
action to be taken when certain liquidity thresiscdale met.

Since the Company is a holding company and doesamatuct significant operations, its primary sosroéliquidity are dividends upstrearr
from the Bank and borrowings from outside sour8asking regulations limit the amount of dividentattmay be paid by the Bank. See
“Note 14 — Regulatory Capital Requirements and fiReisins” of the Notes to Consolidated Financiat8tments in Item 8 herein regarding
such dividends. At December 31, 2011, the Compayliquid assets, including cash and investmenirgess, totaling $25.35 million.

At December 31, 2011, approved loan commitmentstantiing amounted to $194.27 million and time diépasheduled to mature in one
year or less totaled $355.84 million. Managemeliebes that the Company has adequate resourcesdooutstanding commitments a
could either adjust rates on certificates of ddpasirder to retain or attract deposits in chaggirterest rate environments or replace such
deposits with advances from the FHLB or other fupidssiders if it proved to be cost effective tosim
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The following table presents contractual cash aliggns as of December 31, 2011:

Total Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Three to More than
Total One year Three Years Five Years Five Years
(Amounts in thousand
Deposits without a stated matur®) $ 910,13 $ 910,13 $ — $ — $ —
Overnight security repurchase agreem 66,99 66,99: — — —
Certificates of depos@@) 651,90° 363,50: 154,68: 133,61. 10¢
Term security repurchase agreeme 73,65¢ 8,03¢ 10,21« 28,69¢ 26,71
FHLB advance®® 190,34: 6,18( 12,36( 12,36( 159,44:
Trust preferred indebtedne 28,05¢ 644 1,24¢ 1,24¢ 24,92«
Leases 4,09¢ 952 1,242 56€ 1,33¢
Other commitment 2,96¢ 2,11¢ 85C — —
Total $1,928,14  $1,358,55' $180,59: $176,47¢ $212,52:

(1) Excludes interes

(2) Includes interest on both fixed and variable @bligations. The interest associated with vadgiahte obligations is based upon interest
rates in effect at December 31, 2011. The intécelse paid on variable rate obligations is affedigathanges in market interest rates,
which materially affect the contractual obligatiamounts to be pai

(3) Excludes carrying value adjustments such as una@adrpremiums or discount

The following table presents detailed informatiegarding the Company’s off-balance sheet arrangena¢iecember 31, 2011:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

More than
Less than One to Three to
(Amounts in thousand Total One Year® Three Years Five Years Five Years
Commitments to extend cre(
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $1561C $ 885 $ 2,242 $ 250¢ $ 2,014
Land developmer 1,73t — 1,73¢ — —
Commercial and industri 28,76: 25,437 2,85¢ 34C 127
Multi -family residentia 643 18¢ — 45E —
Single family no-owner occupiel 1,317 35E 81C 10z 49
Non-farm, nor-residential 8,91¢ 4,97 504 60E& 2,83¢
Agricultural 573 523 50 — —
Farmland 1,67C 1,391 20z 77 —
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 78,90¢ 3,317 9,66¢ 13,99: 51,93(
Single family owner occupie 943 202 55 13z 553
Owner occupied constructic 4,21¢ 2,10¢ 13 15 2,081
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 50,98: 50,82¢ 147 1 9
Total unused commitmen $194,27. $ 98,16 $ 18,28: $18,22f $59,60:
Financial letters of cred $ 324 $ 314  $ — $ — $ 10
Performance letters of cre! 2,572 2,182 7 28¢ 94
Total letters of credi $ 289%€ $ 249% $ 7 $ 28 $ 104

(1) Lines of credit with no stated maturity date arduded in commitments for less than one y
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Wealth Management Services

As part of its community banking services, the Campoffers trust management and estate adminitragrvices through its Trust and
Financial Services Division (“Trust Division”). THiErust Division reported a total market value adets under management of $444 million
and $426 million at December 31, 2011 and 201(@eets/ely. The Trust Division manages inter vivassts and trusts under will, develops
and administers employee benefit plans and indalidetirement plans and manages and settles edtadesiary fees for these services are
charged on a schedule related to the size, natgre@mplexity of the account.

The Company also offers investment advisory sesvibeough the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, FEstmmunity Wealth Management,
which reported assets under management of $42@mihd $433 million at December 31, 2011 and 2@d€pectively. Revenues consist
primarily of commissions on assets under managearehinvestment advisory fees.

Insurance Services

The Company offers insurance services througlultsidiary Greenpoint. Revenues are primarily derifrem commissions paid by issuing
companies on the sale of policies. Commission negevas $6.20 million for 2011 compared to $6.73iamlfor 2010. The decrease in
commission revenue reflects the sale of two ageffiges and soft conditions impacting policy anémpium levels. See “Note 19 — Segment
Information” of the Notes to Consolidated Finan@&htements in Item 8 herein.

ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk.

The Company’s profitability is dependent to a laegéent upon its net interest income, which isdifierence between its interest income on
interest-earning assets, such as loans and sesuystid its interest expense on intebestring liabilities, such as deposits and borrowifithe
Company, like other financial institutions, is sedfjto interest rate risk to the degree that isteearning assets reprice differently than
interest-bearing liabilities. The Company managesix of assets and liabilities with the goaldimiiting its exposure to interest rate risk,
ensuring adequate liquidity, and coordinating dsrses and uses of funds while maintaining an dabéplevel of net interest income given
the current interest rate environment.

The Company’s primary component of operational nexe net interest income, is subject to variati®a aesult of changes in interest rate
environments in conjunction with unbalanced repgobpportunities on earning assets and intdseating liabilities. Interest rate risk has fi
primary components: repricing risk, basis risk]djieurve risk and option risk. Repricing risk ocguwhen earning assets and paying liabilities
reprice at differing times as interest rates chaBgsis risk occurs when the underlying rates enagsets and liabilities the institution holds
change at different levels or in varying degreesldrcurve risk is the risk of adverse consequemases result of unequal changes in the sj
between two or more rates for different maturifersthe same instrument. Lastly, option risk is timembedded options, often put or call
options, given or sold to holders of financial mstents.

In order to mitigate the effect of changes in teaeral level of interest rates, the Company maneg@icing opportunities and thus, its
interest rate sensitivity. The Company seeks tdrobits interest rate risk exposure to insulateingerest income and net earnings from
fluctuations in the general level of interest rafes measure its exposure to interest rate risértgry simulations of net interest income are
performed using financial models that project n&triest income through a range of possible intesgstenvironments including rising,
declining, most likely and flat rate scenarios. Biraulation model used by the Company capturesaatiing assets, interest-bearing liabilities
and off-balance sheet financial instruments andhines the various factors affecting rate sensytiwito an earnings outlook and estimates of
the economic value of equity for a range of assumexlest rate scenarios. The results of theselations indicate the existence and severity
of interest rate risk in each of those rate envirents based upon the current balance sheet pogiisnmptions as to changes in the volume
and mix of interest-earning assets and interesingdiabilities and the Company’s estimate of ygtd be attained in those future rate
environments and rates that will be paid on varibesosit instruments and borrowings. These assongpére inherently uncertain and, as a
result, the model cannot precisely predict the ichpé fluctuations in interest rates on net inteiesome. Actual results will differ from
simulated results due to timing, magnitude, anduescy of interest rate changes, as well as changearket conditions and the Company’s
strategies. However, the earnings simulation mdelirrently the best tool available to the Compang the industry for managing interest
rate risk.

The Company has established policy limits for tatexe of interest rate risk in various interest sgtenarios. In addition, the policy addresses
exposure limits to changes in the economic valueqoity according to predefined policy guidelinEse most recent simulation indicates that
current exposure to interest rate risk is withima @ompany’s defined policy limits.
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The following table summarizes the impact of imnageliand sustained rate shocks in the intereseraieonment on net interest income and
the economic value of equity as of December 311201d 2010. The model simulates plus 300 to mifi@shhsis point changes from the t
case rate simulation and illustrates the prospedétffects of hypothetical interest rate changes awevelvemonth time period. This modelir
technique, although useful, does not take into aetall strategies that management might undeitakesponse to a sudden and sustained
rate shock as depicted. Also, as market conditiamg from those assumed in the sensitivity analyaitual results will also differ due to
prepayment and refinancing levels likely deviatiram those assumed, the varying impact of interast change caps or floors on adjustable
rate assets, the potential effect of changing debtice levels on customers with adjustable raiadpdepositor early withdrawals and product
preference changes, and other internal and exteamniables. As of December 31, 2011, the FederainOparket Committee maintained a
target range for federal funds of 0 to 25 basisifgpirendering a complete downward shock of 20Gh@snts less meaningful; accordingly,
downward rate scenarios are limited to minus 1@&dslyaoints. In the downward rate shocks presetiuchmark interest rates are assume
levels with floors near 0%.

Rate Sensitivity Analysis

December 31, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Change in Change in

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Percent Economic Value Percent
Interest Rates (Basis Points) Income Change of Equity Change
300 $ 8,881 13.C $ (7,279 (2.4)
200 6,12¢ 9.C (1,557 (0.E)
100 3,35t 4.9 1,957 0.7
(100) (826) (1.2) (19,977 (6.7)

December 31, 2010

(Amounts in thousands) Change in Change in

Increase (Decrease) in Net Interest Percent Economic Value Percent
Interest Rates (Basis Points) Income Change of Equity Change
300 $ 93z 1.2 $ (10,639 (3.6)
200 121 0.2 (1,53() (0.5)
100 32¢ 0.4 4,73¢ 1.€
(100) (105) (0.1) (21,509 (7.3)

The rate sensitivity simulation results show sigaifitly improved performance in upward rate shaokil®nments. The improvement is
largely due to increases in adjustable rate investreecurities and low-cost, stable non-maturifyodés which were partially offset by
decreases in cash balances.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and notestih@resented herein have been prepared in acutmraeth GAAP, which requires the
measurement of financial position and operatingltesn terms of historical dollars without congiig the changes in the relative purchasing
power of money over time due to inflation. The @iy effect of inflation on the operations of thenGmany is reflected in increased operating
costs. In management’s opinion, interest rates hayeater impact on the Company's consolidatefdqmeance than do the effects of general
levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necefséluctuate in the same direction or to the sawtent as the price of goods and services.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousand
Assets
Cash and due from ban
Federal funds sol
Interes-bearing balances with ban
Total cash and cash equivale
Securities availab-for-sale
Securities hel-to-maturity
Loans held for sal
Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc
Less allowance for loan loss
Net loans held for investme
Premises and equipment, |
Other real estate ownt
Interest receivabl
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Other asset
Total asset

Liabilities
Deposits:
Nor-interest bearin
Interest bearin
Total deposit:
Interest, taxes and other liabiliti
Securities sold under agreements to repurc
FHLB borrowings
Other indebtednes
Total liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, par value undesignated; 1,00058@6es authorized; no shares issued or outstaatling
December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2

Series A preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 25,0@0es authorized; 18,921 shares issued at Dece3tih2011
and no shares issued at December 31, :

Common stock, $1 par value; 50,000,000 shares apl 18,082,822 shares issued at December 31, 201
and December 31, 2010; and 17,849,376 and 17,866/88es outstanding at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectivi

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Treasury stock, at co

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total stockholdel' equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 31,

2011 2010
$ 3457¢ $ 288l¢
1,90¢ 81,52¢
10,80" 1,847
47,29 112,18
482,43( 480,06
3,49( 4,637
5,82( 4,69¢
1,396,06  1,386,20
26,20¢ 26,48:
1,369,86,  1,359,72
54,72 56,241
5,91¢ 4,91(
6,19: 7,67¢
83,05¢ 84,91
4,32¢ 5,72t
101,68: 123,46:
$2,164,78  $2,244,23
$ 24026¢ $ 205,15
1,303,19'  1,415,80.
1,543,46  1,620,95!
20,45 21,31¢
129,20¢ 140,89
150,00( 175,00
15,93: 16,19:
1,859,060  1,974,36
18,92: —
18,08: 18,08:
188,11¢ 189,23
93,65¢ 81,48¢
(5,721) (6,740)
(7,325) (12,190
305,72 269,87t
$2,164,78  $2,244,23
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per stete
Interest Income
Interest and fees on loans held for investn
Interest on securitie— taxable
Interest on securitie— nontaxable
Interest on deposits in ban
Total interest incom

Interest Expense
Interest on deposi
Interest on shc-term borrowings
Interest on lon-term debt
Total interest expens
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Noninterest Income
Wealth management incor
Service charges on deposit accol
Other service charges and fe
Insurance commissior
Total impairment losses on securit
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensicerine
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Net gains (losses) on sale of securi
Net gains on acquisitior
Other operating incom
Total noninterest incorr
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy expense of bank premi
Furniture and equipment exper
Amortization of intangible asse
FDIC premiums and assessme
FHLB debt prepayment fe:
Merger related expens
Goodwill impairment
Other operating expen:
Total noninterest expen:
Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax expense (benel
Net income (loss
Dividends on preferred stot
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol

Basic earnings (loss) per common sk
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh

Cash dividends per common sh

Weighted average basic shares outstan
Weighted average diluted shares outstan

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Years Ended December 31,

$

2011

80,58(
8,11
5,19¢

28¢

94,17¢

12,78¢
2,47¢
6,88¢

22,14,

72,02¢
9,04

62,98:

3,51(
13,23¢
5,72z
6,197
(2,285)

(2,285)

5,26¢

3,88¢

35,53¢

34,12¢
6,28(
3,49(
1,02(
1,98¢
471
1,23¢
20,30¢

68,91¢

29,60

9,57:

& ||a||er |8

20,02¢
703

19,32¢

1.0¢

1.07

0.4C

17,877,42
18,691,08

$

2010

84,74
12,70«
5,94:
194

103,58:

19,88
2,88:
6,95¢

29,72t

73,85)
14,75]

59,10(

3,82¢
13,12¢
5,07
6,72
(185)

(185)

8,27:

3,66:

40,50¢

34,52¢
6,43¢
3,71
1,032
2,85¢

1,03¢
20,33;

69,94:

29,66¢

7,81¢

& ||a||er |8

21,84%

21,84,

1.2¢

1.2¢

0.4C

17,802,00
17,822,94

2009

$ 82,70¢
19,09:
5,97:

165

107,93

27,79¢

3,291

7,58¢
38,68
69,25:
15,80:
53,45

4,147
13,89:
4,71¢
6,98¢
(88,43
9,57:
(78,869
(11,679
4,49:
2,62¢

(53,67)

31,38t
5,88¢
3,74¢
1,02¢
4,262
88
1,72¢

18,50(
66,62
(66,85()

(28,159
(38,696
2,16(

$ (40,850

$ (2.79)
$ (2.7

$ 0.3C

14,868,54
14,868,54
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousand
Operating activities
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to r@eshcprovided by operating activitie
Provision for loan losse
Depreciation and amortization of premises and egaig
Intangible amortizatiol
Goodwill impairment
Net investment amortization and accret
Net loss (gain) on the sale of property, plant, eqdipmen
Net (gain) loss on the sale of securit
Net gain on acquisitior
Mortgage loans originated for s¢
Proceeds from sale of mortgage lo
Gain on sale of loar
Equity-based compensation expel
Deferred income tax expense (bene
Decrease in interest receival
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic
FHLB debt prepayment fe:
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) p!
Prepaid FDIC assessme
Net impairment losses recognized in earni
Other operating activities, n

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing activities
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitieslable-for-sale
Proceeds from maturities and calls of securitidd-to-maturity
Purchase of securities availa-for-sale
(Originations) repayments of loa
Proceeds from the redemption of FHLB sti
Cash from (invested in) acquisitions and divestisiine:
Purchase of property, plant, and equiprn
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, and equip

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

Financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in noninte-bearing deposit
Net (decrease) increase in inte-bearing deposit
Net decrease in FHLB and other borrowil
FHLB debt prepayment fe«
Net decrease in securities sold under agreemeaptochas:
Redemption of preferred sto
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Net proceeds from the issuance of common s
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred ¢
Excess tax benefit from stc-based compensatic
Repurchase of treasury stc
Repurchase of common stock warre
Preferred dividends pa
Common dividends pai

Net cash used in financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental informatio— noncash item

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ 20,02¢ $ 21847 $ (38,699
9,047 14,75’ 15,80:
3,08: 4,091 4,02¢
1,02( 1,03z 1,02¢
1,23¢ 1,03¢ —
1,611 1,11z 1,23¢
20z 344 (63)
(5,262 (8,279) 11,67:
— — (4,499
(45,879 (49,76 (35,249
45,46 57,47¢ 27,46
(719) (83E) (83)
08 58 152
597 13,00¢ (18,86¢)
1,482 93t 2,071
(5) ©) (2
471 — 88
821 1,044 1,41¢
— — (10,885
2,28¢ 18t 78,86
15,51 (1,625) (20,33
52,00( 56,42 15,14:
192,84 170,54( 167,06
49,19 90,63 77,17¢
1,29¢ 2,82¢ 1,23¢
(234,819  (248,10)  (218,96)
(20,48¢) (5,437) 18,90:
1,417 1,45¢ 351
83t (882) 21,74
(3,06%) (3,749 (4,380
59¢ 162 327
(12,18) 7,457 63,46
35,11 (3,099 (2,86))
(112,609 (21,91) 2,36¢
(25,260) (8,209) (25,13()
(471) — (88)
(11,686 (12,740 (12,280)
— — (41,500)
32 29 21
— — 61,66¢
18,80: — —
5 9 2
(904) — (167)
(30) — —
(55¢) — (1,116)
(7,155) (7,129 (4,619)
(104,719 (53,039) (23,709
(64,895 10,84¢ 54,90:
112,18 101,34: 46,43
$ 47,29 $112,18¢  $101,34:




Transfers of loans to other real est $ 9,72C $ 6,79 $ 6,49(
Cumulative effect adjustment, net of 1 $ — $ — $ 6,131

(See Note 1 for detail of income taxes and intgpagt and Note 2 for detail of cash from (investgdacquisitions and divestitures.)
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Other
Additional Comprehensive
Preferred Common Paid-in Retained Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Income Total
(Amounts in thousand
Balance January 1, 201 $40,41¢ $12,05! $128,52¢ $106,10: $(15,36¢) $ (52,517 $219,21!
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — — 6,131 — (6,137 —
Comprehensive incom
Net loss — — — (38,69¢) — — (38,69¢)
Other comprehensive incor— see note 1 — — — — 44,99¢ 44,99¢
Comprehensive incorr — — — (32,565 — 38,86¢ 6,30(
Preferred dividends, n 1,081 — (37 (2,160 — (1,116
Common dividends declar— $0.30 per shar — — — (4,619 — — (4,619
Redemption of preferred sto (41,500 — — — — — (41,500
Issuance of common stock, I— 5,290,000 share — 5,29( 56,37¢ — — — 61,66¢
Acquisition of Greenpoint Insurance Group — 22,008
shares — — (4049) — 68t — 281
Acquisition of Investment Planning Consultants —053
shares — — (851) — 1,341 — 49(
Acquisition of TriStone Community Bank — 741,588
shares — 74z 9,38t — — — 10,12°
Equity-based compensatic — — 11t — 38 — 152
Common stock options exercis— 2,000 share — — (42 — 63 — 21
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan — BBb5
shares — — (2,107%) — 3,517 — 1,414
Purchase of 13,500 treasury shares at $12.29 pe — — — — (167) — (167)
Balance December 31, 20 — 18,08 190,96 66,76( (9,89)) (13,657 252,26
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 21,84% — — 21,84
Other comprehensive incor— see note 1 — — — — 1,462 1,462
Comprehensive incorr — — — 21,84% — 1,462 23,30¢
Common dividends declar— $0.40 per shar — — — (7,12 — — (7,127
Acquisition of Greenpoint Insurance Group — 22,814
shares — — (419) — 711 — 292
Equity-based compensatic — — 33 — 25 — 58
Common stock options exercis— 2,631 share — — (53 — 82 — 29
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan —925
shares — — (1,289 — 2,33z — 1,04¢
Balance December 31, 20 — 18,08 189,23¢ 81,48¢ (6,740) (12,190 269,87!
Comprehensive incom
Net income — — — 20,02¢ — — 20,02¢
Other comprehensive incor— see note 1 — — — — — 4,86 4,86
Comprehensive incorr — — — 20,02¢ — 4,86 24,89(
Preferred dividends declar— $37.15 per shar — — — (709) — — (7039)
Common dividends declar— $0.40 per shar — — — (7,155 — — (7,15%)
Issuance of preferred stock, — 18,921 share 18,92: — (119 — — — 18,80:
Repurchase of common stock warre — — (30 — — — (30)
Equity-based compensatic — — 68 — 30 — 98
Common stock options exercis— 2,969 share — — (60) — 92 — 32
Contribution of treasury stock to 401(k) plan —622
shares — — (980) — 1,801 — 821
Purchase of 81,510 treasury shares at $10.88 pex — — — — (904) — (9049)
Balance December 31, 20 $18,92. $18,08! $188,11¢ §$ 93,65¢ $ (5,72) $  (7,32¢ $305,72!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of First Camity Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (“First @amity” or the “Company”) conform
to accounting principles generally accepted inUhéed States (“U.S. GAAP”) and to predominant pices within the banking industry. In
preparing financial statements, management is redad make estimates and assumptions that affeeeported amounts of assets and
liabilities as of the date of the balance sheetrendnues and expenses for the period. Actualteesolld differ from those estimates. Assets
held in an agency or fiduciary capacity are noetssef the Company and are not included in therapamying consolidated balance sheets.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of First Comity include the accounts of all wholly-owned sdiries. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminateshisotidation. The Company operates within two bessnrsegments, community banking
and insurance services.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statementsoimfarmity with generally accepted accounting prihes, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities as of the dathebalance sheet and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting pdfindncial statement items requiring the significase of estimates and assumptions
include, but are not limited to, fair values of @¥ment securities, fair value adjustment of aeglibusinesses and the establishment of the
allowance for loan losses. Actual results coul@edifrom those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and dueliaois, time deposits with other banks, federati$uisold, and interest-bearing balances
on deposit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLBiat are available for immediate withdrawal. lettrand income taxes paid were as
follows:

2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousand

Interest $22,857 $30,60¢ $39,87:
Income Taxe! 8,50( 5,30( 9,31¢

Pursuant to agreements with the Federal Reservie &Richmond (“FRB”), the Company maintains a chslance of $250 thousand in lieu
of charges for check clearing and other services.

Investment Securities

Securities to be held for indefinite periods ofdéinmcluding securities that management intendss&oas part of its asset/liability management
strategy and that may be sold in response to clsangeterest rates, changes in prepayment ris@thmr similar factors, are classified as
available-for-sale and are recorded at estimateddtue. Unrealized appreciation or depreciatiofiair value above or below amortized cost
is included in stockholders’ equity, net of incorages, under the category of accumulated other oeimepsive loss. Premiums and discounts
are amortized or accreted to income over the fifth@ security. Gain or loss on sale is based erspecific identification method.

Investments in debt securities that managemendétesmined it does not intend to sell and has tsbénat it is not more likely than not that
it will have to sell, are deemed to be held to migtuand are carried at amortized cost. Premiuntsdiscounts are amortized to expense and
accreted to income over the lives of the securitBn or loss on the call or maturity of investisecurities, if any, is recorded based on the
specific identification method.

The Company performs an extensive review of thestment securities portfolio quarterly to deterniime cause of declines in the fair value
of each security within each segment of the pddfdlhe Company uses inputs provided by an indegetnithird party to determine the fair
values of its investment securities portfolio. Itgpprovided by the third party are reviewed by nggemaent. Evaluations of the causes of the
unrealized losses are performed to determine whétkeémpairment is temporary or other-than-tempona nature. Considerations such as
whether the Company determines it has the intes¢liche security or whether it is more likely nhaot it will be required to sell the security,
recoverability of the invested amounts
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FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

over the Company'’s intended holding period, seyémitpricing decline and receipt of amounts corttraly due, for example, are applied in
determining whether a security is other-than-teraplyrimpaired. If a decline in value is determirtecbe other-than-temporary, the value of
the security is reduced and a corresponding chtargarnings is recognized. In the instance of d sleturity which is determined to be other-
than-temporarily impaired, the Company determihesamount of the impairment due to credit and theumt due to other factors. The
amount of impairment related to credit is recogdiirethe Consolidated Statements of Income andetmainder of the impairment is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale primarily consist of one-to+féamily residential loans originated for sale le tsecondary market and are carried at the
lower of cost or estimated fair value determinechoraggregate basis. The long-term, fixed ratesl@ae sold to investors on a best efforts
basis such that the Company does not absorb tegttrate risk involved in the loans. The faiueabf loans held for sale is determined by
reference to quoted prices for loans with similaumon rates and terms.

The Company enters into interest rate lock commitné'|RLCs”) with customers on mortgage loans vitib intention to sell the loan in the
secondary market. The derivatives arising fromlRieCs are recorded at fair value in other assedsliabilities and changes in that fair value
are included in other income. The fair value of HREC derivatives are determined by reference toted prices for loans with similar coup
rates and terms. Gains and losses on the salesd thans are included in other income.

Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment are carried at the ppiacamount outstanding less any write-downs whiély tre necessary to reduce individual
loans to net realizable value. Individually sigcdfint loans are evaluated for impairment when ewiéaf impairment exists. Impairment
allowances are recorded through specific additiortke allowance for loan losses. Loans are consieast due when principal or interest
becomes contractually delinquent by 30 days or mooasumer loans are charged off against the alloevéor loan losses when the loan
becomes 120 days past due (180 days if securegsiential real estate). All other loans are chduaféagainst the allowance for loan losses
after collection attempts have been exhausted,ndémerally is within 120 days. Recoveries of loalmarged off are credited to the
allowance for loan losses in the period received.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb prodakées inherent in the portfolio, and is
based on management’s evaluation of the riskseiadin portfolio and changes in the nature andmelof loan activity. The Company
consistently applies a review process to periotji@ialuate loans for changes in credit risk. Tiriscess serves as the primary means by
which the Company evaluates the adequacy of thevatice for loan losses.

The Company determines the allowance for loan fobganaking specific allocations to impaired loémat exhibit inherent weaknesses and
various credit risk and general allocations to caroial loans, consumer residential real estate candumer loans by giving weight to risk
ratings, historical loss trends and managementigment concerning those trends, and other reldaatdrs. The general allocations are
determined through a methodology that utilizesléngfive year average loss history that is adpdstor current qualitative or environmental
factors that management deems likely to cause atgthtredit losses as of the evaluation date terdifom the historical loss experience.
foregoing analysis is performed by management &uate the portfolio and calculate an estimatedatadn allowance through a quantitative
and qualitative analysis that applies risk factorthose identified risk areas.

This risk management evaluation is applied at timhportfolio level for non-impaired loans and thdividual loan level for impaired
commercial loans while the level of consumer arsitential mortgage loan allowance is determinegharily on a total portfolio level based
on a review of historical loss percentages andrajbelitative factors including concentrations,ustty specific factors and economic
conditions. The commercial portfolio requires mspecific analysis of individually significant loaaad the borrower’s underlying cash flow,
business conditions, capacity for debt repaymedtthe valuation of secondary sources of paymeith as collateral. This analysis may
result in specifically identified weaknesses anda&sponding specific impairment allowances. Whilecations are made to specific loans
classifications within the various categories @tls, the allowance for loan losses is availablalidoan losses.

The use of various estimates and judgments in tmep@ny’s ongoing evaluation of the required levfa@lmwance can significantly impact
the Company’s results of operations and finan@aldition and may result in either greater provisiagainst earnings to increase the
allowance or reduced provisions based upon manag&nwairrent view of portfolio and economic condits and the application of revised
estimates and assumptions. Differences betweealdoan loss experience and estimates are reflékatedgh adjustments either increasin
decreasing the allowance based upon current measoteriteria.
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Long-term Investments

Certain long-term equity investments representisg than 20% ownership are accounted for undexostemethod, are carried at cost, and
are included in other assets. At December 31, 2012010, these equity investments totaled $57dstmd and $570 thousand, respectively.
These investments in operating companies represguired longierm investments in insurance, investment, andsepompany affiliates «
consortiums which serve as vehicles for the defiedvarious support services. In accordance withdost method, dividends received are
recorded as current period revenues and thererisaognition of the Company’s proportionate shdneed operating income or loss. The
Company has determined that fair value measureim@at practical, and further, nothing has comgh&attention of the Company that
would indicate impairment of any of these investtaen

As a condition to membership in the FHLB systers,@ompany is required to subscribe to a minimurelle¥’stock in the FHLB of Atlanta
(“FHLBA"). The Company feels this ownership positiprovides access to relatively inexpensive whddegad overnight funding. The
Company accounts for FHLBA and FRB stock as a l@mm investment in other assets. At December 311 2id 2010, the Company
owned $10.82 million and $12.24 million in FHLBAosk, respectively, which is classified as otheetssThe Company’s policy is to review
the stock for impairment at each reporting per@dring the year ended December 31, 2011, FHLBAm&msed excess activity-based stock
from the Company and paid quarterly dividends. At@mber 31, 2011, FHLBA was in compliance withoélks regulatory capital
requirements. Based on the Company’s review, ietes that as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, itsBAHstock was not impaired. At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company owned $4illi8n in FRB stock.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation and amortizatiencomputed on the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives. Useful livesgefrom five to 10 years for furniture, fixturesd equipment; three to five years for
software, hardware, and data handling equipmentt;l@rto 40 years for buildings and building impnments. Land improvements are
amortized over a period of 20 years, and leasehgilovements are amortized over the lesser of seéulilife or the term of the lease plus
first optional renewal period, when renewal is oegbly assured. Maintenance and repairs are chéogadrent operations while
improvements that extend the economic useful fifdne underlying asset are capitalized. Disposijams and losses are reflected in current
operations.

The Company leases various properties within &b network. Leases generally have initial teringoao 20 years and most contain
options to renew with reasonable increases in Adhteases are accounted for as operating leases.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned and acquired through fasact is stated at the lower of cost or fair védss estimated costs to sell. Loan losses
arising from the acquisition of such properties@rarged against the allowance for loan lossesefssgs incurred in connection with
operating the properties, subsequent write-dowdsgams or losses upon sale are included in otheinterest expense.

Gooduwill and Other Intangible Assets

The excess of the cost of an acquired companytbediair value of the net assets and identifiedrigtbles acquired is recorded as goodwiill.
The net carrying amount of goodwill was $83.06 imilland $84.91 million at December 31, 2011 and)2@dspectively. A portion of the
purchase price in certain transactions has beeoa#ld to values associated with the future easnpogential of acquired deposits and is
amortized over the estimated lives of the depalsiéisrange from one to seven years while the wehterage remaining life of these core
deposits is 5.83 years. As of December 31, 20112846, the balance of core deposit intangibles$2a280 million and $2.85 million,
respectively, net of corresponding accumulated #ration of $5.74 million and $5.09 million, respieely. The annual amortization expense
for all intangible assets for 2012 and the succeetbur years is $802 thousand, $728 thousand, $®&and, $706 thousand, and $600
thousand, respectively. Greenpoint’s acquisitioth sedes activity eliminated $618 thousand of godidwid other intangible assets for the
period ended December 31, 2011.

The Company reviews and tests goodwill annuallhenfourth quarter for possible impairment by conmgathe fair value of each reporting
unit to its book value (step 1), including goodwiflthe fair value of the reporting unit is greatiean its book value, no goodwill impairment
exists. However, if the book value of the reportimit is greater than its determined fair valueydwill impairment may exist and further
testing is required to determine the amount, if, afiyhe actual impairment
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loss (step 2). The step 1 test utilizes a comhonatf two methods to determine the fair value eftbporting units. For both reporting units, a
discounted cash flow model uses estimates in ttme & growth and attrition rates of return and disat rates to project cash flows from
operations of the business reporting unit, theltesd which are weighted 70%. For the banking répg unit, a market multiple model
utilizes price to net income and price to tangtbek value inputs for closed transactions and éotain common sized institutions and the
results are weighted 30%. For the insurance regptthit, the market multiple model primarily utéiz price to sales for closed transactions
and certain similar industry public companies draresults are weighted 30%. The end results fiir teporting units are then compared \
the respective book values to consider if impairmigevident. To determine the overall reasonaldeé the reporting unit computations, the
combined computed fair value is then compared thighoverall market capitalization of the consok@h€Company to determine the level of
implied control premium. The analysis performed206d1 and 2010 indicated an impairment of goodatithe insurance reporting unit of
$1.24 million and $1.04 million, respectively.

The progression of the Company’s goodwill and igthle assets for continuing operations for theahyears ended December 31, 2011, is
detailed in the following table:

(Amounts in thousand Goodwill Intang?éT:tAsset:
Balance at December 31, 2008 $83,19: $ 6,41¢
Acquisitions and dispositions, r 1,45¢ 1,02
Amortization — (1,028
Balance at December 31, 2C $84,64¢ $ 6,41:
Acquisitions and dispositions, r 1,30t 344
Amortization — (1,039
Impairment (1,039 —

Balance at December 31, 2C $84,91¢ $ 5,72¢
Acquisitions and dispositions, r (619) (379
Amortization — (1,020
Impairment (1,239 —

Balance at December 31, 2C $83,05¢ $ 4,32¢

Other Assets

In addition to FHLB stock and FRB stock, other és#gcluded $44.39 million and $42.30 million iretbash surrender value of life insurance
policies owned by the Company at December 31, 20112010, respectively, and $28.28 million and $4@nillion in current and deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010, resplgctiv

In connection with bank-owned life insurance, tt@pany entered into Life Insurance Endorsement dte8plit Dollar Agreements with
certain of the individuals whose lives are insutddder these agreements, the Company shares 80% déath benefits (after recovery of
cash surrender value) with the designated bengésiaf the plan participants under life insuranogatracts. The Company, as owner of the
policies, retains a 20% interest in life proceenid a 100% interest in the cash surrender valukeopblicies. Split dollar agreements totaled
$873 thousand and $1.19 million at December 311201 2010, respectively. The Company recordedhirecof $316 thousand on split
dollar agreements for the year ended 2011 as & cégevised projections that indicated lower exges than previously accrued. Expenses
associated with split dollar agreements totaledthdRsand for the year ended 2010.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchasgeaerally accounted for as collateralized finan¢magsactions. Securities, generally U.S.
government and federal agency securities, pledgetliateral under these arrangements cannot deosoépledged by the secured party.
fair value of the collateral provided to a third{yas continually monitored, and additional codledl is provided as appropriate.

Loan Interest Income Recognition

Accrual of interest on loans is based generallyhendaily amount of principal outstanding. Loans esnsidered past due when either
principal or interest payments are delinquent bpBthore days. It is the Company’s policy to didomre the accrual of interest on loans
based on the payment status and evaluation oéthted collateral and the financial strength ofiberower. The accrual of interest income is
normally discontinued when a loan becomes 90 dagsdue as to principal or interest. Management etegt to continue the accrual of
interest when the loan is well secured and in o
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collection. When interest accruals are discontinirgérest accrued and not collected in the curyeat is reversed from income and interest
accrued and not collected from prior years is chaitp the allowance for loan losses. Interest ircosalized on impaired loans is recognized
upon receipt if the impaired loan is on a non-aathasis. Accrual of interest on non-accrual loaay be resumed if the loan is brought
current and follows a period of sustained perforoeaimcluding six months of regular principal anterest payments. Accrual of interest on
impaired loans is generally continued unless the loecomes delinquent 90 days or more.

Loan Fee Income

Loan origination and underwriting fees are reduegdlirect costs associated with loan processirgding salaries, review of legal
documents and obtainment of appraisals. Net ofiigindees and costs are deferred and amortizedtbedife of the related loan. Loan
commitment fees are deferred and amortized overglhéed commitment period. Net deferred loan feee $1.69 million and $1.15 million
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are generally expensed as indukmounts recognized for the three years endecibber 31, 2011, are detailed in “Note
15 — Other Operating Income and Expense” of theedltd Consolidated Financial Statements in Iterargih.

Equity-Based Compensation

The cost of employee services received in exchéogequity instruments including options and resétd stock awards generally are
measured at fair value at the grant date. The teffegption shares on earnings per share relatdwtdilutive effect of the underlying options
outstanding. To the extent the granted exerciseegtrice is less than the current market pricéirothe money,” there is an economic
incentive for the options to be exercised and areimse in the dilutive effect on earnings per share

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of federal and starent and deferred income taxes on pre-taxreggof the Company. Income taxes as a
percentage of pre-tax income may vary significafrtiyn statutory rates due to items of income arukese which are excluded, by law, from
the calculation of taxable income. These itemscaremonly referred to as permanent differences.fibst significant permanent differences
for the Company include income on municipal se@siwhich are exempt from federal income tax, ineam bankewned life insurance, ar
tax credits generated by investments in low inctimgsing and rehabilitation of historic structures.

The Company includes interest and penalties relat@ttome tax liabilities in income tax expenskeTompany and its subsidiaries’ tax
filings for the years ended December 31, 2007 ind2010 are currently open to audit under statoftéimitation by the Internal Revenue
Service and various state tax departments.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognieethe estimated future tax consequences attiieita differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amouatdihancial reporting purposes.
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Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share are determined/laiird) net income available to common shareholdgrthe weighted average numbe
shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per commoresdre determined by dividing net income by thegheid average shares outstanding,
which includes the dilutive effect of stock optipmsarrants, contingently issuable shares, and atibiepreferred shares. The dilutive effects
of stock options, warrants, and contingently isé&iahares were not considered for the year endedrbleer 31, 2009, because of the repc
net loss available to common shareholders. Theuledion for basic and diluted earnings per comniware for the three years ended
December 31, 2011, are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shete

Net income (loss $ 20,02¢ $ 21,84 $ (38,69¢)
Dividends on preferred stox 703 — 2,16(
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $  19,32¢ $ 21,847 $ (40,85¢)
Weighted average shares outstant 17,877,42 17,802,00 14,868,54
Dilutive shares for stock optiot 5,29: 12,46: —
Contingently issuable shar — 8,47 —
Convertible preferred shar 808,36° — —
Weighted average dilutive shares outstant 18,691,08 17,822,94. 14,868,54
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 1.0¢ $ 1.2¢ $ (2.75)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 1.07 $ 1.2¢ $ (2.75

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, &0f) B@tions and warrants to purchase 395,633, 883dnd 488,689 shares, respectively,
of Common Stock were outstanding but not includethe computation of diluted earnings per commanrehecause the exercise price was
greater than the market price of the Company’s ComBtock or the Company incurred losses; and wiale: an anti-dilutive effect.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company maintains ownership positions in varieutities which it deems variable interest ersti{i&/IE’'s”). These VIES include certai
tax credit limited partnerships and other limitebllity companies which provide aviation servicesurance brokerage, title insurance, and
other financial and related services. Based orCirapany’s analysis, it is a non-primary beneficiagcordingly, these entities do not meet
the criteria for consolidation. The carrying vahfeVIE’s was $1.70 million and $1.86 million at Derober 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The Company’s maximum possible loss exposure wa&$tillion and $1.86 million at December 31, 2@HH 2010, respectively.
Management does not believe net losses, if anyltigg from its ownership in these entities will beterial.

Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into derivative transactionscgally to protect against the risk of adverse@r interest rate movements on the value
of certain assets and liabilities and on futuréndbsws. In addition, certain contracts and comneitis are defined as derivatives under
generally accepted accounting principles.

All derivative instruments are carried at fair v@lon the balance sheet. Special hedge accountingsiums are provided, which permit the
change in the fair value of the hedged item relédetie risk being hedged to be recognized in egmin the same period and in the same
income statement line as the change in the fairevaf the derivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge matiip to mitigate exposure to changes in thevilire of an asset, liability, or firm
commitment attributable to a particular risk, sashinterest rate risk, are considered fair valwghs. Derivative instruments designated in a
hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to varighih expected future cash flows, or other typéfooecasted transactions, are considered
cash flow hedges. The Company formally documenhtektionships between hedging instruments andiéedems, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertakaot dedged transaction.
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Reclassifications

The Company has made certain reclassificationsiof pears’ amounts necessary to conform to theeotiryear’s presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on the Companyiaricial position, stockholders’ equity, or resolt®perations.

Accounting Standards Updates

In April 2011, FASB issued Accounting Standard UeddASU”) 2011-02, “A Creditor’'s Determination &¥hether a Restructuring is a
Troubled Debt Restructuring (‘TDR’),” which claréfs when creditors should classify loan modificagias TDRs. The guidance is effective
for interim and annual periods beginning on orrafime 15, 2011, and is applied retrospectivehgstructurings at the beginning of the year
of adoption. The guidance on measuring the impaitroga receivable restructured in a troubled testiring is effective on a prospective
basis. The Company adopted the new guidance dtiventhird quarter of 2011 and the new disclosuregpeesented in “Note 5 — Allowance
for Loan Losses and Credit Quality” to the Consatiédl Financial Statements in Item 8 herein.

In April 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-03, “Reconsatem of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreeménivhich simplifies the
accounting for financial assets transferred undpurchase agreements and similar arrangementénhipating the transferor’s ability criteria
from the assessment of effective control over thassets as well as the related implementation go@alhe guidance is effective for interim
and annual periods beginning on or after DecembgPQ11, and is applied on a prospective basis.Cdmpany is currently assessing the
impact on its financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “Fair#aMeasurement: Amendments to Achieve Common Falite/Measurement and
Disclosure Requirements in the U.S. GAAP and IFR&yich was issued primarily to provide largely itleal guidance about fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for Iniens Financial Reporting Standards (“IFR@H)d U.S. GAAP. The new standards do
extend the use of fair value but rather providelgnce about how fair value should be determinedevit@lready is required or permitted
under IFRS or U.S. GAAP. For U.S. GAAP, most of thanges are clarifications of existing guidancevording changes to align with IFR
Public companies are required to apply the stanpiarspbectively for interim and annual periods begig after December 15, 2011. The
Company is currently assessing the impact onntanitial statements.

In June 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “PresentatfdComprehensive Income,” which revises the mamehich entities present
comprehensive income in their financial statemerite new guidance removes the presentation opitibASC 220 and requires entities to
report components of comprehensive income in edl@ntinuous statement of comprehensive inconte@separate but consecutive
statements. The guidance does not change the tikaingust be reported in other comprehensive incdine guidance is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods within those years, b@gmafter December 15, 2011, with early adoptiemputted. The Company is curren
assessing the impact on its financial statements.

In September 2011, FASB issued ASU 2011-08, “Tgs@oodwill for Impairment,” which simplifies how amtity tests goodwill for
impairment. The guidance permits an entity to faséess qualitative factors to determine whethismiecessary to perform additional
impairment testing. The guidance is effective fecdl years beginning after December 15, 2011, ®atttly adoption permitted. The Company
is currently assessing the impact on its finanstalements.

Note 2.  Merger, Acquisitions, and Branching Activity

In July 2009, the Company acquired TriStone ComtyguBank (“TriStone”), based in Winston-Salem, No@hrolina. TriStone had two full
service locations in Winston-Salem, North Carolidhacquisition, TriStone had total assets of $&886nillion, total loans of $132.23 million
and total deposits of $142.27 million. Shares ¢8ftme were exchanged for .5262 shares of the Coy'gp&ommon Stock and the overall
acquisition cost was $10.78 million. The acquisitaf TriStone significantly augmented the Companyarket presence and human resot
in the Winston-Salem, North Carolina region. Therpany recorded a $4.49 million gain on the acquisiof TriStone.

Greenpoint has acquired seven insurance agenalesotththree since its acquisition by the Compamy011, Greenpoint sold two insurance
agencies. Cash received from those sales total®&® $dillion resulting in a net gain of $67 thousamdi has the potential to recognize an
additional $650 thousand over time as earn-out gaysnare received. The sales eliminated $1.68amitif goodwill and intangible assets to
the Company’s balance sheet during 2011. Greensineéd aggregate cash consideration of $190 thdusa010 in connection with
acquisitions. For acquisitions prior to 2009, tewah for issuing further cash consideration ofi82million if certain operating targets are
met. If those targets are met, the value of thesickemation ultimately paid will be added to thetsas the acquisitions. Acquisitions prior to
2011 added $680 thousand, $1.17 million, and $868gand of goodwill and intangibles to the Compatpglance sheet in 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. The acquisition of Greenpain2007, and its subsequent acquisitions and dispasj have added $9.40 million of
goodwill and intangibles to the Company’s balartoees, net of corresponding amortization of $1.3Mlioni.
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The following table summarizes the net cash pravio or used in acquisitions and divestitures dytire three years ended December 31,
2011. Net cash paid (received) for acquisitionduite transactions that occurred during the curaedtprior years.

2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousand

Fair value of investments acquir $ — $ — $ 7,83
Fair value of loans acquire — — 129,93
Fair value of premises and equipment acqu — — 1,79i
Fair value of other asse — — 26,74¢
Fair value of deposits assum — — (142,69)
Fair value of other liabilities assum — — (9,009
Purchase price in excess of (less than) net azsgtsrec 68C 1,65( (3,037)
Total purchase pric 68C 1,65( 11,57¢
Less nor-cash purchase pri — 76€ 11,57¢
Less cash acquire — — 21,29¢
Net cash paid (received) for acquisiti $ 68C $ 882 $ (21,299
Book value of assets sc $(1,67¢) $ — $ (110
Book value of liabilities soli 17C — —
Sales price in excess of net liabilities assul (67) — (340
Total sales pric (1,57 — (450
Add cash on hand so — — —
Less amount due remaining on boi 60 — —
Net cash paid (received) for divestit $(1,51%) $ — $ (450
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Note 3. Investment Securities
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sgées, with gross unrealized gains and lossessiiad as available-for-sale at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, were as follows:

December 31, 2011
Unrealized Unrealized

Amortized Fair OTTl in
Cost Gains Losses Value Aocl (1)
(Amounts in thousand
States and political subdivisio $131,49¢ $ 6317 $ — $137,81! $ —
Single issue trust preferred securil 55,64¢ — (15,409 40,24+ —
Corporate FDIC insured securiti 13,68¢ 33 — 13,71¢ —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 274,38 6,00: (28%)  280,10: —
Non-Agency Ali-A residential 15,98( — (5,950 10,03( (5,950
Total mortgag-backed securitie 290,36 6,00z (6,235)  290,13: (5,950
Equity securitie: 41¢ 20€ (104 521 —
Total $491,61! $12,55¢ $(21,744 $482,43( $(5,95()

December 31, 2010
Unrealized Unrealized

Amortized Fair OTTlin
Cost Gains Losses Value Aocl @
(Amounts in thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 10,00 $ — $ (16¢) $ 983 §$ —
States and political subdivisio 178,14¢ 2,64¢ (4,660 176,13t —
Trust preferred securitie
Single issue 55,59« — (14,350 41,24+ —
Pooled 23 241 — 264 —
Total trust preferred securit 55,61" 241 (14,35() 41,50¢ —
Corporate FDIC insured securiti 25,28: 37¢ — 25,66( —
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 209,28: 7,03¢ (2,307 215,01 —
Non-Agency Ali-A residential 19,18: — (7,909 11,27 (7,909
Total mortgag-backed securitie 228,46: 7,03¢ (9,217)  226,29( (7,909
Equity securitie: 49t 20€ (65) 63€ —
Total $498,00f $10,51F $(28,459) $480,06: $(7,904)

(1) Otherthar-temporary impairment in accumulated other comprsiverincome
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The amortized cost, fair value, and weighted-averagld of available-for-sale securities by contuat maturity at December 31, 2011, are
shown below. Expected maturities may differ fronmtcactual maturities because issuers may havagheto call or prepay obligations with
or without call or prepayment penalties.

Tax
Equivalent
States and
Political Purchase
(Amounts in thousand Subdivisions Corporate Notes Total Yield @)
Available-for-Sale
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ 11k $ 13,68t $ 13,80( 0.51%
After one year through five yea 16,56: — 16,56 5.7¢%
After five years through ten yee 17,33: — 17,33: 6.2E%
After ten year: 97,48¢ 55,64¢ 153,13 3.8%
Amortized cos $ 131,49¢ $ 69,33 200,83
Mortgage-backed securitie 290,36 2.7¢%
Equity securitie: 41¢ 2.14%
Total amortized cos $491,61!
Tax equivalent purchase yie 5.45% 1.27% 3.28%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 11.0C 12.9¢ 17.61
Fair value maturity
Within one yea $ 117 $ 13,71¢ $ 13,83t
After one year through five yea 17,30¢ — 17,30¢
After five years through ten yee 18,19« — 18,19¢
After ten years 102,19¢ 40,24+ 142,44:
Fair value $137,81! $ 53,96: 191,77
Mortgagebacked securitie 290,13:
Equity securitie: 521
Total fair value $482,43(

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of isiées, with gross unrealized gains and lossessdiad as held-to-maturity at December 31,
2011 and 2010, were as follows:

December 31, 2011

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 3,49( $ 42 $ — $3,532
Total $ 3,49( $ 42 $ — $3,53¢
December 31, 2010
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(Amounts in thousand
States and political subdivisio $ 4,630 $ 67 $ — $4,704
Total $ 4,63i $ 67 $ — $4,70¢
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The amortized cost, fair value, and weighted-averagld of securities by contractual maturity acBeaber 31, 2011, are shown below.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual undies because issuers may have the right toocadtepay obligations with or without call
or prepayment penalties.

Tax
Equivalent
States and
Political Purchase
(Amounts in thousand Subdivisions Yield @)
Held-to-Maturity
Amortized cost maturity
Within one yea $ 1,04¢ 7.5%%
After one year through five yea 2,44z 8.1€%
After five years through ten yee — 0.0(%
After ten year: — 0.0(%
Total amortized cos $ 3,49
Tax equivalent purchase yie 7.9%
Average contractual maturity (in yea 2.0¢
Fair value maturity
Within one yea $ 1,054
After one year through five yea 2,47¢
After five years through ten yee —
After ten year —
Total fair value $ 3,53

(1) Fully taxable equivalent at the rate of 3t

The carrying value of securities pledged to sepuldic deposits and for other purposes requiretiwwere $288.80 million and $302.67
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

The following table details the gains and lossemfthe sale of securities:

2011 2010 2009

(Amounts in thousand
Gross gain: $ 6,96: $8,96¢ $ 4,111
Gross losse (1,699 (69€) (15,784
Net gains (losses) on sales of securi $ 5,264 $8,27: $(11,679)
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The following tables reflect those investments hbetailable-for-sale and held-to-maturity, in athamous unrealized loss position for less
than 12 months and for 12 months or longer at Déeer@1, 2011 and 2010. There were 14 securitiaontinuous unrealized loss position
for 12 or more months for which the Company dodsmtend to sell any and has determined thatntdse likely than not going to be
required to sell at December 31, 2011, until thmugey matures or recovers in value.

Description of Securities
(Amounts in thousand
Single issue trust preferred securil
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency
Non-Agency Ali-A residential
Total mortgag-backed securitie
Equity securitie:

December 31, 2011

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
$ — $ —  $40,24« $(15,409) $ 40,24« $(15,40Y)
52,30( (28F) — — 52,30( (28¢)
— — 10,03( (5,950) 10,03( (5,950
10,03( (5,950) 62,33( (6,235

52,30( (285)

18¢ (104)

18¢ (104)

Total $ 52,30 $ (28f) $50,46: $(21,459 $102,76: $(21,749
December 31, 2010
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Amounts in thousand
U.S. Government agency securit $ 983 $ (16§ $ — $ — $ 983 $ (169
States and political subdivisio 80,42( (4,660 — — 80,42( (4,660
Single issue trust preferred securil 3,39( (4,519  37,85¢ (12,837 41,24 (24,350
Mortgagebacked securitie:
Agency 71,61 (2,307%) 18 — 71,63 (2,307%)
Non-Agency Ali-A residential — — 11,271 (7,909 11,27 (7,909
Total mortgag-backed securitie 71,61 (2,307%) 11,29¢ (7,909 82,90¢ (9,21))
Equity securitie: 15t (55 93 (10) 24¢ (65)
Total $165,41( $ (7,707) $49,24: $(20,74) $214,65. $(28,459)

At December 31, 2011, the combined depreciatioralne of the 28 individual securities in an unreadi loss position was 4.51% of the
combined reported value of the aggregate secupbetfolio. At December 31, 2010, the combined éefation in value of the 214 individual
securities in an unrealized loss position was 5.98%e combined reported value of the aggregaterggees portfolio.

The Company reviews its investment portfolio oruarterly basis for indications of other-than-tengrgrimpairment (“OTTI"). The analysis
differs depending upon the type of investment sgcbeing analyzed. For debt securities, the Comaas determined that it does not intend
to sell securities that are impaired and has assénat it is not more likely than not that the Gamy will have to sell impaired securities
before recovery of the impairment occurs. This ieieation is based upon the Company’s investmeatesyy for the particular type of debt
security and its cash flow needs, liquidity positicapital adequacy and interest rate risk position

For non-beneficial interest debt securities, thenfany analyzes several qualitative factors sucheseverity and duration of the
impairment, adverse conditions within the issuimgdpuistry, prospects for the issuer, performancé@security, changes in rating by rating
agencies and other qualitative factors to deterifitie impairment will be recovered. Non-benefidgiderest debt securities consist of U.S.
government agency securities, states and poldidadiivisions, and single issue trust preferred ribes! If it is determined that there is
evidence that the impairment will not be recovetkd,Company performs a present value calculatatetermine the amount of credit rele
impairment and records any credit related OTTldlgfoearnings and the non-credit related OTTI thhoottper comprehensive income
(“OCI"). During the years ended December 31, 20dd 2010, the Company incurred no OTTI chargese@ltd non-beneficial interest debt
securities. The temporary impairment on these #&suis primarily related to changes in intereges, certain disruptions in the credit
markets, destabilization in the Eurozone, and otherent economic factors. At December 31, 2014 Gbmpany'’s investment in single issue
trust preferred securities is comprised of invesiisién 5 of the nation’s 25 largest bank holdinghpanies.
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For beneficial interest debt securities, the Corgganiews cash flow analyses on each applicablerggt¢o determine if an adverse chang
cash flows expected to be collected has occurredeficial interest debt securities consist of pdatest preferred securities, corporate FDIC
insured securities, and mortgage-backed secu(iti#BS”). An adverse change in cash flows expectetld collected has occurred if the
present value of cash flows previously projectegréater than the present value of cash flows prejeat the current reporting date and less
than the current book value. If an adverse chamgash flows is deemed to have occurred, then anl ©3s occurred. The Company then
compares the present value of cash flows usinguhent yield for the current reporting period le teference amount, or current net book
value, to determine the credit-related OTTI. Theddrrelated OTTI is then recorded through earnings the non-credit related OTTI is
accounted for in OCI. During the years ended Deearlh, 2011 and 2010, the Company incurred cretited OTTI charges related to
beneficial interest debt securities of $2.29 millend $134 thousand, respectively. These chargesrelated to a non-Agency Alt-A
residential MBS in 2011 and two pooled trust pnefdrsecurity holdings in 2010.

For the non-Agency Alt-A residential MBS, the Companodels cash flows using the following assumpiamluntary constant prepayment
speed of 5, a customized constant default rateasicetinat assumes 15% of the remaining underlyinggages will default within the next
three years, and a loss severity of 60.

The following table provides a cumulative roll faw of credit losses recognized in earnings fot deburities for which a portion of an
OTTl is recognized in OCI:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(Amounts in thousand

Estimated credit losses, beginning bala® $ 4,251 $ 4,251
Additions for credit losses on securities not poergly

recognizec — —
Additions for credit losses on securities previgusl

recognizec 2,28t —
Reduction for increases in cash flo — —
Reduction for securities management no longer

intends to hold to recovel — —
Reduction for securities sold/realized los — —

Estimated credit losses, ending bala $ 6,53¢ $ 4,251

(1) The beginning balance includes credit related kgsgduded in OTTI charges recognized on debt siesiin prior periods

For equity securities, the Company reviews for Obds$ed upon the prospects of the underlying corapaanalystséxpectations, and cert:
other qualitative factors to determine if impairmenrecoverable over a foreseeable period of timging 2011, the Company recognized no
OTTI charges on equity securities. During 2010,Gloenpany recognized OTTI charges of $51 thousanckdmin of its equity positions.
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Note 4. Loans
Loans, net of unearned income, consisted of tHeviahg at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

(Amounts in thousand 2011 2010
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 35,48. $ 42,69
Land developmer 2,90z 16,65(
Other land loan 23,38¢ 24,46¢
Commercial and industri; 91,93¢ 94,12:
Multi -family residentia 77,05( 67,82¢
Single family no-owner occupiel 106,74 104,96(
Non-farm, nor-residential 336,00 351,90
Agricultural 1,37¢ 1,342
Farmland 37,16 36,95¢
Total commercial loan 712,04( 740,91¢
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 111,38 111,62(
Single family owner occupie 473,06 444,19
Owner occupied constructic 19,571 18,34¢
Total consumer real estate lo¢ 604,03: 574,16¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 67,12¢ 63,47
Other 12,867 7,64¢
Total consumer and other los 79,99¢ 71,12
Loans held for investment, net of unearned inc $1,396,06° $1,386,20!
Loans held for sal $ 5,82 $ 4,69

Acquired, Impaired Loan

Loans acquired in a business combination are redoatlestimated fair value on their purchase ditder applicable accounting standards, it
is not appropriate to carryover a valuation foowathnce for loan losses at the time of acquisitillemvthe acquired loans have evidence of
credit deterioration. Evidence of credit qualityetération as of the purchase date may includesorea such as credit scores, decline in
collateral value, past due and non-accrual st&msacquired, impaired loans the difference betwamsmractually required payments at
acquisition and the cash flows expected to be ciltbat acquisition is referred to as the nonaabtetdifference, which is included in the
carrying amount of the loans. Subsequent decreaghe expected cash flows will generally resuldiprovision for loan losses. Subsequent
increases in cash flows result in a reversal optlogision for loan losses to the extent of pribaiges or a reversal of the nonaccretable
difference with a positive impact on interest in@prospectively. Further, any excess of cash flexygected at acquisition over the estimated
fair value is referred to as the accretable yield i@ recognized in interest income over the remgifife of the loan when there is a
reasonable expectation about the amount and tiofisgch cash flows. Acquired performing loans @eorded at fair value, including a
credit component. The fair value adjustment is etedt as an adjustment to yield over the estimated bf the loans. There is no allowance
for loan losses established at the acquisition ftetacquired performing loans. A provision for tolasses is recorded for any credit
deterioration in these loans subsequent to acoprisit

The carrying amount of acquired loans at July 809 consisted of loans with credit deterioratimnimpaired loans, and loans with no credit
deterioration, or performing loans. The followiradpke presents the acquired performing loans rebks\at the acquisition date of July 31,
2009. The amounts include principal only and doratiect accrued interest as of the date of theiiadgpn or beyond.

July 31, 200
(Amounts in thousand
Contractually required principal payments to batagleeet receive $ 125,36t
Fair value of adjustment for credit, interest rated liquidity (472
Fair value of loans receivable, with no credit detation $ 124,89
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The following table presents information regardangjuired, impaired loans. The Company has estinthtedash flows to be collected on the
loans and discounted those cash flows at a maakebf interest.

TriStone Other Total
(Amounts in thousand
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 3,83¢ $ 4,19¢ $ 8,03/
Principal payments receive (1,039 (2,900 (3,939
Accretion 61 — 61
Other 44¢ — 44¢
Chargeoffs (499) (88¢) (1,38¢)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,81« $ 407 $ 3,221
Balance, January 1, 20. $ 2,81« $ 407 $ 3,221
Principal payments receive (519 — (519
Accretion 174 — 174
Other 4 — 4
Charge-offs — — —
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,47¢ $ 407 $ 2,88¢

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the remaining balafthe accretable difference totaled $919 thodisend $944 thousand, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The Company is a party to financial instrumenthwitf-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifess to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include ctments to extend credit, standby letters of cradd financial guarantees. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemehtsedit and interest rate risk beyond the amoeobgnized on the balance sheet. The
contractual amounts of those instruments reflezetktent of involvement the Company has in pamrdicalasses of financial instruments. The
Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eventoofperformance by the other party to the finanicisirument for commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit and finangisrantees written is represented by the contreatnaunt of those instruments. The
Company uses the same credit policies in makingntitmments and conditional obligations as it doesdimibalance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totleadcustomer as long as there is not a violaifaany condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed exporatiates or other termination clauses and may regayment of a fee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beimgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not rezcég represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custooredgworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The mtnobgollateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of ciedigsed on management’s credit evaluation of thaterparties. Collateral held varies
but may include accounts receivable, inventorypprty, plant and equipment, and income producimgroercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial gudees are conditional commitments issued by trafgany to guarantee the performance of
a customer to a third party. The credit risk invamhin issuing letters of credit is essentially $hene as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. To the extent deemed rszggscollateral of varying types and amounts Id k@ secure customer performance under
certain of those letters of credit outstanding.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptegedit risk are commitments to extend creditl(iding availability of lines of credit)
of $194.27 million and standby letters of creditl dimancial guarantees written of $2.90 milliorDetcember 31, 2011. Additionally, the
Company had gross notional amounts of outstandingnutments to lend related to secondary marketgage loans of $9.15 million at
December 31, 2011.

Related Party Loan

In the normal course of business, the Company’sidigyy bank has made loans to directors and execafficers of the Company, its
subsidiaries, and to affiliates of such directord afficers (collectively referred to as “relatearties”). All loans and commitments made to
such officers and directors and to companies irckvttiey are officers, or have significant ownershtprest, have been made on substantially
the same terms, including interest rates and eodtas those prevailing at the time for comparatainsactions with other persons not related
to the Company. The aggregate dollar amount ofddamelated parties totaled $18.41 million and.g@&2nillion at December 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively. During 2011,
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$10.08 million in new loans and increases were neamerepayments on such loans to related partiaetb$4.13 million. There were no
changes to related party loans resulting from chamg the composition of the Company’s subsidiargrd members and executive officers.

Overdrafts
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, customer overdi@ifiting $1.48 million and $1.46 million, respeelly, were reclassified as loans.

Note 5.  Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Quality

The allowance for loan losses is maintained avel lmanagement deems sufficient to absorb probebtelosses inherent in the loan
portfolio. The allowance is increased by chargesamings in the form of provision for loan loss@sl recoveries of prior loan charge-offs,
and decreased by loans charged off. The provisiealculated to bring the allowance to a level Whaccording to a systematic process of
measurement, reflects the amount management estinsateeded to absorb probable losses withindftéopo. While management utilizes
its best judgment and information available, thtamdte adequacy of the allowance is dependent apariety of factors beyond the
Company’s control, including, among other thingyg performance of the Company'’s loan portfolio,éhenomy, changes in interest rates
and the view of the regulatory authorities towarain classifications.

Management performs quarterly assessments to datethe appropriate level of allowance for loarskss Differences between actual loan
loss experience and estimates are reflected thradjgistments that are made by increasing or denget®e allowance based upon current
measurement criteria. Commercial, consumer reatessind non-real estate consumer loan portfoliogwaluated separately for purposes of
determining the allowance. The specific componehtle allowance include allocations to individaammercial loans and credit
relationships and allocations to the remaining homogeneous and homogeneous pools of loans thatiean deemed impaired.
Additionally, a loan that becomes adversely claadibr graded is removed from a group of non-cfeegbor non-graded loans with similar
risk characteristics in order to evaluate the resddwean collectively in a group of adversely clfiedior graded loans with similar risk
characteristics. Management'’s general reserveatltnts are based on judgment of qualitative anchiifasive factors about both macro and
micro economic conditions reflected within the palib of loans and the economy as a whole. Faatonsidered in this evaluation include,
but are not necessarily limited to, probable lo§sa® loan and other credit arrangements, genexai@mic conditions, changes in credit
concentrations or pledged collateral, historicahléoss experience, and trends in portfolio volumaturities, composition, delinquencies,
non-accruals. Historical loss rates for each risidg of commercial loans are adjusted by envirotahéactors to estimate the amount of
reserve needed by segment. While management loaataltl the allowance for loan losses to varioutfgdiar segments, the entire allowance
is available for use against any type of loan issmed appropriate by management.

As part of the Company’s continuing refinementtefmethodology, the qualitative adjustments histdly applied to consumer loans were
revised downward based upon review and analydisstdrical loss experience within the portfolio,the Company now estimates fewer
losses on that portfolio. The decrease in estimlatezks on the consumer portfolio segment wastdffsencreases in estimated losses on the
commercial portfolio segment. Primarily, the inceavas in the specific loss estimated on certapairad loans as a result of new
information regarding the values of underlying atdral. This refinement initially created a sméffiedtence in the allowance allocated to each
portfolio segment. The allocation of the allowa@at¢he beginning of 2011 has been reclassifiedfteat the application of the refinement.

During 2011, the Company further segmented thdesifagnily residential real estate class into owsegupied and non-owner occupied
classes, which management believes provides lggtiaularity and segmentation of loans with similsk characteristics. This segmentation
also contributed to the overall reduction of esteddosses on non-impaired consumer loan segmethe iallowance model, as losses on the
Company’s non-owner occupied residential real edtans have historically been higher than losseswmer occupied residential real estate
loans.
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The following table details the activity in theadlance for loan loss by portfolio segment:

Consumer Rea Consumet

(Amounts in thousand Commercial Estate and Other Total

Allowance for credit losse!

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 8,10/ $ 7,19¢ $ 2,47¢ $ 17,78
Provision for loan losse 10,85( 3,42( 1,531 15,80:
Loans charged o (5,939 (2,395 (2,029 (10,359
Recoveries credited to allowan 59C 112 34¢€ 1,04¢
Net charg-offs (5,349 (2,282) (1,677 (9,306

Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 13,60 $ 8,331 $ 2,33 $ 24,27;

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 13,607 $ 8,331 $ 2,33 $24,27°
Provision for loan losse 6,552 8,10¢ 99 14,75
Loans charged o (7,980 (4,352 (1,270 (13,60:)
Recoveries credited to allowan 33¢ 10¢ 602 1,05(
Net charg-offs (7,647 (4,249 (66¢) (12,55)

Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 12,51¢ $ 12,20( $ 1,764 $ 26,48:

Beginning balance, January 1, 2( $ 12,30( $ 12,64: $ 1,541 $ 26,48:
Provision for loan losse 12,007 (2,687) (279) 9,047
Loans charged o (7,98)) (2,507 (97¢) (11,460
Recoveries credited to allowan 1,42¢ 252 45¢ 2,13¢
Net charg-offs (6,555 (2,249 (520 (9,329

Ending balance, December 31, 2( $ 17,75: $ 7,711 $ 74z $ 26,20

The negative provision in the consumer real estateconsumer and other segments was the resti aférementioned methodology
refinement.
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The Company identifies loans for potential impaintéarough a variety of means including, but notiled to, ongoing loan review, renewal
processes, delinquency data, market communicatmspublic information. If it is determined thatd probable that the Company will not
collect all principal and interest amounts contnatly due, the loan is generally deemed to be inegaiThe following table presents the
Company’s recorded investment in loans consideydmbtimpaired and related information on those inggdoans for the periods ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Related Principal Recorded Income
(Amounts in thousand Investment Allowance Balance Investment Recognize(
Loans without a related allowance
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 411 $ — $ 411 $ 282 $ —
Land developmer 25C — 25C 29:¢ —
Other land loan — — — 76€ —
Commercial and industri 114 — 127 2,251 4
Multi -family residentia 27¢ — 27¢ 1,17 24
Single family no-owner occupiet 1,20€ — 1,24¢ 1,65¢ 39
Non-farm, nor-residential 1,61¢ — 1,647 2,05¢ 25
Agricultural — — — — —
Farmland 25¢€ — 25¢€ 167 —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 36¢ — 37¢ 47¢€ 15
Single family owner occupie 2,42¢ — 2,50¢ 1,82t 43
Owner occupied constructic — — — 60 3
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 6 — 6 23 2
$ 6,93¢ $ — $ 7,10% $ 11,03¢ $ 15t
Loans with a related allowance
Commercial loan
Constructio— commercial $ — $ — $ — $ 13t $ 3
Land developmer — — — — —
Other land loan 112 4 112 11z 6
Commercial and industri; 4,031 2,04¢ 4,06¢ 2,35¢ 21
Multi -family residentia — — — 47C —
Single family no-owner occupiet 2,232 124 2,232 2,32z 107
Non-farm, nor-residential 5,313 1,81¢ 5,48( 4,112 191
Agricultural — — — — —
Farmland — — — 83 —
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: — — — 10¢ —
Single family owner occupie 5,52¢ 1,20 5,612 5,79¢ 164

Owner occupied constructic = — — — _
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan — — — _ _

$17,22: $ 5,19¢ $17,50¢ $ 15,49¢ $ 492
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Loans without a related allowance

Commercial loan

Constructior— commercial

Land developmer

Other land loan

Commercial and industri;

Multi -family residentia

Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residential

Consumer real estate loz

Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic

Consumer and other loa

Consumer loan

Loans with a related allowance

Commercial loan

Constructior— commercial

Land developmer

Other land loan

Commercial and industri

Multi -family residentia

Single family no-owner occupiet
Non-farm, nor-residential

Consumer real estate loz

Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic

Consumer and other loa

Consumer loan
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December 31, 2010

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Related Principal Recorded Income
Investment Allowance Balance Investment Recognize(

$ 127 $ — $ 132 $ 471 $ —

50 — 50 50C —

362 — 362 88¢ —

3,80¢ — 3,837 3,54( —
2,32¢ — 2,34¢ 1,47¢ 32
1,19 — 1,23¢ 82¢ 4
2,97¢ — 3,06¢ 2,00¢ 15
33C — 33t 221 7
67¢ — 69¢ 1,231 32

1 — 1 2 —
$11,85! $ — $12,06¢ $11,167 $ 90

$ — $ — $ — $ 131 $ —
112 5 112 28 2

— — — 3,172 —
728 257 75¢ 987 28
3,38¢ 77C 3,39¢ 1,243 38
1,08( 15€ 1,14( 1,992 59
95 34 98 29¢ 3
5,41°¢ 1,10C 5,491 2,181 67
$10,81: $ 2,324 $10,99¢ $ 10,03¢ $ 197

As part of the ongoing monitoring of the credit liyaof the Company’s loan portfolio, managemeamicks certain credit quality indicators

including trends related to the risk rating of coenial loans, the level of classified commerciarils, net charge-offs, non-performing loans
and general economic conditions. The Company'’s tegiew function generally reviews all commercizdh relationships greater than $2.00

million on an annual basis and at various timesugh the year. Smaller commercial and retail laessampled for review throughout the
year by our internal loan review department. Thiotige loan review process, loans are identifiedifigrade or downgrade in risk rating ¢
changed to reflect current information as parhefprocess.

The Company utilizes a risk grading matrix to assigisk grade to each of its loans. A descriptibthe general characteristics of the risk
grades is as follows:

71

Pass — This grade includes loans to borrowersasable credit quality and risk. The Company fertiifferentiates within this grade
based upon borrower characteristics which inclgdeital strength, earnings stability, liquidity éeage, and industr

Special Mention —This grade includes loans thatiiregmore than a normal degree of supervision #etigon. These loans have all the
characteristics of an adequate asset, but duarng bhdversely affected by economic or financialdibons have a potential weakness
that deserves management’s close attention. lreforrected, these potential weaknesses may ragidterioration of the repayment
prospects for the loa

Substandard — This grade includes loans that halledefined weaknesses which make payment defayltiocipal exposure possible,
but not yet certain. Such loans are apt to be dép®rupon collateral liquidation, a secondary sewfcrepayment, or an event outsid
the normal course of business to meet the repayteens.
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» Doubtful — This grade includes loans that are plam® non-accrual status. These loans have all #akmesses inherent in a
“substandard’ loan with the added factor that tleaknesses are so severe that collection or ligaidat full, on the basis of current
existing facts, conditions and values, is extremellkely, but because of certain specific pendaxgors, the amount of loss cannot yet
be determinec

* Loss — This grade includes loans that are to begeldeoff or charged down when payment is acknowdddg be uncertain or when the
timing or value of payments cannot be determinkds$” is not intended to imply that the asset hmsatovery or salvage value, but
simply that it is not practical or desirable toekefvriting off all or some portion of the loan, evéhough partial recovery may be reali
in the future
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The following tables present the Company’s investinie loans by internal credit grade indicator &cPmber 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Special
(Amounts in thousand Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 3451 $ 15 $ 95t $ — % — % 35,48:
Land developmer 2,47¢ — 42% — — 2,90z
Other land loan 17,17: 5,62¢ 584 — — 23,38¢
Commercial and industri; 86,28¢ 56¢ 2,67¢ 2,407 — 91,93¢
Multi -family residentia 74,48¢ 96t 1,59¢ — — 77,05(
Single family non-owner
occupiec 93,44+ 1,34¢ 11,95: — — 106,74
Non-farm, nor-residential 303,07: 9,63¢ 22,85t 444 — 336,00
Agricultural 1,32 7 40 — — 1,37¢
Farmland 35,56¢ 1,05¢ 53¢ — — 37,16:
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 105,53! 2,231 3,61¢ — — 111,38
Single family owner occupie 435,00: 8,93¢ 29,13( — — 473,06
Owner occupied constructic 19,19( 12¢ 25¢ — — 19,571
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 66,351 19¢ 574 — — 67,12¢
Other 12,857 1 9 — — 12,867
Total loans $ 1,287,28 % 30,72( $ 75,21 $ 2,84¢ $ — $ 1,396,06
December 31, 2010
Special
(Amounts in thousand Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Loss Total
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 40,497 $ 665 $ 153¢ % — 3 — 3 42,69
Land developmer 14,45¢ 1,22¢ 96€ — — 16,65(
Other land loan 16,72¢ 6,13¢ 1,607 — — 24,46¢
Commercial and industri 87,15¢ 1,75¢ 5,211 — — 94,12
Multi -family residentia 61,05¢ 2,55: 4,212 — — 67,82¢
Single family non-owner
occupiec 90,98t 3,56¢ 10,41 — — 104,96(
Non-farm, nor-residential 316,02¢ 18,94: 16,93¢ — — 351,90
Agricultural 1,31¢ — 24 — — 1,34:
Farmland 33,04 2,56¢ 1,34: — — 36,95«
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 106,80: 1,92: 2,89« — — 111,62(
Single family owner occupie 407,84! 11,661 24,03" 654 — 444,19
Owner occupied constructic 17,38¢ 78¢ 171 — — 18,34¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 62,67¢ 30€ 492 — — 63,47¢
Other 7,63 11 — — — 7,64¢
Total loans $ 1,263,661 $ 52,10 $ 69,84( $ 654 $ — $ 1,386,20

Loans graded as special mention decreased $211B8wmor 41.04%, between the years ended Dece®be2011 and 2010, primarily due to
the improved performance of borrowers which miggithe potential weakness previously identified.
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The following tables detail the Company’s recordeagkstment in loans related to each segment imlitberance for loan losses by portfolio
segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Gorsgenpairment methodology at December 31, 201d 201.0:

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industri
Multi -family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiel
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate
loans
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other
loans

Total loans

(Amounts in thousand
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial
Land developmer
Other land loan
Commercial and industri
Multi -family residentia
Single family no-owner occupiel
Non-farm, nor-residential
Agricultural
Farmland
Total commercial loan
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line:
Single family owner occupie
Owner occupied constructic
Total consumer real estate
loans
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan
Other
Total consumer and other
loans

Total loans

December 31, 2011

Loans
Individually
Evaluated for

Allowance for

Loans

Loans
Collectively
Evaluated for

Allowance for

Loans

Acquired,
Impaired Loans

Allowance for
Acquired,
Impaired Loans

Individually Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated
$ 411 $ — $ 35,07: $ 86¢E $ — $ —
25C — 2,652 481 — —
112 4 23,12 54z 14¢ —
3,73¢ 1,847 87,56 1,66¢ 63¢ 201
27¢ — 76,77 1,88¢ — —
3,43¢ 124 102,06 2,83¢ 1,242 —
6,93: 1,81¢ 328,61( 5,114 462 —
— — 1,37¢ 19 — —
25€ — 36,90: 343 — —
15,41¢ 3,794 694,13: 13,757 2,491 201
36¢ — 111,01¢ 1,36t — —
7,95 1,20z 464,71! 4,931 39t —
— — 19,57, 212 — —
8,32¢ 1,20: 595,31: 6,50¢ 39t —
6 — 67,12: 742 — —
— — 12,865 — — —
6 — 79,99( 742 — —
$ 2374 $ 4997 $1,36943 $ 21000 $ 2,88 $ 201
December 31, 2010
Loans Allowance for Loans Allowance for Acquired, Allowance for
Individually Collectively Impaired Loans Acquired,

Evaluated for Loans Evaluated for Loans Impaired Loans
Individually Collectively Evaluated for
Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated Impairment Evaluated

$ 122 $ — $ 42,57 $ 1,472 $ — $ —
50 — 16,60( 1,77z — —
11z 5 23,84: 742 51z —
3,401 — 90,20: 4,511 521 —
3,052 257 64,77: 824 — —
4,58 77C 98,98! 2,44z 1,39¢ —
4,05¢ 15€& 347,42t 2,68¢ 424 —
— — 1,342 19 — —
— — 36,95¢ 70 — —
15,37¢ 1,19C 722,69: 14,54( 2,85¢ —
42t 34 111,19! 2,10¢ - -
6,09: 1,10C 437,73 5,557 36¢ —
— — 18,34¢ 192 — —
6,51¢ 1,13¢ 567,28( 7,854 36¢ —
1 — 63,47 1,764 — —
— — 7,64¢ — — —
1 — 71,12( 1,764 — —
$ 21,89 $ 2,324 $1,361,09. $ 24,15¢ $ 3,221 $ —
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Nor-accrual and Past Due Loans
Non-accrual loans, presented by loan class, considtite following at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

(Amounts in thousand 2011 2010
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 461 $ 28t
Land developmer 297 50
Other land loan 35 321
Commercial and industrii 3,90¢ 3,51¢
Multi -family residentia 341 2,46:
Single family no-owner occupiel 1,63¢ 2,42¢
Non-farm, nor-residential 8,06: 4,67(C
Farmland 271 —
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 51€ 86¢
Single family owner occupie 8,25¢ 3,93¢
Ownel-occupied constructio 1 6
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 52 99
Total 23,83¢ 18,64+
Acquired, impaired loan 651 77C
Total nor-accrual loan: $24,48" $19,41¢
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The following tables present the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans, by loan claddeaémber 31, 2011 and 2010. Non-
accrual loans, excluding those 0 to 29 days passtale included in the applicable delinquency aatedrhere were no loans past due 90 days
and still accruing interest at December 31, 20120410.

December 31, 2011

Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand 30 59 Day: 60 89 Day: 90+ Days Past Due Loans Loans
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 48 3$ — $ 411 $ 45¢ $ 35,02¢ $ 3548
Land developmer — — 297 297 2,60¢ 2,902
Other land loan 20E — 27¢ 484 22,90( 23,38¢
Commercial and industri; 15C 30 3,56¢ 3,74¢ 88,19: 91,93¢
Multi -family residentia 667 — 34z 1,00¢ 76,04 77,05(
Single family no-owner occupiel 1,222 414 1,02( 2,65¢ 104,08 106,74
Non-farm, nor-residential 837 86( 2,18( 3,871 332,12¢ 336,00
Agricultural — 7 — 7 1,367 1,374
Farmland 152 — 25¢ 41C 36,75 37,16:
Consumer real estate loz
Home equity line: 64z 222 23E 1,09¢ 110,28¢ 111,38°
Single family owner occupie 5,23( 1,99: 5,33: 12,55¢ 460,51: 473,06’
Owner occupied constructic — 29 — 29 19,54¢ 19,571
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 19¢ 71 12 281 66,84¢ 67,12¢
Other — — — — 12,86 12,86
Total loans $ 9,351 $ 3,62¢ $13,93° $26,91: $1,369,15! $1,396,06
December 31, 2010
Total Current Total
(Amounts in thousand 30 59 Day: 60 -89 Days 90+ Days Past Due Loans Loans
Commercial loan
Constructior— commercial $ 531 $ — $ 122 $ 652 $ 42,04. $ 42,69
Land developmer — — 50 50 16,60( 16,65(
Other land loan — — 684 684 23,78¢ 24,46¢
Commercial and industri 3,64¢ 121 35¢€ 4,12¢ 89,99¢ 94,12
Multi -family residentia 95€ — 1,79: 2,74¢ 65,07t 67,82¢
Single family no-owner occupiel 1,78¢ 34t 2,16¢ 4,29¢ 100,66: 104,96(
Non-farm, nor-residential 3,251 2,05¢ 3,24¢ 8,55¢ 343,34 351,90
Agricultural 19 — — 19 1,32: 1,34:
Farmland 11C — — 11C 36,84 36,95«
Consumer real estate loe
Home equity line: 682 25C 60¢ 1,54( 110,08 111,62(
Single family owner occupie 8,50: 1,39¢ 2,04 11,94: 432,25¢ 444,19
Owner occupied constructic 85E 32¢ 6 1,18i 17,16: 18,34¢
Consumer and other loa
Consumer loan 43¢ 47 31 511 62,96¢ 63,47¢
Other — — — — 7,64¢€ 7,64¢
Total loans $20,77: $ 4,541 $11,11: $36,42¢ $1,349,78  $1,386,20!

Troubled Debt Restructurings

At December 31, 2011, total loan restructuringses&t2.72 million which included $3.27 million ofdins on non-accrual status. The
allowance for loan losses related to loan restruags was $1.14 million. Total interest income mgiized on loan restructurings for the year
ended December 31, 2011, totaled $561 thousandC®hepany’s review of loan modifications beginniragndary 1, 2011, did not identify
any TDRs resulting from the adoption of the guidanatlined in ASU 2011-02.
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When restructuring loans for troubled borrowers, @ompany generally makes concessions in intesites,rloan terms and/or amortization
terms. All restructured loans to troubled borrowiarexcess of $250 thousand are evaluated for @fapeeserve based on the net present
value method. Restructured loans under $250 thausansubject to the reserve calculation at theiésl loss rate for classified loans.

The following table presents loans modified as TD&&luding those on non-accrual status, withingfevious 12 months by the types of
concessions made by loan class during the yeaddddeember 31, 2011. The post-modification totptesents the recorded investment
immediately following the modification.

Number of
Pre-Modification Post-Modification
(Amounts in thousand Loans Recorded Investmen Recorded Investmen
Below market interest ra
Non-farm, nor-residential 1 $ 373 $ 373
Single family owner occupie 2 15¢ 15¢
Total 3 532 532
Extended payment tern
Non-farm, nor-residential 1 12¢€ 12¢€
Single family owner occupie 1 267 267
Total 2 39z 39z
Below market interest rate and extended
payment term
Non-farm, nor-residential 1 107 107
Single family residential mortgag 4 75¢ 73€
5 86¢€ 842
Total loan concessior 10 $ 1,791 $ 1,76¢

The following table presents loans modified as TDRkin the previous 12 months for which there \agsayment default during the year
ended December 31, 2011:

Number of
Pre-Modification Post-Modification
(Amounts in thousand Loans Recorded Investmen Recorded Investmen
Non-farm, nor-residential 1 $ 38 $ 38
Total loan concessiot 1 $ 38 $ 38

Note 6. Premises and Equipmen
Premises and equipment were comprised of the fallgwat December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(Amounts in thousand
Land $ 18,75 $ 19,11
Bank premise 51,66¢ 51,52¢
Equipment 32,52t 33,05(
102,94 103,68t¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 48,22t 47 ,44¢
Total $ 54,72: $ 56,24«

Total depreciation and amortization expense fottinee years ended December 31, 2011, was $3.98m#$4.09 million, and $4.03 milliol
respectively.
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The Company enters into land and building leasethfooperation of banking and loan productioncaf§i, operations centers and for the
operation of automated teller machines. All suasés qualify as operating leases. Following ishaedule by year of future minimum lease
payments required under operating leases thatih#iz or remaining non-cancelable lease termexoess of one year as of December 31,
2011

Amount

(Amounts in thousand
2012 $ 952
2013 801
2014 441
2015 32¢
2016 2432
Later year: 1,33¢
Total $4,09¢

Total lease expense for the three years ended Dexedh, 2011, was $1.17 million, $1.20 million, &1d03 million, respectively. Certain
portions of the above listed leases have beentsuabikird parties for properties not currentlytipiused by the Company. The impact of the
future lease payments to be received on the nocetanle subleases is as follows:

Amount

(Amounts in thousand -

2012 $ 217

2013 197
2014 —
2015 —
2016 —
Later years —

Total $ 414

Related Party Leaset

Included in total lease expense were leases wlalext parties totaling $164 thousand and $160 #radist December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Note 7.  Deposits
The following is a summary of interest-bearing d&fsoby type at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(Amounts in thousand
Interes-bearing demand depos $ 275,15¢ $ 262,42
Money market accoun 167,37¢ 217,36:
Savings deposil 227,32¢ 209,18!
Certificates of depos 528,73! 619,77¢
Individual retirement accoun 104,60: 107,06:
Total $1,303,19 $1,415,80
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At December 31, 2011, the scheduled maturitiegvd tleposits were as follows:

Amount

(Amounts in thousand
2012 $355,84(
2013 103,94¢
2014 41,69¢
2015 98,49t
2016 and thereaftt 33,35¢

$633,33¢

Time deposits of $100 thousand or more were $289iibn and $332.09 million at December 31, 20hH 2010, respectively. At
December 31, 2011, the scheduled maturities officates of deposit of $100 thousand or more weréolows:

Amount
(Amounts in thousand
Three months or les $ 50,51t
Over three to six montt 66,32¢
Over six to twelve month 46,86(
Over twelve month 125,91(
Total $289,61:

Related Party Deposi

Included in total deposits were deposits by relgiadies of $3.84 million and $17.11 million at Reaber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
During 2011, $1.29 million in new deposits and eages were made while decreases on such depasifie¢os and directors totaled $14.57
million. Changes in the composition of the Comparsubsidiary board members and executive offi@sslted in decreases of $2.11 million.

Note 8.  Borrowings
The following schedule details borrowings at Decenfil, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010

(Amounts in thousand

Securities sold under agreements to repurc $129,20¢ $140,89:

FHLB borrowings 150,00( 175,00(

Subordinated del 15,46+ 15,46¢

Other deb 46¢€ 72¢
Total $295,14: $332,08°

Securities sold under agreements to repurchaséstect®f $79.21 million and $90.89 million of rdtavernight and term repurchase
agreements at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respigctmd $50.00 million of wholesale repurchasesagrents at both December 31, 2011
and 2010. The weighted average rate of the wh@esalurchase agreements was 3.71% at both Dec&hh2011 and 2010, respectively.
The wholesale repurchase agreements had a weigiéedge maturity of 6.08 years at December 31, 28d are collateralized with agency
MBS.

First Community Bank (the “Bank”) is a member o thkHLB which provides credit in the form of shogtrh and long-term advances
collateralized by various mortgage assets. Advafroes the FHLB were secured by qualifying loanstioig $693.33 million and $587.69
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivEfye FHLB advances are subject to restrictionseoralties in the event of prepayment.
At December 31, 2011, unused borrowing capaciti tie FHLB totaled $132.39 million.

FHLB borrowings included $150.00 million and $1@million in convertible and callable advances atBmber 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. During the first quarter of 2011, @@mpany prepaid $25.00 million of a $75 million [EBladvance. The callable advances i
be redeemed at quarterly intervals after varioukdat periods. These call options may
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substantially shorten the lives of these instrumeifithese advances are called, the debt mayiddrp&ull or converted to another FHLB
credit product. Prepayment of the advances maytnessubstantial penalties based upon the diffégaébetween contractual note rates and
current advance rates for similar maturities. Thégivted average contractual rate of all FHLB adeangas 4.12% and 2.39% at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The deeris due to structure within those borrowinge FHLB advances had a weighted
average maturity of 6.57 years at December 31,.2011

At December 31, 2011, the FHLB advances had apmprabe contractual final maturities between five tamdyears. The scheduled maturities
of the advances are as follows:

Amount
(Amounts in thousand

2012 $ —
2013 —
2014 —
2015 —
2016 —
2017 and thereaftt 150,00(

$150,00(

In January 2006, the Company entered into a fiee gerivative swap instrument where it received@MBbased variable interest payments
and paid fixed interest payments. The notional arhofithe derivative swap was $50.00 million anigéetively fixed a portion of the FHLB
borrowings at 4.34%. This derivative interest it@p instrument expired in January 2011. For a rdetailed discussion of activities
regarding derivatives, see “Note 13 — Derivativetdimments and Hedging Activities” of the Notes mn8olidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 herein.

Also included in borrowings is $15.46 million ofjior subordinated debentures (the “Debenturssied by the Company in October 200
an unconsolidated trust subsidiary, FCBI Capitaist{the “Trust”), with an interest rate of thre@mth LIBOR plus 2.95%. The Trust was
able to purchase the Debentures through the issuzroust preferred securities which had subsadiptidentical terms as the Debentures.
Debentures mature on October 8, 2033, and arertlyri@allable. The net proceeds from the offerirgr@vcontributed as capital to the Ban
support further growth. The Company’s obligationsler the Debentures and other relevant Trust agmetsmin aggregate, constitute a full
and unconditional guarantee by the Company of tiist® obligations.

Despite the fact that the accounts of the Trushatencluded in the Comparg/tonsolidated financial statements, the trustepred securitie
issued by the Trust are included in the Tier 1tedpif the Company for regulatory capital purposesderal Reserve Board rules limit the
aggregate amount of restricted core capital elesn@vtiich includes trust preferred securities, amathgr things) that may be included in the
Tier 1 capital of most bank holding companies t&25 all core capital elements, including restrict®re capital elements, net of goodwill
less any associated deferred tax liability. Theentrquantitative limits do not preclude the Compaiom including the $15.46 million in trv
preferred securities outstanding in Tier 1 catabf December 31, 2011.
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Note 9.  Income Taxes
The components of income tax expense (benefit) rtoninuing operations consist of the following:

(Amounts in thousand 2011 2010 2009
Current tax expense (bene!
Federal $7,101 $(5,26¢) $ (9,539
State 11C 78 24¢€
7,211 (5,190 (9,28¢)
Deferred tax expense (bene
Federal 1,65( 12,39 (17,609
State 712 611 (1,259
2,36: 13,00¢ (18,86¢)
Total income tax expense (bene $9,57: $ 7,81¢ $(28,159)

Deferred income taxes related to continuing openatreflect the net effects of temporary differenbetween the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting versus taurposes. The following table details the tax affext significant items comprising the
Company’s net deferred tax assets as of Decemh@031 and 2010;

2011 2010
(Amounts in thousand
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losse $10,02:¢ $ 9,931
Unrealized losses on AFS securit 3,44¢ 6,72¢
Unrealized loss on derivative secul — 58¢€
Securities impairment 7,34¢ 5,15(
Deferred compensatic 3,69z 4,57(
State net operating loss carryforwi 57¢ 1,69¢
Alternative minimum tax cred 2,03¢ 2,782
Other 2,714 3,09¢
Total deferred tax asse $29,83¢ $34,54¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible asset $ 5,95¢ $ 6,25¢
Odd days interest defert 1,73¢ 1,72
Fixed asset 2,39¢ 2,564
Other 872 1,222
Total deferred tax liabilitie 10,95¢ 11,76:
Net deferred tax asse $18,88: $22,78:

Income taxes as a percentage of pre-tax incomevargysignificantly from statutory rates due to itenf income and expense which are
excluded, by law, from the calculation of taxalsiedme, as well as the utilization of available ¢eedits. Municipal bond income represents
the most significant permanent tax difference.
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The reconciliation of the statutory federal taerahd the effective tax rate from continuing operet for the three years ended December 31,
2011, are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Tax at statutory rat 35.0(% 35.0(% 35.0(%
Increase resulting fron
Tax-exempt interest income, net of nondeductible exp (6.40) (6.79 2.8¢
State income taxes, net of federal ber 2.7¢ 2.32 0.6t
Gain on acquisition, net of acquisition relatedts: 0.0C 0.0C 2.24
Other, ne 0.9¢ (4.18) 1.2¢
Effective tax rate 32.3¢% 26.35% 42.06%

Note 10. Employee Benefits
Employee Stock Ownership and Savings Plan

The Company maintains an Employee Stock OwnersidpSavings Plan (“KSOP”). Coverage under the pdgorovided to all employees
meeting minimum eligibility requirements.

Employer Stock FuniAnnual contributions to the stock portion of tharplvere made through 2006 at the discretion oBtierd of Director:
and allocated to plan participants on the basiglative compensation. The plan was frozen to &itantributions for periods after 2006.
Substantially all plan assets are invested in Com8tock of the Company. The Company reports théribortions to the plan as a compon
of salaries and benefits. All contributions made@2006 have been made to the employee savingygdeaf the plan. Accordingly, there wi
no contributions to the Employer Stock Fund in 2Q010, or 2009. The Employer Stock Fund held 588,683,256, and 504,801 shares of
the Company’s Common Stock at December 31, 20110,28nd 2009, respectively.

Employee Savings Ple. The Company provides a 401(k) savings featurbimwthe KSOP that is available to substantiallyeatiployees
meeting minimum eligibility requirements. Under #@l(k) feature, the Company makes matching cartidbs to employee deferrals at
levels determined by the board on an annual bk cost of the Company’s 100% matching contrimgito qualified deferrals under the
401(k) savings component of the KSOP was $1.34anjli$1.12 million, and $1.37 million in 2011, 2Q&hd 2009, respectively. In 2011,
2010, and 2009, the Company made its matchingibotitsn in Company Common Stock.

Employee Welfare Plan

The Company provides various medical, dental, wisiée, accidental death and dismemberment, and-term disability insurance benefits
to all full-time employees who elect coverage under this progide health plan is managed by a third party athtmator. Monthly employ:t
and employee contributions are made to a tax-exemptoyer benefits trust against which the thirdypadministrator processes and pays
claims. Stop-loss insurance coverage limits the @amyg’s risk of loss to $85 thousand and $4.36 amilfor individual and aggregate claims,
respectively. Total Company expenses under therhpkn were $3.49 million, $2.98 million, and $4 &iillion in 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has deferred compensation agreemethtgeviain current and former officers providing fenefit payments over various
periods commencing at retirement or death. Thdlilialas of year-end 2011 and 2010 was $463 thodisam $467 thousand, respectively.
The annual expenses associated with these agreemerrg $60 thousand in 2011, 2010, and 2009. Thgatibn is based upon the present
value of the expected payments and estimated{je@ancies of the individuals.

The Company maintains a life insurance contradheriife of one of the participants covered undiesse agreements. Proceeds derived from
death benefits are intended to provide reimburséwigolan benefits paid over the post employmarediof the participants. Premiums on the
insurance contract are currently paid through pdliwidends on the cash surrender values of $2.i®m $1.29 million, and $1.20 million

at December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.
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Supplemental Executive Retention Plan

The Company maintains a Supplemental ExecutiverfletePlan (the “SERP”) for key members of seni@nagement. The SERP provides
for a defined benefit at normal retirement agedtad at 35% of projected final base salary. Bemefider the SERP become payable at age
62. The associated benefit accrued as of year-@hdl @nd 2010 was $5.11 million and $4.07 milli@spectively, while the associated
expense incurred in connection with the Executie¢eRtion Plan was $519 thousand, $424 thousandb40@ithousand for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.

Projected benefit payments for the SERP are exgeatbe paid as follows:

Amount
(Amounts in thousand
2012 $ 151
2013 213
2014 213
2015 213
2016 213
2017 through 202 1,83¢

The following sets forth the components of thep@iodic benefit cost of the Company’s domestic-nontributory, non-qualified defined
SERP for years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(Amounts in thousand

Service cos $29¢t $213
Interest cos 224 211
Net periodic cos $51¢ $424

The discount rates assumed as of December 31, @@té lowered from 5.50% to 4.40%. The SERP isrdanded plan, and as such there
are no plan assets. At December 31, 2011, theraatbanefit plan obligation was $5.11 million.

Directors’ Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a Directors’ Supplementalr&atnt Plan (the “Directors’ Plan”) for its non-nemement directors. The Directors’
Plan provides for a benefit upon retirement fromvise on the Board. The Directors’ Plan was ameridddiecember 2010 to substitute a
defined benefit in lieu of the previous indexed &fgnEffective January 1, 2011, the Directors’'iPfrovides for a defined benefit at normal
retirement age targeted at 100% of the highestemuive three years average compensation. Beneiiter the Directors’ Plan become
payable at age 70. The associated benefit accrieflyeear-end 2011 and 2010 was $943 thousand =60 $illion, respectively, while the
associated expense incurred in connection witlDirectors’ Plan was $162 thousand, $259 thousamdl $458 thousand for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.

Projected benefit payments for the Directors’ Riemexpected to be paid as follows:

Amount
(Amounts in thousand
2012 $ 83
2013 83
2014 83
2015 83
2016 83
2017 through 202 55k
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The following sets forth the components of thep@iodic benefit cost of the Company’s domestic-nontributory, non-qualified Directors’
Plan, as amended, which was effective as of Jariy&911, for the year ended December 31, 2011:

2011
(Amounts in thousand

Service cos $11¢
Interest cos 43
Net periodic cos $162

The discount rates assumed as of December 31, 2@1é lowered from 5.50% to 4.40%. The DirectoisinHs an unfunded plan, and as
such there are no plan assets. At December 31, 2@ Actuarial benefit plan obligation was $943usand.

Note 11. Equity-Based Compensation
Stock Options

The Company maintains share-based compensatioa wgaromote the long-term success of the Compgrgnbouraging officers,
employees, directors and individuals performingises for the Company to focus on critical longgarobjectives.

At the 2004 Annual Meeting, the Company’s sharetiddatified approval of the 2004 Omnibus Stocki@pPlan (“2004 Plan™yvhich mads
available up to 200,000 shares for potential grahiscentive stock options, non-qualified stockiops, restricted stock awards or
performance awards. Non-qualified and incentivelstaptions, as well as restricted and unrestristedk may continue to be awarded under
the 2004 Plan. Vesting under the 2004 Plan is gdélgesver a three-year period.

In 2001, the Company instituted a plan to grantkstptions to non-employee directors (the “Direst@ption Plan”). The options granted
pursuant to the Director©ption Plan expire at the earlier of ten years ftbendate of grant or two years after the opticreseses to serve a
director of the Company. Options not exercised withe appropriate time shall expire and be deeca@delled. Options under the Directors’
Option Plan were granted in the form of non-stagustock options with the aggregate number of shafeCommon Stock available for grant
under the Directors’ Option Plan set at 108,900eshéadjusted for the 10% stock dividends paidid22and 2003).

In 1999, the Company instituted the 1999 Stock @pRlan (the “1999 Plan”). Options under the 19B®hRvere granted in the form of non-
statutory stock options with the aggregate numbshares of Common Stock available for grant uriderPlan set at 332,750 (adjusted for
10% stock dividends paid in 2002 and 2003). Théoptgranted under the 1999 Plan represent thésrighacquire the option shares with
deemed grant dates of Januasy 1 for each yearmiagiwith the initial year granted and the followifour anniversaries. All stock options
granted pursuant to the 1999 Plan vest ratablyeriitst through the seventh anniversary datehefieemed grant date. The option price of
each stock option is equal to the fair market véhsedefined by the 1999 Plan) of the Company’s @omStock on the date of each deemed
grant during the five-year grant period. Vestedlstoptions granted pursuant to the 1999 Plan agecesable during employment and for a
period of five years after the date of the grargeetirement, provided retirement occurs at oraftge 62. If employment is terminated other
than by early retirement, disability, or death,tedsoptions must be exercised within 90 days #fieeffective date of termination. Any opt
not exercised within such period will be deemedcetlad.

The Company also has options from various optiangbther than described above (the Prior Plangjeter, no common shares of the
Company are available for grants under the Prian®lAwards outstanding under the Prior Plansresitiain in effect in accordance with th
respective terms.

The cash flows from the tax benefits resulting friamx deductions in excess of the compensation esgpertognized for those options and
restricted stock (“excess tax benefits”) are cfassias financing cash flows. Excess tax bendditsling $5 thousand, $9 thousand, and $2
thousand are classified as financing cash inflaw2611, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

During the three years ended December 31, 201 dhepany recognized pre-tax compensation expefeaeddo total equity-based
compensation of $98 thousand, $58 thousand, an8 thbbisand, respectively. The Company recognize#yebjased compensation on a
straight line pro-rata basis, so that the percentddghe total expense recognized for an awarévemnless than the percentage of the award
that has vested.

As of December 31, 2011, there was $221 thousandrecognized compensation cost related to unvestett options. That cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average peridd4af years. The actual compensation cost recogmidkdiffer from this estimate due to a
number of items, including new awards granted drahges in estimated forfeitures.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s stogtion activity, and related information for theayeended December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Exercise Price Remaining Contractual
Option Intrinsic
Shares Per Share Term (Years) Value
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shete
Outstanding at January 1, 20 403,21 $ 22381
Granted 102,84 12.07
Exercisec 2,96¢ 9.11
Forfeited 23,65( 19.31
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 479,44, $ 20.7¢ 7.2 $ 53
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 395,24. $ 2261 6.7 $ 21

The fair value of options was estimated at the daggant using the Black-Scholes-Merton optiortiog model and certain assumptions.
Expected volatility is based on the weekly histakiolatility of the Company’s stock price over thepected term of the option. Expected
dividend yield is based on the ratio of the mostnr¢ dividend rate paid per share of the Compa@gimmon Stock to recent trading price of
the Company’s Common Stock. The expected termriergdly calculated using the “shortcut method.” Tis&-free interest rate is based on
the U.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of gfanthe period equal to the expected term of thigoap

The fair values of grants made during the threesyeaded December 31, 2011, were estimated usinfplibwing weighted average
assumptions:

2011 2010 2009
Volatility 27.96% — 44.8%
Expected dividend yiel 3.2% — 2.71%
Expected term (in year 6.1¢ — 6.2C
Risk-free rate 1.5(% — 2.81%

The weighted average grant-date fair value of ogtigranted and the aggregate intrinsic value aboptexercised during the year ended
December 31, 2011, was $2.56 and $13 thousandsaiagly. There were no grants made during the gaded December 31, 2010. The
weighted average grant-date fair value of opticlastpd and the aggregate intrinsic value of optexescised during the year ended
December 31, 2009, was $5.33 and $5 thousand,atesyg.

Stock Awards

The 2004 Plan permits the granting of restrictedl amrestricted shares of the Company’s Common Stihkr alone, in addition to, or in
tandem with other awards made by the Company. Sjrankis are generally measured at fair value on#te of grant based on the number of
shares granted and the quoted price of the Comp&wymmon Stock. Such value is recognized as expamesehe corresponding service
period. Compensation costs related to these typawards are consistently reported for all peripassented.

85



Table of Contents

FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The following table summarizes the changes in tom@any’s nonvested shares of the Company’s Comrtamk $or the year ended
December 31, 2011:

Weighted Average

Shares Grant-Date Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 3,70C $ 15.0¢
Granted 3,60( 12.0z
Vested 95C 12.8¢
Forfeited — —
Nonvested at December 31, 2C 6,35( $ 13.6i

As of December 31, 2011, there was $76 thousandri@cognized compensation cost related to unvestett awards. That cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average peridd0& years. The actual compensation cost recogmidkdiffer from this estimate due to a
number of items, including new awards granted drahges in estimated forfeitures.

Note 12. Litigation, Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

In the normal course of business, the Companydefendant in various legal actions and asserteshslaVhile the Company and its legal
counsel are unable to assess the ultimate outcbsech of these matters with certainty, the Compaalieves the resolution of these actions,

singly or in the aggregate, should not have a nadtadverse effect on the financial condition, tesaf operations or cash flows of the
Company.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to financial instrumentswitf-balance sheet risk in the normal course Gifess to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include ciiments to extend credit, standby letters of cradd financial guarantees. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elemeftsexdit and interest rate risk beyond the amoeabgnized on the balance sheet. The
contractual amounts of those instruments reflexitktent of involvement the Company has in paricalasses of financial instruments. The
Company’s exposure to credit loss in the eventoofperformance by the other party to the finanicisfrument for commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit and finangizrantees written is represented by the contrieatnaunt of those instruments. The
Company uses the same credit policies in makingntibmments and conditional obligations as it doesoimbalance sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totleadcustomer as long as there is not a violaifaany condition established in the
contract. Commitments generally have fixed exporatiates or other termination clauses and may regayment of a fee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beirgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not rezaég represent future cash
requirements. The Company evaluates each custooredgworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The @nobeollateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of ciedigsed on management’s credit evaluation of th@terparties. Collateral held varies
but may include accounts receivable, inventorypprty, plant and equipment, and income-producirmgroercial properties.

Standby letters of credit and written financial gudees are conditional commitments issued by tirafgany to guarantee the performance of
a customer to a third party. The credit risk invamhin issuing letters of credit is essentially shene as that involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. To the extent deemed rszggscollateral of varying types and amounts Id k@ secure customer performance under
certain of those letters of credit outstanding.

Financial instruments, whose contract amounts sgprtecredit risk at December 31, 2011 and 2010c@mamitments to extend credit
(including availability of lines of credit) of $19%K¥ million and $209.98 million, respectively, astdndby letters of credit and financial
guarantees of $2.90 million and $4.04 million, exgjvely. The Company maintained a liability of $3housand and $370 thousand,
respectively, at December 31, 2011 and 2010, whgphesents its reserve for unfunded commitments.

The Company has issued, through the Trust, $15ili@mof trust preferred securities in a privatagement. In connection with the issuance
of the trust preferred securities, the Companydaasmitted to irrevocably and unconditionally guaesnthe following payments or
distributions with respect to the trust preferredwgities to the holders thereof to the extent thafTrust has not made such payments or
distributions and has the funds therefore: (i) aedrand unpaid distributions, (ii) the redemptioicgy and (iii) upon a dissolution or
termination of the Trust, the lesser of the liqtiola amount and all accrued and unpaid distribwiand the amount of assets of the Trust
remaining available for distribution.
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Note 13. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiies

The Company uses derivative instruments primaoilgrotect against the risk of adverse price or@sterate movements on the value of
certain assets and liabilities and on future chmshis. These derivatives may consist of interes sataps, floors, caps, collars, futures, forv
contracts, and written and purchased options. R#vie instruments represent contracts betweengsatiat usually require little or no initial
net investment and result in one party deliveriaghcor another type of asset to the other partgchas a notional amount and an underlying
asset as specified in the contract.

The primary derivatives that the Company usesraegéast rate swaps and IRLCs. Generally, thesauimsints help the Company manage
exposure to market risk and meet customer financa®gls. Market risk represents the possibility dtahomic value or net interest income
will be adversely affected by fluctuations in ext&@rfactors, such as interest rates, market-diivan rates and prices or other economic
factors.

Interest Rate SwapThe Company uses interest rate swap contracts difyrits exposure to interest rate risk. The Comphad a derivative
interest rate swap instrument that ended in Jar2@ty. The Company employed a cash flow hedgiragegyy to effectively convert certain
floating-rate liabilities into fixed-rate instrumisn The interest rate swap was accounted for uh@etshort-cut” method as required by the
Derivatives and Hedging Topic 815 of the ASC. Cleanigp fair value of the interest rate swap wer@mnegl as a component of other
comprehensive income. The Company does not cuyrentploy fair value hedging strategies.

Interest Rate Lock Commitmerin the normal course of business, the Company sglitnated mortgage loans into the secondary rageg
loan market. During the period of loan originatamd prior to the sale of the loans into the seconaerket, the Company has exposure to
movements in interest rates associated with moetdzans that are in the “mortgage pipeline.” A fipeloan is one on which the potential
borrower has set the interest rate for the loaarigring into an IRLC. Once a mortgage loan isedosnd funded, it is included within loans
held for sale and awaits sale and delivery intosmondary market. During the term of an IRLC,Glmenpany has the risk that interest rates
will change from the rate quoted to the borrower.

The Company'’s balance of mortgage loans held flerisssubject to changes in fair value, due totflations in interest rates from the loan
closing date through the date of sale of the loémthe secondary market. Typically, the fair vadfi¢hese loans declines when interest rates
increase and rises in value when interest ratezdse.

The following table presents the aggregate contedcor notional, amounts of derivative financistruments as of the dates indicated:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
(Amounts in thousand
Interest rate swa $ — $ 50,00(
IRLC’s 9,15¢ 7,56¢

The Company entered into an interest rate swapatene accounted for as a cash flow hedge in Jgr2@06. The $50.00 million notional
amount pay fixed, receive variable interest rataswas a liability with an estimated fair valueb8flL thousand at December 31, 2010. The
Company paid a fixed rate of 4.34% and receivetB®DIR-based floating rate from the counterparty. Ayayjns and losses associated with the
market value fluctuations of the interest rate swape included in OCI. The derivative expired imuJary 2011.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair valdébeoCompany’s derivatives were as follows:

Asset Derivatives

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Balance Shee Fair Balance Sheet Fair
(Amounts in thousand Location Value Location Value
Derivatives not designated as hed
IRLC’s Other asse  $13t  Otherasse $ 28
Total $13E 28
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Liability Derivatives

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair
(Amounts in thousand Location Value Location Value
Derivatives designated as hed;

Interest rate swa Other liabilities $—  Other liabilities  $ 31
Total — $31
Derivatives not designated as hed

IRLC’s Other liabilities $ 6  Other liabilities  $ 59
Total $ 6 $ 59
Total derivatives $ 6 90

Effect of Derivatives and Hedging Activities on theome StatemerFor the years ended December 31, 2011 and 201CQdhmpany
determined there was no amount of ineffectivenessagh flow hedges. The following table detail:x\gand losses recognized in income on
non-designated hedging instruments for the peroded December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Amount of Gain (Loss)

Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivative
Derivatives Not Recognized in Income o Year Ended December 31,
Designated as Hedging
Instruments Derivative 2011 2010
(Amounts in thousand
IRLC’s Other income $ 16C $ 41
Total $ 16C $ 41

Counterparty Credit RisK.ike other financial instruments, derivatives camtan element of “credit risk.” Credit risk is tpessibility that the
Company will incur a loss because a counterparhjcivmay be a bank, a brokdealer or a customer, fails to meet its contraabébations
This risk is measured as the expected positiveacephent value of contracts. All derivative contsaty be executed only with exchanges or
counterparties approved by the Company’s AssetilitialMlanagement Committee.

Note 14. Regulatory Capital Requirements and Restrictions

The Company and the Bank are subject to varioudatayy capital requirements administered by saaig federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initisgan mandatory and possibly additional discretigractions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effedhenCompany’s financial statements. Under the ahpidequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actiarhich applies only to the Bank, the Bank must nspetific capital guidelines that involve
guantitative measures of the entity’s assets,liiegs, and certain off-balance sheet items asutaled under regulatory accounting practices.
The Bank’s capital amounts and classificationsadse subject to qualitative judgments by the reputaabout components, risk weightings,
and other factors. Quantitative measures estalblisiigegulation to ensure capital adequacy regh#eCompany and the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios for total and Tier litedyfas defined in the regulations) to riglkeighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 ct
(as defined) to average assets (as defined).

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Banktmmagntain minimum total capital to risk-weighteskats, Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets, and Tier 1 capital to average assets dlgopratios established by banking regulators. étdinber 31, 2011, the Company and the
Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to wihiely are subject. At December 31, 2011 and 2@Erost recent notifications from
regulators categorized the Bank as well capitalizeder the regulatory framework for prompt corneetaction. There are no conditions or
events since those notifications that managemdigives have changed the institution’s category.
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The following tables present the Company’s andBhek’s capital ratios at December 31, 2011 and 2010

(Amounts in thousand

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets

First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage)
First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

(Amounts in thousand

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets
First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets (Leverage
First Community Bancshares, Ir

First Community Banl|

December 31, 2011

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$257,83¢ 18.15% $113,62¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
226,50¢ 16.12%  112,41: 8.0(% $140,51: 10.0(%
239,92¢ 16.8%% 56,81 4.0(% N/A N/A
208,83: 14.8% 56,20¢ 4.0(% 84,30¢ 6.0(%
239,92¢ 11.5(% 83,47 4.0(% N/A N/A
208,83 10.08% 82,90¢ 4.0(% 103,63 5.0(%
December 31, 2010
To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$224,93. 15.37% $117,34¢ 8.0(% N/A N/A
207,14 14.1&% 116,89: 8.0(% $146,11! 10.0(%
206,42¢ 14.0% 58,67t 4.0(% N/A N/A
188,77 12.92% 58,44¢  4.0(% 87,66¢ 6.0(%
206,42¢ 9.44% 87,46¢ 4.0(% N/A N/A
188,77: 8.6€% 87,15¢ 4.0(% 108,94 5.0(%

The primary source of funds for dividends paid by €Company is dividends received from the Bankideinds paid by the Bank are subject
to restrictions by banking regulations. Approvalrbgulatory authorities is required if the effettividends declared would cause the
regulatory capital of the Bank to fall below spesdf minimum levels. As described below, the Bantetpuired to maintain heightened
regulatory capital ratios. Approval is also reqdiredividends declared exceed the net profitsfiat year combined with the retained net

profits for the preceding two years.
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Note 15. Other Operating Income and Expense

Other operating income and expense include cectssts, the total of which exceeds one percent wibooed interest income and noninterest
income, that are presented in the following tabletlie years indicated:

(Amounts in thousand 2011 2010 2009
Income
Credited dividends on life insuran $ 96¢ $ 867 $ 81¢
Expense!
Service fee: 2,941 3,31t 3,65¢
Advertising and public relatior 1,68: 1,58¢ 1,63:
Telephone and data communicatis 1,61¢€ 1,46¢ 1,39¢
Professional fee 1,554 1,99¢ 1,75¢
ATM processing expenst 1,51t 1,24¢ 97t
Office supplies 1,222 1,36¢ 1,32
Non-employee production commissia 49: 52¢€ 64¢

Related Party Fee

Included in other operating expense are legal fe@bto related parties totaling $80 thousand, ##08sand, and $86 thousand in 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively.

Note 16. Fair Value
Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

Fair value is defined as the price that would lmeired to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifglin an orderly transaction between market
participants. A fair value measurement assumeghlearansaction to sell the asset or transfelidhdity occurs in the principal market for t
asset or liability or, in the absence of a printiparket, the most advantageous market for thet asdiability. The price in the principal, or
most advantageous, market used to measure theafa@ of the asset or liability shall not be adjaistor transaction costs. An orderly
transaction is a transaction that assumes exptstine market for a period prior to the measurendate to allow for marketing activities that
are usual and customary for transactions involginch assets and liabilities; it is not a forcedgextion. Market participants are buyers and
sellers in the principal market that are (i) indagent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transauotd (iv) willing to transact.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabilities that the reporting gnktias the ability
to access at the measurement ¢

Level 2 Inputs- Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviildat are observable for the asset or liabilitihesi directly or
indirectly. These might include quoted prices fionikar assets or liabilities in active markets, tpebprices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matdkéhat are not active, inputs other than quotémkeprthat are
observable for the asset or liability and provideasonable basis for fair value determinationhaginterest
rates, yield curves, volatilities, prepayment speee@fault rates, and credit risks, or inputs #natderived
principally from observable market da

Level 3 Inputs- Unobservable inputs for determining the fair valagassets or liabilities for which there is liftieany, market
activity at the measurement date, using reasoniaplgs and assumptions based on the best informatithe
time, to the extent that inputs are available withndue cost and effort. These inputs and assongpinay
include model-derived inputs that are not corroteatdy observable market data and an entity’s own
assumptions

A description of the valuation methodologies usmdristruments measured at fair value, as welhagieneral classification of such
instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchgeisforth below. These valuation methodologiesvagplied to all of the Company’s assets
and liabilities carried at fair value. In geneffair value is based upon quoted market prices, evheailable. If such quoted market prices are
not available, fair value is based upon third pamtydels that primarily use, as inputs, observaldekat-based parameters. Valuation
adjustments may be made to ensure that finana#Liments are recorded at fair value. These adgrasimay include amounts to reflect
counterparty credit quality, the Company’s credittiimess, among other things, as well as unobskrymrameters. Any such valuation
adjustments are applied consistently over time. Cbmpany’s valuation methodologies may produceravédue calculation that may not be
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indicative of net realizable value or reflectivefofure fair values. While management believesGbepany’s valuation methodologies are
appropriate and consistent with other market pagitts, the use of different methodologies or aggtions to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in datiént estimate of fair value at the reporting date

Securities Available-for-Sal&ecurities classified as available-for-sale arenteol at fair value utilizing Level 1, Level 2, ahdvel 3 inputs.
Securities are classified as Level 1 within theustibn hierarchy when quoted prices are availablmi active market. This includes securities
whose value is based on quoted market prices iveactarkets for identical assets. The Company aéss Level 1 inputs for the valuation of
equity securities traded in active markets.

Securities are classified as Level 2 within theugtibn hierarchy when the Company obtains fair #aheasurements from an independent
pricing service. The fair value measurements cansithservable data that may include dealer quotaset spreads, cash flows, the U.S.
Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade@xtion data, market consensus prepayment speeds,information, and the bond’s terms
and conditions, among other things. Level 2 inpuésused to value U.S. government agency secusiiggle issue and pooled trust preferred
securities, corporate FDIC insured securities, M&®| certain equity securities that are not agtitralded.

Securities are classified as Level 3 within theugtibn hierarchy in certain cases when there igduractivity or less transparency to the
valuation inputs. In the absence of observableoaoborated market data, internally developed edésthat incorporate market-based
assumptions are used when such information isahlail

Fair value models may be required when trading/igtihas declined significantly or does not exgsices are not current or pricing variations
are significant. The Company’s fair value from thiparty models utilizes modeling software that usasket participant data and knowledge
of the structures of each individual security teelep cash flows specific to each security. Thealues of the securities are determined by
using the cash flows developed by the fair valuel@hand applying appropriate market observableodistrates. The discount rates are
developed by determining credit spreads above eheark rate, such as LIBOR, and adding premiumdliguidity developed based on a
comparison of initial issuance spread to LIBOR uera financial sector curve for recently issued tiehIBOR. Specific securities that have
increased uncertainty regarding the receipt of flasts are discounted at higher rates due to tlitiad of a deal specific credit premium
based on assumptions about the performance ohilherlying collateral. Finally, internal fair valumeodel pricing and external pricing
observations are combined by assigning weightat¢b ricing observation. Pricing is reviewed fasenableness based on the direction of
the specific markets and the general economic ataliis.

Other Assets and Associated Liabiliti€&curities held for trading purposes are recordégiravalue and included in “other assets” on the
consolidated balance sheets. Securities heldddirtg purposes include assets related to emplagfeerdd compensation plans. The assets
associated with these plans are generally invésteduities and classified as Level 1. Deferred gensation liabilities, also classified as
Level 1, are carried at the fair value of the aodifign to the employee, which corresponds to thevidue of the invested assets.

Derivatives.Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizingve€2 inputs. The Company obtains dealer quotati@sed on observable data to
value its derivatives.

Impaired LoansCertain impaired loans are reported on a nonrawyiyasis at the fair value of the underlying celfat if repayment is
expected solely from the collateral. Collateralueal are estimated using Level 3 inputs based omispfs adjusted for customized
discounting criteria.

The Company maintains an active and robust prololediit identification system. When a credit is itiféed as exhibiting characteristics of
weakening, the Company will assess the credit demtial impairment. Examples of weakening incldéénquency and deterioration of the
borrower’s capacity to repay as determined by tbm@any’s regular credit review function. As partlodé impairment review, the Company
will evaluate the current collateral value. Ith&tCompany’s standard practice to obtain updatied prarty collateral valuations to assist
management in measuring potential impairment agtditand the amount of the impairment to be reedrd

Internal collateral valuations are generally parfed within two to four weeks of the original idditi@tion of potential impairment and rece
of the third party valuation. The internal valuatis performed by comparing the original appratiealurrent local real estate market
conditions and experience and considers liquidatasis. The result of the internal valuation is paned with the outstanding loan balance,
and, if warranted, a specific impairment reserviélva established at the completion of the intemadluation.

A third party evaluation is typically received withthirty to forty-five days of the completion dfé internal evaluation. Once received, the
third party evaluation is reviewed for reasonaldsn®©nce the evaluation is reviewed and accepted,
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discounts to fair market value are applied basexhgoich factors as the bank’s historical liquidagxperience of like collateral, and an
estimated net realizable value is established. g$@nated net realizable value is then compardid thve outstanding loan balance to
determine the amount of specific impairment resefbe specific impairment reserve, if necessarggdjsisted to reflect the results of the
updated evaluation. A specific impairment resesvganerally maintained on impaired loans duringtithe period while awaiting receipt of
the third party evaluation as well as on impai@ahk that continue to make some form of paymentigailation is not imminent. Impaired
loans not meeting the aforementioned criteria &atldo not have a specific impairment reserve huigually been previously written down
through a partial charge off, to their net reallzalalue.

The Company’s Special Assets staff assumes thegearent and monitoring of all loans determined tinigaired. While awaiting the
completion of the third party appraisal, the Compgenerally begins to complete the tasks necessaggin control of the collateral and
prepare for liquidation, including, but not limitéal engagement of counsel, inspection of collateradl continued communication with the
borrower, if appropriate. Special Assets staff abggularly reviews the relationship to identify gmytential adverse developments during this
time.

Generally, the only difference between current ajged value, adjusted for liquidation costs, ardcrrying amount of the loan less the
specific reserve is any downward adjustment tapgraised value that the Company determines agptepthese differences are generally
made up of costs to sell the property, as well dsflator for the devaluation of property seen whanks are the sellers, and the Company
deemed these adjustments as fair value adjustments.

In the Companys experience, it rarely returns loans to perfornsitegus after they have been partially charged@dherally, credits identifie
as impaired move quickly through the process towattimate resolution.

Other Real Estate Owned he fair value of the Company'’s other real estateed is determined on a nonrecurring basis usévgl 3 inputs
based on current and prior appraisals, estimatesst$ to sell, and proprietary qualitative adjuestts.

Gooduwill. The fair value of the Company’s goodwill is repdrtn a nonrecurring basis when it has been adjusttdr value. The values of
the Company’s reporting units are determined ukingel 3 inputs based on discounted cash flow andebanultiple models.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurement

The following tables summarize financial assets famghcial liabilities measured at fair value oreaurring basis as of December 31, 2011
and 2010, segregated by the level of the valuatipats within the fair value hierarchy utilizedrnmeasure fair value:

December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurements Using Total
(Amounts in thousand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities
States and political subdivisio $ — $137,81! $— $137,81!
Single issue trust preferred securil — 40,24 — 40,24
Corporate FDIC insured securiti — 13,71¢ — 13,71¢
Agency MBS — 280,10: — 280,10:
Non-Agency Ali-A residential MBS — 10,03( — 10,03(
Equity securitie: 501 20 — 521
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 501 $481,92¢ $— $482,43(
Deferred compensation ass $321C $ — $— $ 3,21(
Derivative asset
Interest rate lock commitmer $ — $ 138 $— $ 13E
Total derivative asse $ — $ 138 $— $ 13t
Deferred compensation liabiliti¢ $3,21C $ — $— $ 3,21C
Derivative liabilities
Interest rate swa $ — $ — $— $ —
Interest rate lock commitmer — 6 6
Total derivative liabilities $ — $ 6 $— $ 6
December 31, 2010
Total
(Amounts in thousand Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Government agency securit $ — $ 9,83: $— $ 9,83C
States and political subdivisio — 176,13t — 176,13t
Single issue trust preferred securil — 41,244 — 41,244
Pooled trust preferred securiti — 264 — 264
Corporate FDIC insured securiti — 25,66( — 25,66(
Agency MBS — 215,01: — 215,01
Non-Agency Ali-A residential MBS — 11,271 — 11,271
Equity securitie: 61€ 20 — 63€
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 61€ $479,44¢ $— $480,06¢
Deferred compensation ass $3,192 $ — $— $ 3,197
Derivative asset
Interest rate lock commitmer $ — $ 28 $— $ 28
Total derivative asse $ — $ 28 $— $ 28
Deferred compensation liabiliti¢ $3,19:2 $ — $— $ 3,197
Derivative liabilities
Interest rate swa $ — $ 31 $— $ 31
Interest rate lock commitmer — 59 — 59
Total derivative liabilities $ — $ 90 $— $ 90
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The following table presents additional informatetvout financial assets and liabilities measurddiavalue on a recurring basis as of
December 31, 2010, for which Level 3 inputs arbzetil to determine fair value. There were no finahassets or liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis that utilized Level 3uts to determine fair value during 2011.

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant
Unobservable Inputs
Available-for-Sale Securities
Pooled Trust Preferred Securitie:

(Amounts in thousand December 31, 2010

Beginning balance $ 1,64¢
Transfers into Level —
Transfers out of Level (3,579

Total gains or losse
Included in earnings (or changes
net assets —
Included in other comprehensive
income 1,92¢
Purchases, issuances, sales, and
settlement:
Purchase —
Issuance: —
Sales —
Settlement: —

Ending balanc $ —

During the first quarter of 2010, the Company chehthe fair value of pooled trust preferred semsgifrom Level 3 to Level 2 pricing
resulting in a transfer of $3.57 million out of leh\8. The Company was successful in obtaining aegfrom a qualified market participant,
and although the market for these securities iseaging it still remains inactive.

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurement

Certain financial and nonfinancial assets are nrealsat fair value on a nonrecurring basis; thatis,instruments are not measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fireradjustments in certain circumstances, sucitzes) there is evidence of impairment.
Items subject to nonrecurring fair value adjustraemére as follows:

December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurements Using

Total

Fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
(Amounts in thousand
Impaired loan $— $— $ 8,52¢ $8,52¢
Restructured loar — — 6,31¢ 6,31¢
Other real estate ownt — — 5,91¢ 5,91¢
Goodwill — insurance agencit — — 9,40¢ 9,40¢
December 31, 2010
Fair Value Measurements Using Lgtifl
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
(Amounts in thousand
Impaired loan: $— $— $ 10,90¢ $10,90¢
Restructured loar — — 5,771 5,771
Other real estate ownt — — 4,91( 4,91(
Goodwill — insurance agencit — — 11,94: 11,94:

The fair value of goodwill on a nonrecurring baaiDecember 31, 2011 and 2010, consisted of thgiogrvalue at the insurance reporting
unit after impairment charges of $1.24 million &1d04 million, respectively.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value information about financial instrumentsether or not recognized in the balance sheetylfich it is practical to estimate the va
is based upon the characteristics of the instrusn@mdl relevant market information. Financial instemts include cash, evidence of owner:
in an entity, or contracts that convey or imposeaorentity that contractual right or obligationeither receive or deliver cash for another
financial instrument. Fair value is the amount atal a financial instrument could be exchanged éaraent transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidatemd is best evidenced by a quoted market prioceéfexists.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Carrying
(Amounts in thousand Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 47,29« $ 47,29 $ 112,18¢ $ 112,18¢
Investment securitie 485,92( 485,96: 484,70: 484,76¢
Loans held for sal 5,82( 5,871 4,69 4,70(
Loans held for investment less allowal 1,369,86: 1,386,41! 1,359,72. 1,370,17.
Accrued interest receivab 6,192 6,19: 7,67¢ 7,67¢
Bank owned life insuranc 44 ,35¢ 44,35¢ 42,24 42,24
Derivative financial asse 13E 13E 28 28
Deferred compensation ass 3,21( 3,21( 3,192 3,192
Liabilities
Demand deposil $ 240,26¢ $ 240,26! $ 205,15: $ 205,15:
Interes-bearing demand depos 275,15¢ 275,15¢ 262,42( 262,42(
Savings deposil 394,70° 394,70 426,54 426,54
Time deposit: 633,33¢ 641,60: 726,83 735,33:
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 129,20¢ 136,35¢ 140,89« 161,10(
Accrued interest payab 2,55¢ 2,55¢ 3,26¢ 3,26¢
FHLB and other indebtedne 165,93 183,72: 191,19: 203,53¢
Derivative financial liabilities 6 6 90 90
Deferred compensation liabilitie 3,21( 3,21( 3,192 3,192

The following summary presents the methodologiesaasumptions used to estimate the fair valueeCtbmpany’s financial instruments
presented below. The information used to deterrfd@imesalue is highly subjective and judgmental ature and, therefore, the results may not
be precise. Subjective factors include, among dthiags, estimates of cash flows, risk charactiegstredit quality, and interest rates, all of
which are subject to change. Since the fair vauestimated as of the balance sheet date, the asnttvan will actually be realized or paid
upon settlement or maturity on these various imsénts could be significantly different.

Cash and Cash EquivaleniEhe book values of cash and due from banks anddefimds sold and purchased are considered toja &
fair value as a result of the short-term naturthe$e items.

Investment Securities and Deferred Compensatioatdssid LiabilitiesFair values are determined in the same mannerszsided above.

Loans:The estimated fair value of loans held for invesitie measured based upon discounted future cawsfs fising current rates for
similar loans. No estimate for market illiquiditatibeen made. Loans held for sale are recordewat bf cost or estimated fair value. The
fair value of loans held for sale is determinededlaspon the market sales price of similar loans.

Accrued Interest Receivable and PayaThe book value is considered to be equal to thresfdue due to the short-term nature of the
instrument.

Bankowned Life Insurancéhe fair value is determined by stated contraaiesl

Derivative Financial InstrumentThe estimated fair value of derivative financiatiments is based upon the current market pricsifialar
instruments.
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Deposits and Securities Sold Under Agreements poiiRkase Deposits without a stated maturity, including dethanterest-bearing
demand, and savings accounts, are reported atcdmeying value. No value has been assigned tréimnehise value of these deposits. For
other types of deposits and repurchase agreeméthtéixed maturities and rates, fair value has bestimated by discounting future cash
flows based on interest rates currently being effesn instruments with similar characteristics eradurities.

FHLB and Other IndebtednesFair value has been estimated based on interestcatrently available to the Company for borrowimgth
similar characteristics and maturities. The faiuedor trust preferred obligations has been edtchdased on credit spreads seen in the
marketplace for like issues.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters efli€rand Financial Guarantee$he amount of off-balance sheet commitments tonekte
credit, standby letters of credit, and financiahug@ntees is considered equal to fair value. Becafudee uncertainty involved in attempting to
assess the likelihood and timing of commitmentadeirawn upon, coupled with the lack of an esthblismarket and the wide diversity of
fee structures, the Company does not believenitaaningful to provide an estimate of fair valuet éiéers from the given value of the
commitment.

Note 17. Comprehensive Income

The components of the Compasyomprehensive income, net of deferred incomestdre the three years ended December 31, 201%E a¢
follows:

2011 2010 2009

(Amounts in thousand
Net income (loss $20,02¢ $21,841 $(38,69¢)
Other comprehensive incor

Unrealized (loss) gain on securities availabledale with other-than-

temporary impairmer (1,247 194 (28)
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities availabledale without other-
thar-temporary impairmer 12,94¢ 8,41¢ (9,35))
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) lossesgaczed in earning (5,269 (8,277) 11,67:
Reclassification adjustment for credit related ofthan-temporary
impairments recognized in earnir 2,28¢ 18t 78,86
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi — — (9,779)
Unrealized gain on derivative securit 30 2,07¢ 1,07:
Change related to employee benefit pl (1,009 (273 (752)
Income tax effec (2,886 (86¢) (26,71)
Total other comprehensive incor 4,862 1,462 44,99¢
Comprehensive incon $24,89( $23,30¢ $ 6,30(

The components of the Company’s accumulated ottrepeehensive loss, net of income taxes, as of Deeefil, 2011 and 2010, were as
follows:

) ) ) Accumulated
Unrealized Unrealized Loss Benefit Other

Comprehensive

Loss on Cash Flow Plan
on Securities Hedge Derivative Liability Loss
(Amounts in thousand
December 31, 201 $ (5,74) $ = $(1,587) $ 7,32§)
December 31, 201 $ (11,219 $ (20) $ (957) $ (12,190
December 31, 20C $ (11,549 $ (1,329 $ (786 $ (13,65
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Note 18. Parent Company Financial Information

Condensed financial information related to Firstf@aunity Bancshares, Inc. as of December 31, 20812840, and for each of the years

ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, is asvll

Condensed Balance Sheets
(Amounts in thousand

Assets

Cash

Securities available for sa
Investment in subsidiar
Other asset

Total asset
Liabilities
Other liabilities
Long-term debi
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stoc
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Treasury stocl
Accumulated other comprehensive i
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

Condensed Statements of Income
(Amounts in thousand
Cash dividends received from subsidiary b
Other income
Operating expens
Income tax expens
Equity in undistributed earnings (loss) of subgigi
Net income (loss
Dividends on preferred stox
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol
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2011 2010
$ 17,69  $ 11,70¢
7,651 9,66:
291,54° 266,67:
5,01¢ 4,32t
$321,91.  $292,36°
$ 71 $ 7,02°
15,46+ 15,46¢
16,18: 22,48¢
18,92: —
18,08: 18,08:
188,11¢ 189,23
92,17: 79,84«
(5,721) (6,740)
(5,845) (10,54%)
305,72 269,87
$321,91.  $292,36°
2011 2010 2009
$ — $ — $ 4,027
2,227 2,13¢ 3,774
(1,796) (1,556) (3,030
(150) (229) (2,691)
19,74 21,49; (40,77¢6)
20,02¢ 21,847 (38,696
702 — 2,16(
$19,32F  $21,847  $(40,85¢)
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 2011 2010 2009
(Amounts in thousand
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income (loss $ 20,02¢ $ 21,84, $(38,69¢)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Equity in undistributed (earnings) loss of subgigi (19,74°) (21,499 40,77¢
(Gain) loss on sale of securiti (139) 1 60
(Increase) decrease in other as (1,529 23¢ 661
(Decrease) increase in other liabilit (5,74%) 6,71°¢ 881
Other, ne’ 77€ (82 1,081
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (6,359) 7,221 4,76:
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of securities available for ¢ (6) — (937)
Proceeds from sale of securities available for 2,63¢ 53¢ 4,40z
Investment in subsidiar (570) (7,500 (20,000
Other, ne — — 1,00(
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 2,06( (6,96%) (5,529
Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of preferred sto — — (41,500
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 32 29 21
Net proceeds from the issuance of common s — — 61,66¢
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred < 18,80: — —
Repurchase of treasury stc (904) — (167)
Repurchase of common stock warre (30 — —
Preferred dividends pa (55¢) — (1,11¢)
Common dividends pai (7,155 (7,127 (4,619
Other, ne 10C 1,11( 1,867
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 10,281 (5,982 16,15/
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 5,98¢ (5,720 15,38¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 11,70¢ 17,42¢ 2,03¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $ 17,69 $11,70¢ $17,42¢

Note 19. Segment Information

The Company operates within two business segm€ontsmunity Banking and Insurance Services. The ConityjBanking segment
includes both commercial and consumer lending ampibsit services. This segment provides customehssuch products as commercial
loans, real estate loans, business financing, angsutner loans. This segment also provides custowitrsa range of deposit products
including demand deposit accounts, savings accpantkcertificates of deposit. In addition, the @aoumity Banking segment provides wei
management services to a broad range of custoffteednsurance Services segment is a full-serviserance agency providing commercial
and personal lines of insurance.
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The following tables set forth information aboug tteportable operating segments and reconciliatidhis information to the consolidated
financial statements at and for the years endeeémber 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009:

December 31, 2011
Community Insurance Parent/

Banking Services Elimination Total
(Amounts in thousand
Net interest income (expens $ 72,37 $ (100 $ (24%) $ 72,02¢
Provision for loan losse 9,047 — — 9,04
Noninterest incom 29,66: 6,321 (45€) 35,53¢
Noninterest expens 62,94 6,85( (877) 68,91¢
Income (loss) before income tax 30,04¢ (623) 17¢€¢ 29,60:
Provision for income tax expen 9,32f 194 54 9,57:
Net income (loss 20,72 (817) 122 20,02¢
Dividends on preferred stox — — 703 703
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $ 20,72 $ (819) $ (58] $ 19,32
End of period goodwill and other intangib! $ 77,97 $ 9,40t $ — $ 87,38
End of period asse $2,144,10. $11,46¢ $ 9,22 $2,164,78'

December 31, 2010
Community Insurance Parent/

Banking Services Elimination Total
(Amounts in thousand
Net interest income (expens $ 74,07 $ (125 $ (90 $ 73,85]
Provision for loan losse 14,757 — — 14,757
Noninterest incom 34,13: 6,81¢ (440 40,50¢
Noninterest expens 63,98: 6,85¢€ (896 69,94
Income (loss) before income tax 29,46¢ (165) 36€ 29,66¢
Provision for income tax expen 7,30¢ 34E 16E 7,81¢
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol $ 22,15¢ $ (510 $ 201 $ 21,84
End of period goodwill and other intangib! $ 78,69¢ $11,94! $ — $ 90,63¢
End of period asse $2,227,76 $12,44* $ 4,03t $2,244,23

December 31, 2009
Community Insurance Parent/

Banking Services Elimination Total
(Amounts in thousand
Net interest income (expens $ 69,36« $ (73 $ (39 $ 69,25
Provision for loan losse 15,80: — — 15,80:
Noninterest incom (60,839 7,42 (26%) (53,677
Noninterest expens 61,52: 6,13¢ (1,039 66,62+
(Loss) income before income tax (68,799 1,21¢ 734 (66,850
Provision for income tax (benefit) exper (30,56¢) 50€ 1,90¢ (28,154
Net (loss) income available to common sharehol $ (38,23) $ 70¢ $ (1,179 $ (38,69¢)
End of period goodwill and other intangibl $ 79,4L $11,64: $ — $ 91,06:
End of period asse $2,247,39 $12,23( $ 13,65] $2,273,28.
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Note 20. Supplemental Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following tables present quarterly earningstifieryears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Quarter Ended

2011 March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share d
Interest incom $24,59( $23,33¢ $23,05( $23,20:
Interest expens 6,31° 5,581 5,31¢ 4,93¢
Net interest incom 18,27¢ 17,75¢ 17,73¢ 18,26¢
Provision for loan losse 1,617 3,07¢ 1,92( 2,43¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 16,66: 14,67¢ 15,81 15,83(
Other income 7,66: 8,13¢ 7,88¢ 6,58(
Net securities gain 1,83¢ 3,22¢ 17¢ 26
Other expense 18,06: 17,73¢ 16,06( 17,05¢
Income before income tax 8,09¢ 8,30( 7,82( 5,382
Income tax 2,34¢ 2,57 2,50z 2,151
Net income 5,751 5,72¢ 5,31¢ 3,231
Dividends on preferred stox — 131 28€ 28€
Net income available to common shareholc $ 5,751 $ 5,59i $ 5,032 $ 2,94¢
Per share

Basic earning $ 0.3 $ 0.31 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢€

Diluted earningt $ 0.3 $ 0.31 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.17

Dividends $ 0.1C $ 0.1C $ 0.1C $ 0.1C
Weighted average basic shares outstan 17,86¢ 17,89¢ 17,89 17,84¢
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 17,88 18,53¢ 19,20¢ 19,15¢

Quarter Ended

201C March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share d
Interest incom $26,61: $26,15¢ $25,84( $24,97¢
Interest expens 7,99 7,611 7,245 6,87¢
Net interest incom 18,61¢ 18,54: 18,597 18,09¢
Provision for loan losse 3,66¢ 3,59¢ 3,81( 3,68¢
Net interest income after provision for loan los 14,95¢ 14,94¢ 14,78 14,41:
Other income 8,32¢ 7,70¢ 8,36¢ 7,84(
Net securities gain 25C 1,201 2,57¢ 4,24¢
Other expense 16,07 16,59¢ 17,42¢ 19,84«
Income before income tax 7,46( 7,252 8,29¢ 6,651
Income tax 2,182 2,121 1,74% 1,772
Net income available to common shareholc $ 5,27¢ $ 5,131 $ 6,55: $ 4,88¢
Per share

Basic earning $ 0.3C $ 0.2¢ $ 0.37 $ 0.27

Diluted earning: $ 03C $ 02¢ $ 037 $ 0.27

Dividends $ 0.1C $ 0.1C $ 0.1C $ 0.1C
Weighted average basic shares outstan 17,76¢ 17,78’ 17,80¢ 17,84¢
Weighted average diluted shares outstan 17,78¢ 17,80¢ 17,83 17,89:
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Note 21. Subsequent Events

On March 1, 2012, the Company and Peoples Bankrginia (“Peoples”) entered into an Agreement af@hRf Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”), pursuant to which Peoples will be neergvith and into the Company, with the Companyhassurviving entity (the “Merger”).
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Begghareholders will receive $6.08 in cash and &tres of the Company’s Common
Stock for each share of Peoples common stock. Térgdf Agreement has been approved by the boauiseators of both the Company and
Peoples. The Merger is subject to customary closamglitions, including regulatory approval and Hesghareholder approval.
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To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorslahe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of First Community Bancshares, Inc. sn8lubsidiaries (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the relatedbtidated statements of operations, changes in btddkrs’equity and cash flows for ea
of the years in the three-year period ended Decesthe2011. These consolidated financial statememshe responsibility of the Compasy’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of First
Community Bancshares, Inc. and its Subsidiariesf ®2cember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the resultsedf doperations and their cash flows
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting pifites generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2011, based on criteria establishdat@mnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated March 2, 2012, expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of @mnpany’s internal control over financial reporting

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 2, 2012
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- Managements Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reprting -

First Community Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company’teisponsible for the preparation, integrity, and ffeesentation of the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Reporf~orm 10-K. The consolidated financial staters@mid notes included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in confgrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting pringad necessarily include some
amounts that are based on management’s best estianad judgments.

We, as management of the Company, are responsibéstablishing and maintaining effective intercatrol over financial reporting that is
designed to produce reliable financial statementonformity with U.S. generally accepted accouppmninciples. The system of internal
control over financial reporting as it relateshe financial statements is evaluated for effectéasrby management and tested for reliability.
Any system of internal control, no matter how widkigned, has inherent limitations, including tbegibility that a control can be
circumvented or overridden and misstatements deertw or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alscause of changes in conditions,
internal control effectiveness may vary over tiecordingly, even an effective system of internatrol will provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement paéipa.

Management conducted an assessment of the effeetise@f the Company’s internal control over finahaeporting based on the framework
in Internal Control-Integrated Framewoiiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission. Based on this
assessment, management concluded that its systeefal control over financial reporting was eftfee as of December 31, 2011.

Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, independent registerddipaccounting firm, has issued an attestatiommepn the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag)of December 31, 2011. The Report of Indeper@egistered Public Accounting Firm,
which expresses an unqualified opinion on the &ffeness of the Company’s internal control oveafiaial reporting as of December 31,
2011, appears hereafter in Iltem 8 of this AnnugddReon Form 10-K.

Dated this 2d day of March, 2012.

/s/ John M. Mendez /s/ David D. Brown
John M. Mende: David D. Brown
President and Chief Executive Offic Chief Financial Officel
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To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorslahe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We have audited First Community Bancshares, Ind.sabsidiaries’ (the “Companyifiternal control over financial reporting as of Batbel
31, 2011, based on criteria establishethtarnal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns

the Treadway Commission. The Company’s managemagrsponsible for maintaining effective internahirol over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezoatrol over financial reporting, included in thecompanying Management’'s Assessment of
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal control over financial

reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corav@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestawe believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A Company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compangseds that could have a material effect on then@iia statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadé&gbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Community Bancshares, Incinteined, in all material respects, effective intdrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria establishédeémal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
financial statements of First Community Bancshalres,as of and for the year ended December 311,281d our report, dated March 2,
2012, expressed an unqualified opinion on thoseaatated financial statements.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 2, 2012
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Aounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ITEM 9A.  Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

In connection with this Annual Report on Form 10uRder the direction of the Company’s CEO and Cf@ Company has evaluated the
disclosure controls and procedures currently in@ffBased upon that evaluation, the CEO and CK©Oleded that, as of December 31, 2C
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures ef#ective.

Disclosure controls and procedures are Companyalsrégnd other procedures that are designed taefisat information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports thatesfibr submits under the Exchange Act is recordedggsed, summarized and reported w
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules amthk. Disclosure controls and procedures includthowt limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that informationinegjto be disclosed by the Company in the regbesit files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated t€trmpany’s management, including the CEO and CB@paropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s management, including the CEO and,@B6s not expect that the Company’s disclosuré&alsrand internal controls will
prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system matter how well conceived and operated, canigeconly reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control systenmet. Because of the inherent limitations lic@htrol systems, no evaluation of controls
can provide absolute assurance that all controksand instances of fraud, if any, within the Camphave been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgmentsiacision making can be faulty, and that breakdosamsoccur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvenbsdthe individual acts of some persons, by calln$f two or more people, or by
management override of the controls.

The Company assesses the adequacy of its intevntbt over financial reporting quarterly and entesits controls in response to internal
control assessments and internal and external anditegulatory recommendations. There were noggsaim the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting during the quarter endet®nber 31, 2011, that has materially affectets mrasonably likely to materially affect,
the Company’s internal control over financial repuy.

The Company’s Management’s Report on Internal @b&@wer Financial Reporting and the Report of Iretegent Registered Public
Accounting Firm on Management’s Assessment of frale€ontrol Over Financial Reporting are each hgieborporated by reference from
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.
None.

PART 1lI

ITEM 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.

The required information concerning directors axelcaitive officers has been omitted in accordandk ®eneral Instruction G. Such
information regarding directors and executive @fgcwill be set forth under the headings of “Electdf Directors,” “Continuing Incumbent
Directors,” and “Non-Director Executive Officersf the Proxy Statement relating to the 2012 Annuaklhg of Stockholders (the “2012
Annual Meeting”) to be held on April 24, 2012, asdncorporated herein by reference.

Information relating to compliance with Section 46¢f the Exchange Act has been omitted in accaelarith General Instruction G. Such
information will be set forth under the headind'éction 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coiapte” of the Proxy Statement relating
to the 2012 Annual Meeting and is incorporated indog reference.

The Company has adopted Standards of Conductbét  its principal executive officer, principihancial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller or persons performing simifanctions, as well as all employees and direatdthae Company. A copy of the Company’s
Standards of Conduct is available on the Compangissite at www.fcbinc.com. There have been no waigéthe standards of conduct
related to any of the above officers.

Information relating to the Audit Committee and #hedit Committee Financial Expert has been omittedccordance with General
Instruction G. Such information regarding the Auddmmittee and the Audit Committee Financial Expélitbe set forth under the heading
“Report of the Audit Committee” of the Proxy Stamhrelating to the 2012 Annual Meeting and is mpooated herein by reference.
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Since the last annual report on Form 10-K, filedvtarch 11, 2011, the Company has not made any iabtéanges to the procedures by
which stockholders may recommend nominees to theg2ay’s board of directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

Franklin P. Hall

Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Hall Family L&inm;
Former Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcabol
Beverage Control; Former Chairman, The Common\W itk ;
Former Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates

Richard S. Johnson
Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Companies

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys at,&oard of
Governors, Bluefield State College

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Officer, First Comityun
Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, Firsn@ounity Bank

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, In¢irginia
Region

William P. Stafford
President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc.

William P. Stafford, Il
Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carlthore,
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC .

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Offic

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officel

Robert L. Schumacher
General Counse

E. Stephen Lilly
Chief Operating Office

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secret:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FIRST COMMUNITY BANK

W. C. Blankenship, Jr.
Agent, State Farm Insurance

Juanita G. Bryan
Homemaker

Robert L. Buzzo
Vice President and Secretary, First Community Bhas, Inc.;
President, First Community Bank

C. William Davis
Attorney at Law, Richardson & Davis

Samuel L. Elmore
Senior Vice President — Commercial Lending for RgdeCounty,
W.Va. Market, First Community Bank

T. Vernon Foster

President of J. La’Verne Print Communications; Exstctor,
TriStone Community Bank; Director of Business Solus,
University of Louisville, College of Busine:

Franklin P. Hall

Businessman; Senior Partner, Hall & Hall Family L&inm;
Former Commissioner, Virginia Department of Alcabol
Beverage Control; Former Chairman, The Common\W itk
Former Minority Leader, Virginia House of Delegates

Richard S. Johnson
Chairman, President, and CEO, The Wilton Companies

I. Norris Kantor
Of Counsel, Katz, Kantor & Perkins, Attorneys atl,&8oard of
Governors, Bluefield State College

John M. Mendez
President and Chief Executive Officer, First Comityun
Bancshares, Inc.; Chief Executive Officer, Firsn@ounity Bank

Robert E. Perkinson, Jr.
Past Vice President-Operations, MAPCO Coal, In¢irginia
Region
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William P. Stafford Frank C. Tinder
President, Princeton Machinery Service, Inc. President, Tinder Enterprises, Inc. and Tinco Lrea€lorporation;

Realtor, Premier Realty
William P. Stafford, Il

Attorney at Law, Brewster, Morhous, Cameron, Carlthore, Dale F. Woody
Kersey & Stafford, PLLC President, Woody Lumber Compa

ITEM 11.  Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 has been texiin accordance with General Instruction G. Satdrmation will be set forth under the
heading of “Compensation Discussion and Analysighe Proxy Statement relating to the 2012 AnfMegéting and is incorporated herein
reference.

ITEM 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The required information concerning security owhgr®f certain beneficial owners and managemenbkeas omitted in accordance with
General Instruction G. Such information appearseutige heading of “Information on Stock Ownershipthe Proxy Statement relating to
2012 Annual Meeting and is incorporated hereindigrence.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information regarding compensation plans under ke Company’s equity securities are authorizedstuance as of December 31, 2011,
is included in the table which follows.

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available
to be issued upon Weighted-average for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, warrants options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan category and rights and rights reflected in column (a)
@ (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder 92,07 $ 19.4¢ 67,56¢
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde 393,46 $ 20.7¢ 49,84
Total 485,54 117,41(

For additional information regarding equity compesitn plans, see “Note 11 — Equity-Based Compemsatf the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 herein.

ITEM 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence.

The information called for by Item 13 has been texiin accordance with General Instruction G. Satdrmation will be set forth under the
heading of “Related Person Transactions” of thxy &tatement relating to the 2012 Annual Meeting anncorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 has been texiin accordance with General Instruction G. Satdrmation will be set forth under the
heading of “Independent Registered Public Accognkiirm” of the Proxy Statement relating to the 2@tfhual Meeting and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(&) Documents Filed as a Part of this Rep
(1) The following financial statements are incorporatgdeference from Item 8 here

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&t4 2010.

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockhold&gsity for the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 20102009.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm.

(2) All schedules for which provision is made i thpplicable accounting regulation of the SEC anéted because they are not
applicable or the required information is includedhe consolidated financial statements or relaiates theretc

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Exhibit
3(i) Articles of Incorporation of First Community Baneshs, Inc. (1
3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Community Bhates, Inc. (14
4.1 Specimen stock certificate of First Community Bdrarss, Inc. (3
4.2 Indenture Agreement dated September 25, 2003.
4.3 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of FC&ital Trust dated September 25, 2003.
4.4 Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement date@®@épt 25, 2003. (1:
4.5 Certificate of Designation of 6.00% Series A Nonclettive Convertible Preferred Stock. (2
10.1* First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1999 Stock Op@ontracts (2) and Plan. (
10.1.1* Amendment to First Community Bancshares, Inc. 1S@@k Option Plan, as amended. (
10.2** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 -Qualified Director’ Stock Option Plan. (£
10.3** Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datedrdieer 16, 2008, between First Community Bancsharesand
John M. Mendez (6) and Waiver Agreement. (
10.4** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2000 ExecutiveeR@in Plan (19) and Amendment #1. (
10.5** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Split Dollar Péardl Agreement. (¢
10.6** First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2001 Dire¢ Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended.
10.7** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Wrap Plan.
10.9** Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @mmity Bancshares, Inc., its Directors and Ceraiacutive Officers.
©)
10.10** Form of Indemnification Agreement between First @aumity Bank, N. A, its Directors and Certain ExaeatOfficers. (9)
10.12* First Community Bancshares, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Sé@gtion Plan (10) and Form of Award Agreement. (
10.14** First Community Bancshares, Inc. Direc’ Deferred Compensation Plan. |
10.19* Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwast Community Bancshares, Inc. and David @vBr. (18)
10.20** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwest Community Bancshares, Inc. and RobertuzzB. (21)
10.21** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetw&st Community Bancshares, Inc. and E. Stepiibn (21)
10.22** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwast Community Bank, N. A. and Gary R. Mill21j
10.23* Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, lestwast Community Bank, N. A. and Martyn A. Pél1)
10.24** Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2008, leetwest Community Bank, N. A. and Robert L. Schaha. (21)
10.25* Employment Agreement dated July 31, 2009, betwérst Eommunity Bank, N. A. and Simpson O. BrowrD)

10.26** Employment Agreement dated July 31, 2009, betwéresh Eommunity Bank, N. A. and Mark R. Evans. (



11 Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings PereSKE3)

12* Statement Regarding Computation of Rat

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant. (2

23.1* Consent of Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP, IndependegidRered Public Accounting Firm for First CommunBgncshares,
Inc.
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31.1* Rule 13i-14(a)/15+-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
31.2* Rule 13i-14(a)/15+-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office
32* Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigfhancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3% adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS*** XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documel
101.CAL*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntri¢
101.LAB*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documel
101.PRE*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenit
101.DEF*** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhér

In accordance with Rule 406T of SEC Regulation $& ,XBRL related documents in Exhibit 101 to thisnual Report on Form 1B-for the
period ended December 31, 2011, are deemed ned™fibr purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange éicgtherwise subject to the liability
of that section and shall not be deemed to be jrozated by reference into any filing under the $ities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Compaegifically incorporates such information by refece.

* Furnished herewitf

**  Indicates a management contract or compensation

***  Submitted electronically herewit

#  Attached as Exhibit 101 to the Annual Report omfr10-K for the annual period ended December B8112f First Community
Bancshares, Inc. are the following documents foredain XBRL (eXtensive Business Reporting Langua@glConsolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2011 and December 31, @i)XDonsolidated Statements of Operations forytbars ended December 31,
2011, 2010, and 2009; (iii) Consolidated StatemehtSash Flows for the years ended December 311, 21110, and 2009; (ix)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdepsity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2&i@® 2009; and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statemer

(1) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3(i)tb&é Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2010, filed August 16,
2010.

(2) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5# Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the periodezhJune 30, 2002, filed August 14,
2002.

(3) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1toé tAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the period enBedember 31, 2002, filed March 25,
2003, and amended March 31, 20

(4) Incorporated by reference from the Annual ReparForm 10-K for the period ended December 3991 8led March 30, 2000, as
amended April 13, 200t

(5) The option agreements entered into pursuatiietd 999 Stock Option Plan and the 2001 Non-Qealibirectors’ Stock Option Plan are
incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReparForm 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, filed Aug4st2002

(6) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.%hs# Current Report on Form 8-K dated and filed Damer 16, 2008. The Registrant has
entered into substantially identical agreementk WRibbert L. Buzzo and E. Stephen Lilly, with thdyodifferences being with respect to
titte and salary

(7) Incorporated by reference from the Current Reporfform K dated August 22, 2006, filed August 23, 20

(8) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5h# Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period enBedember 31, 1999, filed April 4,
2000, and amended April 13, 20(

(9) Form of indemnification agreement entered mdhe Company and by First Community Bank withrthespective directors and
certain officers of each including, for the Regstrand Bank: John M. Mendez, Robert L. Schumadbaoert L. Buzzo, E. Stephen
Lilly, David D. Brown, and Gary R. Mills. Incorpated by reference from the Annual Report on FornK1fo+ the period ended
December 31, 2003, filed March 15, 2004, and amehikey 19, 2004
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(10) Incorporated by reference from the 2004 First ComitguBancshares, Inc. Definitive Proxy filed Marth, 2004.

(11) Incorporated by reference from the Quarterly ReporEorm 1-Q for the period ended September 30, 2003, fileddider 10, 200:

(12) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.£3h@ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the perwdied June 30, 2004, filed August 6,
2004.

(13) Incorporated by reference from “Note 1 — Sumyntd Significant Accounting Policies” of the Not&s Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 here

(14) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 of ther@nt Report on Form-K dated May 27, 2008, filed May 30, 20(

(15) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4fthe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pergodled March 31, 2004, filed May 7,
2004.

(16) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 of the@nt Report on Form-K dated May 20, 2011, filed May 23, 20:

(17) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @&rent Report on Fornm-K dated December 16, 2010, filed December 17, 2

(18) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @&rent Report on Forn-K dated and filed December 16, 20

(19) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of @&rent Report on Forn-K dated December 30, 2008, filed January 5, 2

(20) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 of then@nt Report on Form-K dated April 2, 2009, filed April 3, 200!

(21) Incorporated by reference from the Current ReporfEorm K dated and filed July 6, 200

(22) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 of @@&rent Report on Fornm-K dated December 16, 2010, filed December 17, 2

(23) Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 of @&rent Report on Fornm-K dated December 16, 2010, filed December 17, 2

(24) Incorporated by reference fra“Business Corporate Overvie” of the Annual Report on Form -K in Item 1 herein
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatp authorized on the2 day of March, 2012.

First Community Bancshares, Inc.

(Registrant)
By: /s/ John M. Mendez By: /s/ David D. Brown
John M. Mende: David D. Brown
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccourdiOfficer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title. Date

/s/ John M. Mendez Director, President and Chief Executive Officer March 2, 2012
John M. Mende:

/s/ David D. Brown Chief Financial Officer March 2, 2012
David D. Brown

/s/ Franklin P. Hall Director March 2, 2012
Franklin P. Hall

/s/ Richard S. Johnson Director March 2, 2012
Richard S. Johnsc

/s/ Robert E. Perkinson, Jr. Director March 2, 2012

Robert E. Perkinson, <

/s/ William P. Stafford Director March 2, 2012
William P. Stafford

/s/ William P. Stafford, Il Chairman of the Board of Directors March 2, 2012
William P. Stafford, Il
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Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share
Cash Dividends Per Share

Book Value Per Share

Return on Average Asse
Return on Average Sharehold Equity
Efficiency Ratio (GAAP)

Efficiency Ratio (Non-GAAP)

Loans to Deposit
Dividend Payout

Average Shareholde Equity to Average Asse
Tier | Capital Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

Tier | Leverage Rati
Net Charg-offs to Average Loan

Non-performing Loans to Total Loans

Non-performing Assets to Total Loans and OREO

Allowance for Loan Losses to Total Loans

Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Assets

Allowance for Loan Losses to Non-performing Loans

Net Interest Margit

Exhibit 12

Computation of Ratios

Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Sharehold
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstan

Net Income (Loss)/Weighted Average Diluted Shi
Outstanding

Dividends Paid to Common Shareholders/Average Commo
Shares Outstandir

Total Shareholders’ Equity/As-Converted Common 8har
Outstanding

Net Income/Average Asse
Net Income/Average Sharehold Equity

Noninterest Expense/(Net Interest Income Plus Nerést
Income)

See schedule under Item 7 — Management’s Discuasion
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiems

Average Net Loans/Average Deposits Outstan:

Dividends Declared to Common Shareholders/Net Irecom
Available to Common Shareholde

Average Shareholde Equity/Average Assel

(Shareholders’ Equity Plus Qualifying Subordinaebt) —
Intangible Assets — Securities Market-to-marketitp
Reserve (Tier | Capital)/ Risk Adjusted Ass

Tier | Capital Plus Allowance for Loan Losses/Risttjusted
Assets

Tier | Capital/Average Asse
(Gross Charc-offs Less Recoveries)/Average Net Loi

(Non-accrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or éreltus
Unseasoned Restructured Loans)/Gross Loans Nenedided
Interest

(Non-accrual Loans, Loans Past Due 90 Days or &reat
Unseasoned Restructured Loans, Plus OREO)/Grosset
of Unearned Interest plus ORE

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Gross Loans Net of Unedr
Interest)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Non-accrual Loans, LoBast
Due 90 Days or Greater, Unseasoned Restructureus|.@us
OREO)

Allowance for Loan Losses/(Non-accrual Loans plasnN
performing Loans

Tax Equivalent Net Interest Income/Average Earrfsgets



Exhibit 23.1

- Consent of Independent Registered Public Accoumtg Firm -

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directorgldhe Stockholders
First Community Bancshares, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrégéstration statements pertaining to the 2011eS& Noncumulative Convertible
Preferred Stock (Form S-3, No. 333-175262); theD20diversal Shelf Registration (Form S-3, No. 38%965); the 2004 Omnibus Stock
Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-120376); The Commealtfi Bank Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 3333B8); The CommonWealth
Bank acquisition (Form S-4, No. 333-104103); theR0Directors Stock Option Plan (Form S-8, No. 33222); the 1999 Stock Option Plan
(Form S-8, 333-31338); the Employee Stock Ownerahip Savings Plan (Form S-8, No. 333-63865); thedtment Planning Consultants
Inc. acquisition (Form S-3, No. 333-142558); thertet Capital Management acquisition (Form S-3, N&-804384); the 2008 Universal
Shelf Registration (Form S-3, No. 333-153692); @veldle Creek Financial Corporation acquisition (f@-4, No. 333-153281); the Capital
Purchase Program Warrant resale (Form S-3, No138365); the Greenpoint Insurance Group, Inc. aifipn (Form S-3, No. 333-148279);
and the TriStone Community Bank Employee and DireStock Option Plans (Form S-8, No. 333-16147Fioft Community Bancshares,
Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) of our repatated March 2, 2012, with respect to the conatditi financial statements of the
Company and the effectiveness of internal contver dinancial reporting, which reports appear ia @ompany’s 2011 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

/sl Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 2, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, John M. Mendez, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules

13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting or caused such internal control over finahneporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrée’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2012

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mendez
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, David D. Brown, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of First Community Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoriny untrue statement of a material fact or donéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules

13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting or caused such internal control over finahneporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; an

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial

reporting, to the registrée’s auditors and the audit committee of the regit's board of directors

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2012

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officel



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Commity Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 1@Kthe period ended
December 31, 2011, as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8@ptine undersigned hereby certify
the officers’ best knowledge and belief, pursuart& U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requiremesitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

(b) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated this 2d day of March, 2012.
First Community Bancshares, Ir

/s/ John M. Mendez

John M. Mende:
Chief Executive Office

/s/ David D. Brown

David D. Brown
Chief Financial Officel



